



# Pathfinder Bank is My Bank.

2011 ANNUAL REPORT



Pathfinder Bank is an independent community bank. Our mission is to foster relationships with individuals and businesses within our communities to be the financial provider of choice. Our goal is to continually enhance the value of the bank for the benefit of our shareholders, customers, employees and communities.

## FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

	2011	2010	2009	2008	2007
YEAR END (IN THOUSANDS)					
Total Assets	\$ 442,980	\$408,545	\$371,692	\$352,760	\$320,691
Loans Receivable, Net	300,770	281,648	259,387	247,400	221,046
Deposits	366,129	326,502	296,839	269,438	251,085
Shareholders' Equity	37,841	30,592	29,238	19,495	21,704
FOR THE YEAR (IN THOUSANDS)					
Net interest income	\$14,263	\$13,331	\$11,777	\$10,675	\$8,667
Core noninterest income (a)	2,451	2,854	2,724	2,786	2,622
Net gains/(losses) on sales, redemptions					
and impairment of investment securities	791	211	112	(2,191)	378
Net gains/(losses) on sales of loans and					
foreclosed real estate	(50)	(45)	54	(44)	42
Noninterest expense (b)	12,758	11,274	10,381	9,882	9,799
Regulatory assessments	390	515	745	53	39
Net income	2,323	2,505	1,615	368	1,122
PER SHARE					
Net income (basic)	\$0.53	\$0.82	\$0.61	\$0.15	\$0.45
Book value per common share	9.49	9.81	9.31	8.04	8.74
Tangible book value per common share (c)	8.02	8.26	7.77	6.50	7.19
Cash dividends declared	0.12	0.12	0.12	0.41	0.41
RATIOS					
Return on average assets	0.55%	0.64%	0.45%	0.11%	0.36%
Return on average equity	6.75	8.07	7.04	1.70	5.27
Return on average tangible equity (c)	7.59	9.20	8.45	2.07	6.47
Average equity to average assets	8.21	7.89	6.40	6.32	6.82
Dividend payout ratio (d)	12.87	11.90	18.45	232.61	62.03
Allowance for loan losses to loans receivable	1.31	1.28	1.17	0.99	0.76
Net interest rate spread	3.62	3.58	3.40	3.22	2.81
Noninterest income to average assets	0.76	0.77	0.81	0.16	0.98
Noninterest expense to average assets	3.14	3.00	3.10	2.91	3.15
Efficiency ratio (e)	77.56	71.95	76.36	73.02	85.89

(a) Exclusive of net gains (losses) on sales and impairment of investment securities and net gains (losses) on sales of loans and foreclosed real estate.

(b) Exclusive of regulatory assessments.

(c) Tangible equity excludes intangible assets.

(d) The dividend payout ratio is calculated using dividends declared and not waived by the Mutual Holding Company, divided by net income.

(e) The efficiency ratio is calculated as noninterest expense, including regulatory assessments, divided by the sum of taxable-equivalent net interest income and noninterest income excluding net gains (losses) on sales, redemptions and impairment of investment securities and net gains (losses) on sales of loans and foreclosed real estate.

# LETTER TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS



Thomas W. Schneider, President and CEO

Janette Resnick Chairman of the Board

### We are pleased to present our Annual Report to Shareholders for 2011.

In the past year, we have seen continued strong growth in loans, deposits and market reach. Earnings, however, were below last year's record highs, primarily due to increased costs commensurate with our growth and by lower asset yields.

Net income of \$2.3 million was down 7.2% from the prior year. Total loans grew by \$19.5 million, or 6.8%, while total deposits increased by \$39.6 million, or 12.1%. We believe that our strong growth, on both sides of the balance sheet, is a key indication of our importance to customers in the markets we serve and a key determinant of our future franchise value.

On a national level in banking, as credit issues are being resolved or worked through, the continued and prevailing lowering of interest rates presents the greatest challenge to future earnings growth. The Federal Reserve Board's aggressive monetary policy stance to enhance economic growth, particularly its three rounds of quantitative easing, has resulted in unprecedented levels of low interest rates.

It is difficult to understand the aggressiveness of this monetary policy approach, particularly given that prudent fiscal policy would have far greater impact without the inflationary risk.

However, the results of this policy are clear. Asset yields will continue to be pressured downward, resulting in lower net interest margins.

#### EXPANDING MARKET REACH

In February 2011, we opened our 8th branch office in Cicero, NY, our first in Onondaga County. The results to date have far exceeded our projections and expectations. At December 31, 2011, total deposits stood at \$36.4 million, with \$21.7 million in retail deposits and \$14.7 in business deposits. Our early success in this new market is attributable to the following:

- Good location selection.
- Acquiring the right talent for the market.
- Strong brand development and promotions, as well as the introduction and customer adoption of our Remote Deposit Capture Solution.
- Having pent up demand from lending strongly within the greater Syracuse market over the last 5 years.

One of our primary strategic objectives is to grow our franchise in the more densely populated Onondaga County market, particularly the greater Syracuse market. The greater Syracuse market is a natural extension of our Oswego based franchise. The focal point of these efforts is small business lending and their related deposits. While there are a large number of banks serving this market, the majority are large regional or national banks which: a) do not focus as strongly on the size of businesses we serve, and; b) cannot provide the local decision making and senior management access that we provide. There are only a few community banks serving this market and we have demonstrated the ability to compete effectively and gain share of this market. Our strategies include: 1) a targeted focus on certain business sizes and sectors, 2) the establishment of relationships with key centers of influence, and, 3) the acquisition of talented bankers who have been serving this market.

Towards this latter end, we recently hired Calvin Corriders as a Vice President and Sales Manager. Calvin has been a banker in the greater Syracuse market for over 26 years, working in both the branch systems and most recently as a senior commercial lender at large banks and community banks. Calvin is highly regarded, has served as a volunteer on a number of community organizations including the Syracuse School District Board, and will help us to further our penetration into a market that has helped us to grow our loan portfolio at an 8.5% constant annual rate over the last years and our deposits at a 9.1% annual rate over the same time period.

#### LOAN GROWTH

We remain focused on serving the loan needs of the residents, consumers and businesses in the markets in which we operate. Our residential mortgage portfolio grew by \$15.1 million, or 10.2%, while our commercial loan portfolio grew by \$4.8 million, or 4.4%.

The growth rates continue a stable and positive trend of organic growth and balance sheet diversification.

#### **BRANCH FRANCHISE**

Pathfinder Bank has established a very strong branch network within our market area that continues to gain market share.



#### BOARD SUCCESSION

The Board of Directors of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. has been working on its own succession plans over the past 3 years in anticipation of the retirement of Board members in upcoming years. The Governance Committee and the Boards objectives have been to provide for continuity of governance and strategy, while enhancing the Board's skill sets, and better representing our expanding geographic markets.

Toward this end, in the third quarter of 2011, the Board appointed John Funiciello, President of JF Real Estate, to fill the seat vacated by Steven Thomas who has moved out of the Bank's market area. Mr. Thomas played an integral role in the Bank's development over the prior 11 years. Mr. Thomas' primary areas of expertise were commercial real estate and development. Mr. Funiciello possesses these same skills with a concentration based more in Onondaga County.

Mr. Funiciello's firm is located in downtown Syracuse and owns significant commercial property in and around the City of Syracuse.



In January 2012, the Board appointed David Ayoub, CPA as a member of the Board of Pathfinder Bank. Mr. Ayoub is the Managing Tax Partner at Bowers and Company, LLC, a public accounting firm headquartered in Syracuse NY. Mr. Ayoub is a Certified Public Accountant in New York State with over 25 years of accounting and taxation experience. He consults small business clients on corporate mergers and acquisitions, as well as tax and financial planning.

2009

2010

2011

2008

\$200,000

2007

These appointments, together with the 2010 appointment of Mr. Will Barclay, a New York State Assemblyman and Partner in the law firm Hiscock & Barclay, provide the Bank greater institutional knowledge in the greater Syracuse market and a significant source of additional business contacts.



The Board of Directors of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc



Senior Management Team of Pathfinder Bank

#### PARTICIPATION IN THE SMALL BUSINESS LENDING FUND

In September 2011, Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. was approved by the US Treasury Department to participate in the Small Business Lending Fund (SBLF) enacted as part of the Small Business Act of 2008. The fund, established as part of the Act, was to provide capital to community banks, in the form of preferred stock, to promote small business lending. Capital from the fund could also be used to redeem preferred stock issued by the Treasury as part of the Capital Purchase Plan (CPP).

On September 1st 2011, Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. closed on the transaction receiving \$13 million in capital through the issuance of preferred stock to Treasury. \$6.7 million of this amount was used to redeem preferred shares from the Treasury issued as part of the CPP.

The dividend rate on SBLF shares begins at the same 5% that was being paid on CPP, but can be reduced to as low as 1% based upon the rate of growth of qualified small business loans. Small business lending is a natural and important component of Pathfinder Bank's Strategic Plan and applying our recent year's business growth rates to the incented qualified lending; we should attain and retain the lowest dividend rate during 2012. The emphasis of our leverage and deployment of the \$7 million in new capital will be in the origination of small business loans. Each \$1 million in additional capital will allow us to grow our small business portfolio by \$8 to \$10 million.

#### **CUSTOMER, CAPITAL, COSTS**

As we move forward over the next few years, the unusually low interest rate economy will continue to challenge revenue growth. As core components of our strategic plan, we will remain focused on the following Three "C"'s:

#### CUSTOMER

The ability to grow core deposits and loans, at market pricing, will be the largest determinant of revenue growth. We are focused - not on the acquisition of other banks - but on the acquisition of customers. Market consolidation and large bank realignment will cause many consumers and businesses to re-evaluate their business relationships. The key elements of winning this battle for customers will be:

*Our employees* – Establishing strong professional relationships with our customers and acquiring those key people who have strong relationships in the market, is critical to our success.

Service – maintaining a strong customer centric service culture and measuring our service levels is essential to acquiring and retaining customers.

*Brand* – continuing to enhance and expand our brand recognition as a local community bank will keep us foremost in the minds of consumers and businesses.

*Community Support* – living our message as a community bank means being involved in the community. We have over 40 employees who provide support and leadership to local civic, social and economic development organizations throughout the markets we serve.

#### CAPITAL

Growth of, and access to capital is essential to be able to expand our balance sheet and our market reach. We continually model forward and stress test our capital against changing environments to ensure that we maintain the capital to support our growth and allow us to be opportunistic.

We also closely monitor the market and its developments as it relates to mutual holding company's and community banks relative to their capital raising capabilities.

#### COST

While we believe it is essential to continue to invest in talent, technology, market research, and regulatory readiness, we must balance these costs and make certain that they correlate properly to revenue growth.

Although the current economy poses many challenges, it will also offer many opportunities. We believe that we have the talent in governance, management and staff to be successful and provide value to our shareholders, our customers, our communities and our employees. We appreciate your support and look forward to our future together.

the ferrice A shail

Janette Resnick Chairman of the Board

Thomas W. Schneider, President and CEO





# Pathfinder Bank is My Bank.

2011 FINANCIAL REVIEW

#### **UNITED STATES** SECURITIES EXCHANGE COMMISSION Washington, D.C. 20549 **FORM 10-K**

#### ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 $\mathbf{X}$

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011.

 $\square$ TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 For the transition period from

to

Commission file number: 000-23601

#### **PATHFINDER BANCORP, INC.**

or

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Federal (State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)

#### 214 West First Street

Oswego, NY (Address of principal executive offices)

Registrant's telephone number, including area code: (315) 343-0057

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

Title of each class Common Stock, \$0.01 par value

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act. YES  $\square$  NO

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Act. YES NO

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. YES 🗵 NO 🗌

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate website, if any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). YES 🗵 NO 🗌

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K (§229.405 of this chapter) is not contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant's knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company. See definitions of "large accelerated filer," "accelerated filer" and "smaller reporting company" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filer  $\Box$ Accelerated filer Non-accelerated filer  $\Box$ Smaller reporting company (Do not check if a smaller reporting company)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act). YES  $\Box$  NO  $\boxtimes$ 

The aggregate market value of the voting and non-voting common equity held by non-affiliates of the Registrant, computed by reference to the last sale price on June 30, 2011, as reported by the NASDAQ Capital Market, was approximately \$8.0 million.

As of March 16, 2012, there were 2,617,682 shares outstanding of the Registrant's Common Stock.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE:

(1) Proxy Statement for the 2012 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of the Registrant (Part III).

(2) Annual Report to Stockholders (Part II and IV).

16-1540137 (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

> 13126 (Zip Code)

Name of each exchange on which registered

The NASDAQ Stock Market LLC

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

#### FORM 10-K ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 PATHFINDER BANCORP, INC.

Page

PART I		
Item 1.	Business	3
Item 1A.	Risk Factors	15
Item 1B.	Unresolved Staff Comments	15
Item 2.	Properties	16
Item 3.	Legal Proceedings	17
PART II		
Item 5.	Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities	17
Item 6.	Selected Financial Data	18
Item 7.	Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations	19
Item 7A.	Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk	35
Item 8.	Financial Statements and Supplementary Data	36
Item 9.	Changes In and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure	91
Item 9A.	Controls and Procedures	92
Item 9B.	Other Information	92
PART III		
Item 10.	Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance	93
Item 11.	Executive Compensation	93
Item 12.	Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters	93
Item 13.	Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence	93
Item 14.	Principal Accounting Fees and Services	93
PART IV		
Item 15.	Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules	94

## PART I

#### FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

When used in this Annual Report the words or phrases "will likely result", "are expected to", "will continue", "is anticipated", "estimate", "project" or similar expression are intended to identify "forward-looking statements" within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Such statements are subject to certain risks and uncertainties. By identifying these forward-looking statements for you in this manner, the Company is alerting you to the possibility that its actual results and financial condition may differ, possibly materially, from the anticipated results and financial condition indicated in these forward-looking statements. Important factors that could cause the Company's actual results and financial condition to differ from those indicated in the forward-looking statements include, among others:

- Credit quality and the effect of credit quality on the adequacy of our allowance for loan losses
- Deterioration in financial markets that may result in impairment charges relating to our securities portfolio
- Competition in our primary market areas
- Significant government regulations, legislation and potential changes thereto
- A reduction in our ability to generate or originate revenue-producing assets as a result of compliance with heightened capital standards
- Increased cost of operations due to greater regulatory oversight, supervision and examination of banks and bank holding companies, and higher deposit insurance premiums
- Limitations on our ability to expand consumer product and service offerings due to anticipated stricter consumer protection laws and regulations
- Other risks described herein and in the other reports and statements we file with the SEC

These risks and uncertainties should be considered in evaluating forward-looking statements and undue reliance should not be placed on such statements. The Company wishes to caution readers not to place undue reliance on any such forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date made. The Company wishes to advise readers that the factors listed above could affect the Company's financial performance and could cause the Company's actual results for future periods to differ materially from any opinions or statements expressed with respect to future periods in any current statements. Additionally, all statements in this document, including forward-looking statements, speak only as of the date they are made, and the Company undertakes no obligation to update any statement in light of new information or future events.

#### **ITEM 1: BUSINESS**

#### GENERAL

#### Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc.

Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. (the "Company") is a federally chartered mid-tier holding company headquartered in Oswego, New York. The primary business of the Company is its investment in Pathfinder Bank (the "Bank"). The Company is majority owned by Pathfinder Bancorp, M.H.C., a federally-chartered mutual holding company (the "Mutual Holding Company"). At December 31, 2011, the Mutual Holding Company held 1,583,239 shares of the Company's common stock ("Common Stock"), the public and the Employee Stock Ownership Plan ("ESOP"), collectively, held 1,034,443 shares (the "Minority Stockholders"). At December 31, 2011, Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiaries had total assets of \$443.0 million, total deposits of \$366.1 million and shareholders' equity of \$37.8 million.

The Company's executive office is located at 214 West First Street, Oswego, New York and the telephone number at that address is (315) 343-0057.

#### Pathfinder Bank

The Bank is a New York-chartered savings bank headquartered in Oswego, New York. The Bank operates from eight branch offices located in its market area consisting of Oswego County, Onondaga County and the contiguous counties. The eighth branch was added in Onondaga County in Cicero, New York and opened to the public on February 1, 2011. The Bank's deposits are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC"). The Bank was chartered as a New York savings bank in 1859 as Oswego City Savings Bank. The Bank is a customer-oriented institution dedicated to providing mortgage loans and other traditional financial services to its customers. The Bank is committed to meeting the financial needs of its customers in Oswego County and Onondaga County, New York, and the contiguous counties.

The Bank is primarily engaged in the business of attracting deposits from the general public in the Bank's market area, and investing such deposits, together with other sources of funds, in loans secured by one- to four-family residential real estate, commercial real estate, small business loans, and consumer loans. The Bank invests a portion of its assets in securities issued by the United States Government and its agencies and sponsored enterprises, state and municipal obligations, corporate debt securities, mutual funds, and equity securities. The Bank also invests in mortgage-backed securities primarily issued or guaranteed by United States Government sponsored enterprises. The Bank's principal sources of funds are deposits, principal and interest payments on loans and investments, as well as borrowings from correspondent financial institutions. The principal source of income is interest on loans and investment securities. The Bank's principal expenses are interest paid on deposits, employee compensation and benefits, data processing and facilities.

Pathfinder Bank also operates through a limited purpose commercial bank subsidiary, Pathfinder Commercial Bank, which serves the depository needs of municipalities and public entities in its market area.

The Bank has Pathfinder REIT, Inc., a New York corporation, as its wholly-owned real estate investment trust subsidiary. At December 31, 2011, Pathfinder REIT, Inc. held \$28.1 million in mortgages and mortgage related assets. All disclosures in this Form 10-K relating to the Bank's loans and investments include loans and investments that are held by Pathfinder REIT, Inc.

The Bank also has 100% ownership in Whispering Oaks Development Corp., a New York corporation, which is retained in case the need to operate or develop foreclosed real estate emerges.

Additionally, the Bank has 100% ownership in Pathfinder Risk Management Company, Inc. which was established to record the 51% controlling interest upon the purchase of the Fitzgibbons Agency, an Oswego County property and casualty and life and health insurance business with \$400,000 in annual revenues. The Company has received all required regulatory approvals and, pending the completion of the final stages of due diligence to affirm the purchase price allocation, this transaction is targeted to close in the early part of the second quarter of 2012.

Finally, the Company has a non-consolidated Delaware statutory trust subsidiary, Pathfinder Statutory Trust II, of which 100% of the common equity is owned by the Company. Pathfinder Statutory Trust II was formed in connection with the issuance of trust preferred securities.

#### Employees

As of December 31, 2011, the Bank had 100 full-time employees and 19 part-time employees. The employees are not represented by a collective bargaining unit and we consider our relationship with our employees to be good.

#### MARKET AREA AND COMPETITION

The economy in the Bank's market area is manufacturing-oriented and is also significantly dependent upon the State University of New York College at Oswego. The major manufacturing employers in the Bank's market area are Entergy Nuclear Northeast, Novelis, Constellation, NRG and Huhtamaki. The Bank is the largest depository institution headquartered in Oswego County. The Bank's business and operating results are significantly affected by the general economic conditions prevalent in its market areas.

The Bank encounters strong competition both in attracting deposits and in originating real estate and other loans. Its most direct competition for deposits comes from commercial banks, savings banks, savings associations and credit unions in its market area. Competition for loans comes from such financial institutions as well as mortgage banking companies. The Bank competes for deposits by offering depositors a high level of personal service, a wide range of competitively priced financial services, and a strong network of branches, ATMs, and electronic banking. The Bank competes for real estate loans primarily through the interest rates and loan fees it charges and advertising, as well as by originating and holding in its portfolio mortgage loans which do not necessarily conform to secondary market underwriting standards. The turmoil in the residential mortgage sector of the United States economy has caused certain competitors to be less effective in the market place. While Central New York did not experience the level of speculative lending and borrowing in residential real estate that has adversely affected other regions on a national basis, certain mortgage brokers and finance companies in our area are either no longer operating, or have limited aggressive lending practices. Additionally, as certain money centers and large regional banks grapple with current economic conditions and the related credit crisis, their ability to compete as effectively has been reduced. Management believes that these conditions have created a window of reduced competition for local community and regional banks in residential loans, and to a lesser extent, commercial real estate and small business loans. Of course, there are others, including tax-exempt credit unions, which are aggressively taking advantage of that window.

#### **REGULATION AND SUPERVISION**

#### General

The Bank is a New York-chartered stock savings bank and its deposit accounts are insured up to applicable limits by the FDIC through the Deposit Insurance Fund ("DIF"). The Bank is subject to extensive regulation by the New York State Department of Financial Services (the "Department"), as its chartering agency, and by the FDIC, as its deposit insurer and primary federal regulator. The Bank is required to file reports with, and is periodically examined by, the FDIC and the Department concerning its activities and financial condition and must obtain regulatory approvals prior to entering into certain transactions, including, but not limited to, mergers with or acquisitions of other banking institutions. The Bank is a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York ("FHLBNY") and is subject to certain regulations by the Federal Home Loan Bank System.

The Company and the Mutual Holding Company are federally chartered and up until July 21, 2011, were subject to the regulations of the Office of Thrift Supervision ("OTS") as savings and loan holding companies. However, under the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (the "Dodd-Frank Act"), which is discussed further below, the OTS's functions relating to savings and loan holding companies were thereafter transferred to the Federal Reserve Board. The Company and the MHC are regulated as of the above date by the Federal Reserve Bank of Philadelphia.

Regulatory requirements applicable to the Bank, the Company and the Mutual Holding Company are referred to below or elsewhere herein. This description of statutory and regulatory provisions does not purport to be a complete description of all such statutes and regulations applicable to the MHC, the Company, or the Bank. Any change in these laws or regulations, whether by Congress or the applicable regulatory agencies, could have a material adverse impact on the Bank, the Company or the Mutual Holding Company.

#### **Dodd-Frank Act**

The Dodd-Frank Act has and will significantly change the current bank regulatory structure and affect the lending, investment, trading and operating activities of financial institutions and their holding companies. The Dodd-Frank Act has changed the current primary federal regulator of the Company and the Mutual Holding Company from the OTS to the Federal Reserve Board. Under the Dodd-Frank Act, the Federal Reserve Board now supervises and regulates all savings and loan holding companies, such as the Company and the Mutual Holding Company. As a result, the Federal Reserve Board's current regulations applicable to bank holding companies, including holding company capital requirements, apply to savings and loan holding companies like the Company, unless an exemption exists. The bank holding company capital requirements are substantially similar to the capital

requirements currently applicable to the Bank, as described in "Regulatory Capital Requirements." The Dodd-Frank Act also requires the Federal Reserve Board to set minimum capital levels for depository institution holding companies that are as stringent as those required for the insured depository subsidiaries, and the components of Tier 1 capital would be restricted to capital instruments that are currently considered to be Tier 1 capital for insured depository institutions. Under the Dodd-Frank Act, the proceeds of trust preferred securities are excluded from Tier 1 capital unless such securities were issued prior to May 19, 2010 by bank or savings and loan holding companies with less than \$15 billion of assets. The legislation also establishes a floor for capital of insured depository institutions that cannot be lower than the standards in effect today and directs the federal banking regulators to implement new leverage and capital requirements within 18 months. These new leverage and capital requirements must take into account off-balance sheet activities and other risks, including risks relating to securitized products and derivatives. Moreover, the Mutual Holding Company will require the approval of the Federal Reserve Board before it may waive the receipt of any dividends from the Company, and there is no assurance that the Federal Reserve Board will approve future dividend waivers or what conditions it may impose on such waivers. In fact, by adopting Section 239.8(d) of regulation MM of the Interim final rule regarding dividends waived by Mutual Holding Companies, the Federal Reserve has practically assured that Mutual Holding Companies such as Pathfinder Bancorp, MHC will not be able to waive dividend payments from their mid-tier holding companies. See "Federal Holding Company Regulation-Waivers of Dividends by Mutual Holding Company" below.

The Dodd-Frank Act also creates a new Consumer Financial Protection Bureau with broad powers to supervise and enforce consumer protection laws. The Consumer Financial Protection Bureau has broad rule-making authority for a wide range of consumer protection laws that apply to all banks and savings institutions such as Pathfinder Bank, including the authority to prohibit "unfair, deceptive or abusive" acts and practices. The Consumer Financial Protection Bureau has examination and enforcement authority over all banks and savings institutions with more than \$10 billion in assets. Banks and savings institutions with \$10 billion or less in assets will be examined by their applicable bank regulators. The Dodd-Frank Act also provides for regulations requiring originators of certain securitized loans to retain a percentage of the risk for transferred loans, established regulatory rate-setting for certain debit and interchange fees, repealed restrictions on the payment of interest on commercial demand deposits and contained a number of reforms related to mortgage originations. The legislation also weakened the federal preemption available for national banks and federal savings associations, and gives state attorneys general the ability to enforce applicable federal consumer protection laws.

The Dodd-Frank Act broadens the base for Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insurance assessments. Assessments will now be based on the average consolidated total assets less tangible equity capital of a financial institution. The legislation also permanently increases the maximum amount of deposit insurance for banks, savings institutions and credit unions to \$250,000 per depositor, retroactive to January 1, 2008, and non-interest bearing transaction accounts have unlimited deposit insurance through December 31, 2012. The Dodd-Frank Act will increase stockholder influence over boards of directors by requiring companies to give stockholders a non-binding vote on executive compensation and so-called "golden parachute" payments, and authorizing the Securities and Exchange Commission to promulgate rules that would allow stockholders to nominate and solicit votes for their own candidates using a company's own proxy materials. These particular requirements are not imposed on the Company in 2012. The legislation also directs the Federal Reserve Board to promulgate rules prohibiting excessive compensation paid to bank holding company executives, regardless of whether the company is publicly traded or not.

#### New York State Banking Law and FDIC Regulation

The Bank derives its lending, investment and other authority primarily from the applicable provisions of New York State Banking Law and the regulations of the Department, as limited by FDIC regulations. In particular, the applicable provisions of New York State Banking Law and regulations governing the investment authority and activities of an FDIC insured state-chartered savings bank have been substantially limited by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act of 1991 ("FDICIA") and the FDIC regulations issued pursuant thereto. Under these laws and regulations, savings banks, including the Bank, may invest in real estate mortgages, consumer and commercial loans, certain types of debt securities, including certain corporate debt securities and obligations of federal, state and local governments and agencies, certain types of corporate equity securities and certain other assets. New York State chartered savings banks may also invest in subsidiaries under their service corporation investment authority. A savings bank may use this power to invest in corporations that engage in various activities authorized for savings banks, plus any additional activities, which may be authorized by the Banking Board. Under FDICIA and the FDIC's implementation of regulations, the Bank's investment and service corporation activities are limited to activities permissible for a national bank unless the FDIC otherwise permits it.

The FDIC and the Superintendent have broad enforcement authority over the Bank. Under this authority, the FDIC and the Superintendent have the ability to issue formal or informal orders to correct violations of laws or unsafe or unsound banking practices.

#### FDIC Insurance on Deposits

The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, or FDIC, insures deposits at FDIC insured financial institutions such as the Bank. Deposit accounts in the Bank are insured by the FDIC generally up to a maximum of \$250,000 per separately insured depositor and up to a maximum of \$250,000 for self-directed retirement accounts. The FDIC charges the insured financial institutions assessments to maintain the Deposit Insurance Fund.

Under the FDIC's current risk-based assessment system, insured institutions are assigned to one of four risk categories based on supervisory evaluations, regulatory capital levels and certain other risk factors. Assessments are based on the risk category to which an institution is assigned and certain risk adjustments assigned by FDIC regulations.

In February 2011, the FDIC published a final rule under the Dodd-Frank Act to reform the deposit insurance assessment system. The rule redefined the assessment base used for calculating deposit insurance assessments effective April 1, 2011. Under the new rule, assessments are based on an institution's average consolidated total assets minus average tangible equity as opposed to total deposits. Since the new base is much larger than the former base, the FDIC also lowered assessment rates so that the total amount of revenue collected from the industry was not significantly altered. The new range is  $2\frac{1}{2}$  basis points to 45 basis points of total consolidated assets less tangible equity. The new rule benefitted smaller financial institutions, which typically rely more on deposits for funding, and shifts more of the burden for supporting the insurance fund to larger institutions, which have greater access to non-deposit sources of funding. As a result of the change in the assessment base, the Company experienced an approximate 50% reduction in its quarterly assessment charges effective with the second quarter of 2011.

The Dodd-Frank Act also extended the unlimited deposit insurance on non-interest bearing transaction accounts through December 31, 2012. Unlike the FDIC's Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program, the insurance provided under the Dodd-Frank Act does not extend to low-interest NOW accounts, and there is no separate assessment on covered accounts.

In addition to the FDIC assessments, the Financing Corporation ("FICO") is authorized to impose and collect, with the approval of the FDIC, assessments for anticipated payments, issuance costs and custodial fees on bonds issued by the FICO in the 1980s to recapitalize the former Federal Savings and Loan Insurance Corporation. The bonds issued by the FICO are due to mature in 2017 through 2019. During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Bank paid \$31,000 in fees related to the FICO.

Insurance of deposits may be terminated by the FDIC upon a finding that an institution has engaged in unsafe or unsound practices, is in an unsafe or unsound condition to continue operations or has violated any applicable law, regulation, rule, order or condition imposed by the FDIC. We do not currently know of any practice, condition or violation that may lead to termination of our deposit insurance.

#### **Regulatory Capital Requirements**

The FDIC has adopted risk-based capital guidelines to which the Bank is subject. The guidelines establish a systematic analytical framework that makes regulatory capital requirements more sensitive to differences in risk profiles among banking organizations. The Bank is required to maintain certain levels of regulatory capital in

relation to regulatory risk-weighted assets. The ratio of such regulatory capital to regulatory risk-weighted assets is referred to as the Bank's "risk-based capital ratio." Risk-based capital ratios are determined by allocating assets and specified off-balance sheet items to four risk-weighted categories ranging from 0% to 100%, with higher levels of capital being required for the categories perceived as representing greater risk.

These guidelines divide a savings bank's capital into two tiers. The first tier ("Tier I") includes common equity, retained earnings, certain non-cumulative perpetual preferred stock (excluding auction rate issues) and minority interests in equity accounts of consolidated subsidiaries, less goodwill and other intangible assets (except mortgage servicing rights and purchased credit card relationships subject to certain limitations). Supplementary ("Tier II") capital includes, among other items, Tier 1 capital, cumulative perpetual and long-term limited-life preferred stock, mandatory convertible securities, certain hybrid capital instruments, term subordinated debt and the allowance for loan and lease losses, subject to certain limitations, less required deductions. Savings banks are required to maintain a total risk-based capital ratio of at least 8%, and a Tier I risk based capital level of at least 4%.

In addition, the FDIC has established regulations prescribing a minimum Tier I leverage ratio (Tier I capital to adjusted total average assets as specified in the regulations). These regulations provide for a minimum Tier I leverage ratio of 3% for banks that meet certain specified criteria, including that they have the highest examination rating and are not experiencing or anticipating significant growth. All other banks are required to maintain a Tier I leverage ratio of at least 4%. The FDIC may, however, set higher leverage and risk-based capital requirements on individual institutions when particular circumstances warrant. Savings banks experiencing or anticipating significant growth are expected to maintain capital ratios, including tangible capital positions, well above the minimum levels.

#### SBLF Participation

As disclosed in the Company's 8-K filing of September 6, 2011, on September 1, 2011, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement with the Secretary of the Treasury ("Treasury") pursuant to which the Company sold to the Treasury, 13,000 shares of its Senior Non-Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock, Series B ("Series B Preferred Stock"), having a liquidation preference of \$1,000 per share for aggregate proceeds of \$13,000,000. This transaction was entered into as part of the Treasury's Small Business Lending Fund Program ("SBLF"). In connection therewith, the Company redeemed all 6,771 shares of its Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock, Series A ("Series A Preferred Stock") it sold to the Treasury on September 11, 2009 in connection with the Treasury's Capital Purchase Program ("CPP"). The Company paid \$6,786,045 to the Treasury to redeem the Series A Preferred Stock, which included the original investment of \$6,771,000, plus accrued dividends. In addition, as disclosed in our 8-K filed February 1, 2012, on said date, the Company repurchased from Treasury, a warrant (the "Warrant") to purchase 154,354 shares of the Company's common stock at an exercise price per share of \$6.58. The Warrant was previously issued to Treasury in connection with the Company's participation in the CPP. The repurchase price of the Warrant was an agreed upon price of \$537,633.

Accordingly, the Company is no longer subject to restrictions of the CPP program. The SBLF program does have its own requirements, which are summarized below:

The Series B Preferred Stock is entitled to receive non-cumulative dividends payable quarterly, on each January 1, April 1, July 1 and October 1, beginning October 1, 2011. The dividend rate, which is calculated on the aggregate Liquidation Amount, was initially set at 4.2% per annum based upon the current level of "Qualified Small Business Lending", or "QSBL" (as defined in the Securities Purchase Agreement) by the Bank. The dividend rate for future dividend periods will be set based upon the "Percentage Change in Qualified Lending" (as defined in the Securities Purchase Agreement) between each dividend period and the "Baseline" QSBL level. Such dividend rate may vary from 1% per annum to 5% per annum for the second through tenth dividend periods, from 1% per annum to 7% per annum for the eleventh through the first half of the nineteenth dividend rate will be fixed at 9%. Prior to that time, in general, the dividend rate decreases as the level of the Bank's QSBL increases. The Company's dividend rate as of the date of this report is 3.56%. Such dividends are not cumulative, but the Company may only declare and pay dividends on its common stock (or any other equity securities junior to the Series B Preferred Stock) if it has declared and paid dividends for the current dividend period on the Series B Preferred Stock, and will be subject

to other restrictions on its ability to repurchase or redeem other securities.

The Company may redeem the shares of Series B Preferred Stock, in whole or in part, at any time at a redemption price equal to the sum of the Liquidation Amount per share and the per-share amount of any unpaid dividends for the then-current period, subject to any required prior approval by the Company's primary federal banking regulator.

The Company's ability to pay common stock dividends is conditional on payment of the Series B Preferred Stock Dividends described above. In addition, the SBLF program requires the Company to file quarterly reports on QSBL lending reported on by its Auditor annually. The Company must also outreach and advertise the availability of QSBL to organizations and individuals who represent minorities, woman and veterans. The Company must annually certify that no business loans are made to principals of businesses who have been convicted of a sex crime against a minor. Finally, the SBLF program requires the Company to file quarterly, annual and other reports provided to shareholders concurrently with the Treasury.

#### Limitations on Dividends and Other Capital Distributions

The FDIC has the authority to use its enforcement powers to prohibit a savings bank from paying dividends if, in its opinion, the payment of dividends would constitute an unsafe or unsound practice. Federal law also prohibits the payment of dividends by a bank that will result in the bank failing to meet its applicable capital requirements on a pro forma basis. New York law also restricts the Bank from declaring a dividend that would reduce its capital below the amount that is required to be maintained by state law and regulation. The Bank is also subject to dividend notification requirements to the Federal Reserve Board by virtue of the Company being a savings and loan holding company. The Federal Reserve Board may object to a proposed dividend if the Bank will become undercapitalized or the dividend is deemed to be unsafe or unsound or violate a law, regulation or order.

Since the Company has chosen to participate in the Treasury's SBLF program, it is permitted to pay dividends on its common stock provided certain Tier 1 capital minimums are exceeded and SBLF dividends have been declared and paid to Treasury as of the most recent dividend period.

#### **Prompt Corrective Action**

The federal banking agencies have promulgated regulations to implement the system of prompt corrective action required by federal law. Under the regulations, a bank shall be deemed to be (i) "well capitalized" if it has total risk-based capital of 10% or more, has a Tier I risk-based capital ratio of 6% or more, has a Tier I leverage capital ratio of 5% or more and is not subject to any written capital order or directive; (ii) "adequately capitalized" if it has a total risk based capital ratio of 8% or more, a Tier I risk-based capital ratio of 4% or more and a Tier I leverage capital ratio of 4% or more (3% under certain circumstances) and does not meet the definition of "well capitalized"; (iii) "undercapitalized" if it has a total risk-based capital ratio that is less than 8%, a Tier I risk-based capital ratio that is less than 4% or a Tier I leverage capital ratio that is less than 4% (3% under certain circumstances); (iv) "significantly undercapitalized" if it has a total risk-based capital ratio that is less than 6%, a Tier I risk-based capital ratio that is less than 3%; and (v) "critically undercapitalized" if it has a ratio of tangible equity to total assets that is equal to or less than 2%. Federal law and regulations also specify circumstances under which a federal banking agency may reclassify a well capitalized institution as adequately capitalized and may require an adequately capitalized institution to comply with supervisory actions as if it were in the next lower category (except that the FDIC may not reclassify a significantly undercapitalized.

The FDIC may order savings banks that have insufficient capital to take corrective actions. For example, a savings bank that is categorized as "undercapitalized" would be subject to growth limitations, could generally not make capital distributions, including paying dividends, and would be required to submit an acceptable capital restoration plan. A holding company that controls such a savings bank would be required to guarantee that the savings bank complies with the restoration plan in an amount of up to the lesser of 5% of the institution's total assets or the amount of capital needed for the institution to achieve compliance with regulatory capital requirements. A "significantly undercapitalized" savings bank would be subject to additional restrictions. Savings banks deemed

by the FDIC to be "critically undercapitalized" would be subject to the appointment of a receiver or conservator within specified time frames.

The Bank currently meets the criteria to be classified as a "well capitalized" savings institution.

#### Transactions with Affiliates and Insiders

Under current federal law, transactions between depository institutions and their affiliates are governed by Sections 23A and 23B of the Federal Reserve Act and its implementing regulations. An affiliate of a savings bank is any company or entity that controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with the savings bank, other than a subsidiary of the savings bank. In a holding company context, at a minimum, the parent holding company of a savings bank, and any companies that are controlled by such parent holding company, are affiliates of the savings bank. Generally, Section 23A limits the extent to which the savings bank or its subsidiaries may engage in "covered transactions" with any one affiliate to an amount equal to 10% of such savings bank's capital stock and surplus and contains an aggregate limit on all such transactions with all affiliates to an amount equal to 20% of such capital stock and surplus. The term "covered transaction" includes the making of loans or other extensions of credit to an affiliate, the purchase of assets from an affiliate, an investment in the securities of an affiliate, the acceptance of securities of an affiliate as collateral for a loan or extension of credit, the issuance of a guarantee, acceptance, or letter of credit on behalf of an affiliate and certain other transactions resulting in credit exposure to an affiliate. Section 23A also establishes specific collateral requirements for certain transactions such as loans or extensions of credit to, or guarantees, acceptances on letters of credit issued on behalf of an affiliate. Section 23B requires that covered transactions and a broad list of other specified transactions be on terms substantially the same, or no less favorable, to the savings bank or its subsidiary as similar transactions with nonaffiliates.

Further, Section 22(h) of the Federal Reserve Act and its implementing regulations restrict a savings bank with respect to loans to directors, executive officers, and principal stockholders. Under Section 22(h), loans to directors, executive officers and stockholders who control, directly or indirectly, 10% or more of voting securities of a savings bank and certain related interests of any of the foregoing, may not exceed, together with all other outstanding loans to such persons and affiliated entities, the savings bank's total unimpaired capital and unimpaired surplus. Section 22(h) also prohibits loans above amounts prescribed by the appropriate federal banking agency to directors, executive officers, and stockholders who control 10% or more of voting securities of a stock savings bank, and their respective related interests, unless such loan is approved in advance by a majority of the board of directors of the savings bank. Any "interested" director may not participate in the voting. Further, pursuant to Section 22(h), loans to directors, executive officers and principal stockholders must generally be made on terms substantially the same as offered in comparable transactions to other persons. Section 22(g) of the Federal Reserve Act places additional limitations on loans to executive officers.

#### Supervisory Agreement

During May 2009, the Company entered into a Supervisory Agreement with the OTS. The agreement was issued in connection with the identification of certain violations of applicable statutory and regulatory restrictions on capital distributions and transactions with affiliates. As a result of the identified violations, the Company recorded \$41,000 of income relating to certain transactions with its unconsolidated parent company Pathfinder Bancorp, MHC. In addition the Company is prohibited from accepting or directing Pathfinder Bank to declare or pay a dividend or other capital distributions without the prior written approval of the OTS. With the change in our Holding Company regulator to the Federal Reserve Board, this Supervisory Agreement is now with that Regulator. All violations have been corrected and the Company believes it is in compliance with the Agreement.

#### Federal Holding Company Regulation

*General*. The Company and the Mutual Holding Company are nondiversified savings and loan holding companies within the meaning of the Home Owners' Loan Act. The Company and the Mutual Holding Company are registered with the Federal Reserve Board and are subject to Federal Reserve Board regulations, examinations,

supervision and reporting requirements. As such, the Federal Reserve Board has enforcement authority over the Company and the Mutual Holding Company, and their non-savings institution subsidiaries. Among other things, this authority permits the Federal Reserve Board to restrict or prohibit activities that are determined to be a serious risk to the subsidiary savings institution. The Federal Reserve Board assumed regulatory authority over savings and loan holding companies from OTS on July 21, 2011, pursuant to the Dodd-Frank Act. See "The Dodd-Frank Act" above.

Permitted Activities. Under federal regulation and policy, a mutual holding company and a federally chartered mid-tier holding company, such as the Company, may engage in the following activities: (i) investing in the stock of a savings association; (ii) acquiring a mutual association through the merger of such association into a savings association subsidiary of such holding company or an interim savings association subsidiary of such holding company; (iii) merging with or acquiring another holding company, one of whose subsidiaries is a savings association; (iv) investing in a corporation, the capital stock of which is available for purchase by a savings association under federal law or under the law of any state where the subsidiary savings association or associations share their home offices; (v) furnishing or performing management services for a savings association subsidiary of such company; (vi) holding, managing or liquidating assets owned or acquired from a savings subsidiary of such company; (vii) holding or managing properties used or occupied by a savings association subsidiary of such company; (viii) acting as trustee under deeds of trust; (ix) any other activity that (A) has been deemed to be permissible for bank holding companies under Section 4(c) of the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, unless the Federal Reserve Board, by regulation, prohibits or limits any such activity for savings and loan holding companies; or (B) in which multiple savings and loan holding companies were authorized (by regulation) to directly engage in March 5, 1987; (x) any activity permissible for financial holding companies under Section 4(k) of the Bank Holding Company Act (provided certain criteria are met), including securities and insurance underwriting; and (xi) purchasing, holding, or disposing of stock acquired in connection with a qualified stock issuance if the purchase of such stock by such savings and loan holding company is approved by the Federal Reserve Board. If a mutual holding company acquires or merges with another holding company, the holding company acquired or the holding company resulting from such merger or acquisition may only invest in assets and engage in activities listed in (i) through (xi) above, and has a period of two years to cease any nonconforming activities and divest of any nonconforming investments.

The Home Owners' Loan Act prohibits a savings and loan holding company, directly or indirectly, or through one or more subsidiaries, from acquiring another savings association or holding company thereof, without prior written approval of the Federal Reserve Board. It also prohibits the acquisition or retention of, with certain exceptions, more than 5% of a nonsubsidiary savings association, a nonsubsidiary holding company, or a nonsubsidiary company engaged in activities other than those permitted by the Home Owners' Loan Act; or acquiring or retaining control of an institution that is not federally insured. In evaluating applications by holding companies to acquire savings associations, the Federal Reserve Board must consider the financial and managerial resources, future prospects of the company and association involved, the effect of the acquisition on the risk to the insurance fund, the convenience and needs of the community and competitive factors.

The Federal Reserve Board is prohibited from approving any acquisition that would result in a multiple savings and loan holding company controlling savings associations in more than one state, subject to two exceptions: (i) the approval of interstate supervisory acquisitions by savings and loan holding companies, and (ii) the acquisition of a savings institution in another state if the laws of the state of the target savings institution specifically permit such acquisitions. The states vary in the extent to which they permit interstate savings and loan holding company acquisitions.

Unlike bank holding companies, savings and loan holding companies are not currently subject to specific consolidated regulatory capital requirements. The Dodd-Frank Act, however, requires the promulgation of such capital requirements for depository institution holding companies that are no less stringent, both quantitatively and in terms of components of capital, than those applicable to institutions themselves. That will eliminate the inclusion of certain instruments from tier 1 capital that are currently includable for bank holding companies, such as trust preferred securities. Instruments issued before May 19, 2010, by holding companies with fewer than \$15 billion in total assets on December 3, 2009 are grandfathered. There is a five year transition period from the July 21, 2010 date of enactment of the Dodd-Frank Act before the capital requirements will apply to savings and loan

holding companies. The Dodd-Frank Act exempted bank holding companies of less than \$500 million in assets from such consolidated requirements but does not specifically do so with respect to savings and loan holding companies. The Federal Reserve Board has not yet issued such regulations.

The Dodd-Frank Act extended the "source of strength" doctrine to savings and loan holding companies. The regulatory agencies must promulgate regulations implementing the "source of strength" policy that requires holding companies act as a source of strength to their subsidiary depository institutions by providing capital, liquidity and other support in times of financial stress.

The Federal Reserve Board has issued a policy statement regarding the payment of dividends and other capital distributions by bank holding companies that it has made applicable to savings and loan holding companies as well. In general, the policy provides that dividends should be paid only out of current earnings and only if the prospective rate of earnings retention by the holding company appears consistent with the organization's capital needs, asset quality and overall financial condition. Regulatory guidance provides for prior regulatory review of capital distributions in certain circumstances such as where the company's net income for the past three years, net of dividends previously paid over that period, is insufficient to fully fund the dividend or the company's overall rate of earnings retention is inconsistent with the company's capital needs and overall financial condition. The ability of a holding company to pay dividends may be restricted if a subsidiary depository institution becomes undercapitalized. These regulatory policies could affect the ability of the Company to pay dividends, repurchase shares of common stock or otherwise engage in capital distributions.

Waivers of Dividends by Mutual Holding Company. The Dodd-Frank Act requires federally-chartered mutual holding companies to give the Federal Reserve Board notice before waiving the receipt of dividends, and provides that in the case of "grandfathered" mutual holding companies, like the Mutual Holding Company, the Federal Reserve Board "may not object" to a dividend waiver if the board of directors of the mutual holding company waiving dividends determines that the waiver: (i) would not be detrimental to the safe and sound operation of the subsidiary savings bank; and (ii) is consistent with the board's fiduciary duties to members of the mutual holding company. To qualify as a grandfathered mutual holding company, a mutual holding company must have been formed, issued stock and waived dividends prior to December 1, 2009. The Dodd-Frank Act further provides that the Federal Reserve Board may not consider waived dividends in determining an appropriate exchange ratio upon the conversion of a grandfathered mutual holding company to stock form. In September 2011, however, the Federal Reserve Board issued an interim final rule that also requires, as a condition to waiving dividends, that each mutual holding company obtain the approval of a majority of the eligible votes of its members within 12 months prior to the declaration of the dividend being waived. The Federal Reserve Board has requested comments on the interim final rule, and there can be no assurance that the rule will be amended to eliminate or modify the member vote requirement for dividend waivers by grandfathered mutual holding companies, such as the Mutual Holding Company in the future, or as to what conditions the Federal Reserve Board may place on any dividend waivers. The Mutual Holding Company has not requested a current dividend waiver and, is not planning to waive future dividends at this time.

*Conversion of the Mutual Holding Company to Stock Form*. Federal regulations permit the Mutual Holding Company to convert from the mutual form of organization to the capital stock form of organization (a "Conversion Transaction"). There can be no assurance when, if ever, a Conversion Transaction will occur, and the Board of Directors has no current intention or plan to undertake a Conversion Transaction. In a Conversion Transaction a new holding company would be formed as the successor to the Company (the "New Holding Company"), the Mutual Holding Company's corporate existence would end, and certain depositors of the Bank would receive the right to subscribe for additional shares of the New Holding Company ("Minority Stockholders") would be automatically converted into a number of shares of common stock of the New Holding Company determined pursuant to an exchange ratio (determined by an independent valuation) that ensures that Minority Stockholders own the same percentage of common stock in the New Holding Company as they owned in the Company immediately prior to the Conversion Transaction. The total number of shares held by Minority Stockholders after a Conversion Transaction also would be increased by any purchases by Minority Stockholders in the stock offering conducted as part of the Conversion Transaction.

#### Federal Securities Law

The common stock of the Company is registered with the SEC under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended ("Exchange Act"). The Company is subject to the information, proxy solicitation, insider trading restrictions and other requirements of the SEC under the Exchange Act.

The Company Common Stock held by persons who are affiliates (generally officers, directors and principal stockholders) of the Company may not be resold without registration or unless sold in accordance with certain resale restrictions. If the Company meets specified current public information requirements, each affiliate of the Company is able to sell in the public market, without registration, a limited number of shares in any three-month period.

#### Federal Reserve System

The Federal Reserve Board requires all depository institutions to maintain noninterest-bearing reserves at specified levels against their transaction accounts (primarily checking, money management and NOW checking accounts). At December 31, 2011, the Bank was in compliance with these reserve requirements.

#### Federal Community Reinvestment Regulation

Under the Community Reinvestment Act, as amended (the "CRA"), as implemented by FDIC regulations, a savings bank has a continuing and affirmative obligation, consistent with its safe and sound operation, to help meet the credit needs of its entire community, including low and moderate income neighborhoods. The CRA does not establish specific lending requirements or programs for financial institutions nor does it limit an institution's discretion to develop the types of products and services that it believes are best suited to its particular community, consistent with the CRA. The CRA requires the FDIC, in connection with its examination of a savings institution, to assess the institution's record of meeting the credit needs of its community and to take such record into account in its evaluation of certain applications by such institution. The CRA requires the FDIC to provide a written evaluation of an institution's CRA performance utilizing a four-tiered descriptive rating system. The Bank's latest CRA rating was "satisfactory."

#### New York State Community Reinvestment Regulation

The Bank is subject to provisions of the New York State Banking Law which impose continuing and affirmative obligations upon banking institutions organized in New York State to serve the credit needs of its local community ("NYCRA") which are substantially similar to those imposed by the CRA. Pursuant to the NYCRA, a bank must file an annual NYCRA report and copies of all federal CRA reports with the Department. The NYCRA requires the Department to make a biennial written assessment of a bank's compliance with the NYCRA, utilizing a four-tiered rating system and make such assessment available to the public. The NYCRA also requires the Superintendent to consider a bank's NYCRA rating when reviewing a bank's application to engage in certain transactions, including mergers, asset purchases and the establishment of branch offices or automated teller machines, and provides that such assessment may serve as a basis for the denial of any such application.

The Bank's NYCRA rating as of its latest examination was "satisfactory."

#### The USA PATRIOT Act

The USA PATRIOT Act ("the PATRIOT Act") was signed into law on October 26, 2001. The PATRIOT Act gives the federal government new powers to address terrorist threats through enhanced domestic security measures, expanded surveillance powers, increased information sharing and broadened anti-money laundering requirements. The PATRIOT Act also requires the federal banking agencies to take into consideration the effectiveness of controls designed to combat money laundering activities in determining whether to approve a merger or other acquisition application of a financial institution. Accordingly, if the Company were to engage in a merger or other

acquisitions, its controls designed to combat money laundering would be considered as part of the application process. The Company and the Bank have established policies, procedures and systems designed to comply with these regulations.

#### Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 ("Sarbanes Oxley") was signed into law on July 30, 2002. Sarbanes-Oxley is a law that addresses, among other issues, corporate governance, auditing and accounting, executive compensation, and enhanced and timely disclosure of corporate information. As directed by Section 302(a) of Sarbanes-Oxley, the Company's Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer are each required to certify that the Company's quarterly and annual reports do not contain any untrue statement of a material fact. The rules have several requirements, including having these officers certify that: they are responsible for establishing, maintaining and regularly evaluating the effectiveness of our internal controls; they have made certain disclosures to our auditors and the audit committee of the Board of Directors about our internal controls; and they have included information in our quarterly and annual reports about their evaluation and whether there have been significant changes in our internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the evaluation. As part of the Dodd-Frank Act, the outside auditor attestation requirement on internal controls of companies with less than \$75 million in market capitalization, like the Company, was rescinded. Disclosure of management attestations on internal control over financial reporting will continue to be required for smaller reporting companies, including the Company. We have existing policies, procedures and systems designed to comply with these regulations, and continue to further enhance and document our policies, procedures and systems to ensure continued compliance with these regulations.

#### Securities and Exchange Commission Reporting

The Company maintains an Internet website located at <u>www.pathfinderbank.com</u> on which, among other things, the Company makes available, free of charge, various reports that it files with or furnishes to the Securities and Exchange Commission, including its Annual Report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, and current reports on Form 8-K. These reports are made available as soon as reasonably practicable after these reports are filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission. The Company has also made available on its website its Audit Committee Charter, Compensation Committee Charter, Governance Guidelines (which serve as the Nominating / Governance Committee's charter) and Code of Ethics.

The Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K may be accessed on the Company's website at <u>www.pathfinderbank.com/annualmeeting</u>.

#### FEDERAL AND STATE TAXATION

#### **Federal Taxation**

The following discussion of federal taxation is intended only to summarize certain pertinent federal income tax matters and is not a comprehensive description of the tax rules applicable to the Company or the Bank.

*Bad Debt Reserves*. Prior to the Tax Reform Act of 1996 ("the 1996 Act"), the Bank was permitted to establish a reserve for bad debts and to make annual additions to the reserve. The Bank has chosen to be on the direct charge-off method, net of recoveries, in its calculation of taxable income.

*Taxable Distributions and Recapture*. Prior to the 1996 Act, bad debt reserves created prior to January 1, 1988 were subject to recapture into taxable income should the Bank fail to meet certain thrift asset and definitional tests. New federal legislation eliminated these thrift related recapture rules. However, under current law, pre-1988 reserves remain subject to recapture should the Bank cease to retain a bank or thrift charter or make certain non-dividend distributions.

*Minimum Tax.* The Internal Revenue Code imposes an alternative minimum tax ("AMT") at a rate of 20% on a base of regular taxable income plus certain tax preferences ("alternative minimum taxable income" or "AMTI"). The AMT is payable to the extent such AMTI is in excess of an exemption amount. Net operating losses can offset no more than 90% of AMTI. Certain payments of alternative minimum tax may be used as credits against regular tax liabilities in future years.

*Net Operating Loss Carryovers*. A financial institution may carry back net operating losses to the preceding two taxable years and forward to the succeeding 20 taxable years.

#### State Taxation

*New York Taxation*. The Company is subject to the New York State Franchise Tax on Banking Corporations in an annual amount equal to the greater of (i) 7.1% of the Bank's "entire net income" allocable to New York State during the taxable year, or (ii) the applicable alternative minimum tax. The alternative minimum tax is generally the greater of (a) 0.01% of the value of the Bank's assets allocable to New York State with certain modifications, (b) 3% of the Company's "alternative entire net income" allocable to New York State, or (c) \$1,250. Entire net income is similar to federal taxable income, subject to certain modifications and alternative entire net income is equal to entire net income without certain modifications. Net operating losses arising in the current period can be carried forward to the succeeding 20 taxable years.

Neither the Internal Revenue Service nor New York State has examined our federal or state tax returns within the past 5 years.

#### **ITEM 1A: RISK FACTORS**

Not required of a smaller reporting company.

#### ITEM 1B: UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

#### **ITEM 2: PROPERTIES**

The Bank conducts its business through its main office located in Oswego, New York, six branch offices located in Oswego County, and a new branch, opened February 1, 2011, in Onondaga County. Management believes that the Bank's facilities are adequate for the business conducted. The following table sets forth certain information concerning the main office and each branch office of the Bank at December 31, 2011. The aggregate net book value of the Bank's premises and equipment was \$10.7 million at December 31, 2011. For additional information regarding the Bank's properties, see Notes 8 and 17 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

LOCATION	OPENING DATE	OWNED/LEASED
Main Office	1874	Owned
214 West First Street		
Oswego, New York 13126		
	1000	$O_{}$
Plaza Branch	1989	Owned (1)
Route 104, Ames Plaza		
Oswego, New York 13126		
Mexico Branch	1978	Owned
Norman & Main Streets		
Mexico, New York 13114		
Oswego East Branch	1994	Owned
34 East Bridge Street		
Oswego, New York 13126		
Lacona Branch	2002	Owned
1897 Harwood Drive		
Lacona, New York 13083		
Fulton Branch	2003	Owned (2)
5 West First Street South	2005	0 when $(2)$
Fulton, New York 13069		
Central Square Branch	2005	Owned
3025 East Ave		
Central Square, New York 13036		
Cicero Branch	2011	Owned
6194 State Route 31		
Cicero, New York 13039		

(1) The building is owned; the underlying land is leased with an annual rent of \$21,000

(2) The building is owned; the underlying land is leased with an annual rent of \$30,000

#### **ITEM 3: LEGAL PROCEEDINGS**

There are various claims and lawsuits to which the Company is periodically involved that are incidental to the Company's business. In the opinion of management, such claims and lawsuits in the aggregate are not expected to have a material adverse impact on the Company's consolidated financial condition and results of operations.

### PART II

# ITEM 5: MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc.'s common stock currently trades on the NASDAQ Capital Market under the symbol "PBHC". There were 442 shareholders of record as of March 16, 2012. The following table sets forth the high and low closing bid prices and dividends paid per share of common stock for the periods indicated:

			D	ividend
Quarter Ended:	High	Low		Paid
December 31, 2011	\$ 10.20	\$ 8.01	\$	0.03
September 30, 2011	\$ 10.08	\$ 8.33	\$	0.03
June 30, 2011	\$ 10.25	\$ 8.87	\$	0.03
March 31, 2011	\$ 10.15	\$ 8.18	\$	0.03
December 31, 2010	\$ 8.50	\$ 7.75	\$	0.03
September 30, 2010	\$ 8.00	\$ 6.03	\$	0.03
June 30, 2010	\$ 6.69	\$ 6.00	\$	0.03
March 31, 2010	\$ 8.00	\$ 5.60	\$	0.03

#### **Dividends and Dividend History**

The Company has historically paid regular quarterly cash dividends on its common stock, and the Board of Directors presently intends to continue the payment of regular quarterly cash dividends, subject to the need for those funds for debt service and other purposes. Payment of dividends on the common stock is subject to determination and declaration by the Board of Directors and will depend upon a number of factors, including capital requirements, regulatory limitations on the payment of dividends, Pathfinder Bank and its subsidiaries results of operations and financial condition, tax considerations, and general economic conditions. The Company's mutual holding company, Pathfinder Bancorp, M.H.C., may elect to waive or receive dividends each time the Company declares a dividend. Dividend waivers must receive the non-objection of the Federal Reserve. Historically, the Federal Reserve has not provided its non-objection to the waiver of dividends by mutual holding companies. As mentioned previously, new Federal Reserve regulations make such non-objection even less likely. The Mutual Holding Company did not waive the right to receive its portion of the cash dividends declared during 2011 or 2010.

#### **ITEM 6: SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA**

The Company is the parent company of the Bank and Pathfinder Statutory Trust II. The Bank has three operating subsidiaries – Pathfinder Commercial Bank, Pathfinder REIT, Inc., and Whispering Oaks Development Corp.

The following selected consolidated financial data sets forth certain financial highlights of the Company and should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and related notes, and the "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" included elsewhere in this annual report on Form 10-K.

	2011		2010			2009		2	008		,	2007	
Year End (In thousands)													
Total assets	\$ 442,980		\$ 408,54	5	\$ :	371,692		\$3	52,760		\$3	320,691	
Loans receivable, net	300,770		281,64	8		259,387			47,400		2	221,046	
Deposits	366,129		326,50	2		296,839		2	69,438		2	251,085	
Equity	37,841		30,59	2		29,238			19,495			21,704	
For the Year (In thousands)													
Net interest income	\$ 14,263		\$ 13,33	1	\$	11,777		\$	10,675		\$	8,667	
Core noninterest income (a)	2,451		2,85	4		2,724			2,786			2,622	
Net gains/(losses) on sales, redemptions and													
impairment of investment securities	791		21	1		112		(	(2,191)			378	
Net (losses) gains on sales of loans and													
foreclosed real estate	(50)		(45	)		54			(44)			42	
Noninterest expense (b)	12,758		11,27	4		10,381			9,882			9,799	
Regulatory assessments	390		51	5		745			53			39	
Net income	2,323		2,50	5		1,615			368			1,122	
Per Share													
Net income (basic)	\$ 0.53		\$ 0.8	2	\$	0.61		\$	0.15		\$	0.45	
Net income (diluted)	0.52		0.8	2		0.61			0.15			0.45	
Book value per common share	9.49		9.8	1		9.31			8.04			8.74	
Tangible book value per common share (c)	8.02		8.2	6		7.77			6.50			7.19	
Cash dividends declared	0.12		0.1	2		0.12			0.41			0.41	
Ratios													
Return on average assets	0.55	%	0.6	4 %	,	0.45	%		0.11	%		0.36	%
Return on average equity	6.75		8.0	7		7.04			1.70			5.27	
Return on average tangible equity (c)	7.59		9.2	0		8.45			2.07			6.47	
Average equity to average assets	8.21		7.8	9		6.40			6.32			6.82	
Dividend payout ratio (d)	12.87		11.9	0		18.45			232.61			62.03	
Allowance for loan losses to loans receivable	1.31		1.2	8		1.17			0.99			0.76	
Net interest rate spread	3.62		3.5	8		3.40			3.22			2.81	
Noninterest income to average assets	0.76		0.7	7		0.81			0.16			0.98	
Noninterest expense to average assets	3.14		3.0	0		3.10			2.91			3.15	
Efficiency ratio (e)	77.56		71.9	5		76.36			73.02			85.89	

(a) Exclusive of net gains (losses) on sales and impairment of investment securities and net gains (losses) on sales of loans and foreclosed real estate.

(b) Exclusive of regulatory assessments.

(c) Tangible equity excludes intangible assets.

(d) The dividend payout ratio is calculated using dividends declared and not waived by the Mutual Holding Company, divided by net income.

(e) The efficiency ratio is calculated as noninterest expense, including regulatory assessments, divided by the sum of taxableequivalent net interest income and noninterest income excluding net gains (losses) on sales, redemptions and impairment of investment securities and net (losses) gains on sales of loans and foreclosed real estate.

# ITEM 7: MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

#### **INTRODUCTION**

Throughout Management's Discussion and Analysis ("MD&A") the term, "the Company", refers to the consolidated entity of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. Pathfinder Bank and Pathfinder Statutory Trust II are wholly owned subsidiaries of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc., however, Pathfinder Statutory Trust II is not consolidated for reporting purposes (see Note 11 of the consolidated financial statements). Pathfinder Commercial Bank, Pathfinder REIT, Inc. and Whispering Oaks Development Corp. are wholly owned subsidiaries of Pathfinder Bancorp, M.H.C, the Company's mutual holding company parent, whose activities are not included in the consolidated financial statements or the MD&A, held 60.5% of the Company's outstanding common stock and the public held 39.5% of the outstanding common stock.

The Company's business strategy is to operate as a well-capitalized, profitable and independent community bank dedicated to providing value-added products and services to our customers. Generally, the Company has sought to implement this strategy by emphasizing retail deposits as its primary source of funds and maintaining a substantial part of its assets in locally-originated residential first mortgage loans, loans to business enterprises operating in its markets, and in investment securities. Specifically, the Company's business strategy incorporates the following elements: (i) operating as an independent community-oriented financial institution; (ii) maintaining capital in excess of regulatory requirements; (iii) emphasizing investment in one-to-four family residential mortgage loans, loans to small businesses and investment securities; and (iv) maintaining a strong retail deposit base.

The Company's net income is primarily dependent on its net interest income, which is the difference between interest income earned on its investments in mortgage and other loans, investment securities and other assets, and its cost of funds consisting of interest paid on deposits and borrowings. The Company's net income also is affected by its provision for loan losses, as well as by the amount of noninterest income, including income from fees, service charges and servicing rights, net gains and losses on sales and redemptions of securities, loans and foreclosed real estate, and noninterest expense such as employee compensation and benefits, occupancy and equipment costs, data processing costs and income taxes. Earnings of the Company also are affected significantly by general economic and competitive conditions, particularly changes in market interest rates, government policies and actions of regulatory authorities, of which these events are beyond the control of the Company. In particular, the general level of market rates tends to be highly cyclical.

#### APPLICATION OF CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company's consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States and follow practices within the banking industry. Application of these principles requires management to make estimates, assumptions and judgments that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. These estimates, assumptions and judgments are based on information available as of the date of the financial statements; accordingly, as this information changes, the financial statements could reflect different estimates, assumptions and judgments. Certain policies inherently have a greater reliance on the use of estimates, assumptions and judgments and as such have a greater possibility of producing results that could be materially different than originally reported. Estimates, assumptions and judgments are based to be recorded contingent upon a future event. Carrying assets and liabilities at fair value inherently results in more financial statement volatility. The fair values and information used to record valuation adjustments for certain assets and liabilities are based on quoted market prices or are provided by other third-party sources, when available. When third party information is not available, valuation adjustments are estimated in good faith by management.

The most significant accounting policies followed by the Company are presented in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements. These policies, along with the disclosures presented in the other financial statement notes and in this discussion, provide information on how significant assets and liabilities are valued in the consolidated financial statements and how those values are determined. Based on the valuation techniques used and the

sensitivity of financial statement amounts to the methods, assumptions and estimates underlying those amounts, management has identified the allowance for loan losses, deferred income taxes, pension obligations, the evaluation of goodwill for impairment, the evaluation of investment securities for other than temporary impairment and the estimation of fair values for accounting and disclosure purposes to be the accounting areas that require the most subjective and complex judgments, and as such, could be the most subject to revision as new information becomes available.

The allowance for loan losses represents management's estimate of probable loan losses inherent in the loan portfolio. Determining the amount of the allowance for loan losses is considered a critical accounting estimate because it requires significant judgment and the use of estimates related to the amount and timing of expected future cash flows on impaired loans, estimated losses on pools of homogeneous loans based on historical loss experience, and consideration of current economic trends and conditions, all of which may be susceptible to significant change. The loan portfolio also represents the largest asset type on the consolidated statements of condition. Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements describes the methodology used to determine the allowance for loan losses, and a discussion of the factors driving changes in the amount of the allowance for loan losses is included in this report.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are determined using the liability method. Under this method, the net deferred tax asset or liability is recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases as well as net operating and capital loss carry forwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates applied to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income tax expense in the period that includes the enactment date. To the extent that current available evidence about the future raises doubt about the likelihood of a deferred tax asset being realized, a valuation allowance is established. The judgment about the level of future taxable income, including that which is considered capital, is inherently subjective and is reviewed on a continual basis as regulatory and business factors change. A valuation allowance of \$458,000 was maintained at December 31, 2011, as management believes it may not generate sufficient capital gains to offset its capital loss carry forward. The Company's effective tax rate differs from the statutory rate due primarily to non-taxable income from investment securities and bank owned life insurance.

Pension and post-retirement benefit plan liabilities and expenses are based upon actuarial assumptions of future events, including fair value of plan assets, interest rates, rate of future compensation increases and the length of time the Company will have to provide those benefits. The assumptions used by management are discussed in Note 12 to the consolidated annual financial statements.

Management performs an annual evaluation of the Company's goodwill for possible impairment. Based on the results of the 2011 evaluation, management has determined that the carrying value of goodwill is not impaired as of December 31, 2011. The evaluation approach is described in Note 9 of the consolidated financial statements.

The Company carries all of its investments at fair value with any unrealized gains or losses reported net of tax as an adjustment to shareholders' equity, except for the credit-related portion of debt security impairment losses and other-than-temporary impairment ("OTTI") of equity securities, which are charged to earnings. The Company's ability to fully realize the value of its investments in various securities, including corporate debt securities, is dependent on the underlying creditworthiness of the issuing organization. In evaluating the debt security portfolio for other-than-temporary impairment losses, management considers (1) if we intend to sell the security; (2) if it is "more likely than not" we will be required to sell the security before recovery of its amortized cost basis; or (3) if the present value of expected cash flows is not sufficient to recover the entire amortized cost basis. In determining whether OTTI has occurred for equity securities, the Company considers the applicable factors described above and the length of time the equity security's fair value has been below the carrying amount. Management continually analyzes the portfolio to determine if further impairment has occurred that may be deemed as otherthan-temporary. Further charges are possible depending on future economic conditions.

The estimation of fair value is significant to several of our assets, including investment securities available for sale, the interest rate derivative, intangible assets and foreclosed real estate, as well as the value of loan collateral when

valuing loans. These are all recorded at either fair value or the lower of cost or fair value. Fair values are determined based on third party sources, when available. Furthermore, accounting principles generally accepted in the United States require disclosure of the fair value of financial instruments as a part of the notes to the consolidated financial statements. Fair values may be influenced by a number of factors, including market interest rates, prepayment speeds, discount rates and the shape of yield curves.

Fair values for securities available for sale are obtained from an independent third party pricing service. Where available, fair values are based on quoted prices on a nationally recognized securities exchange. If quoted prices are not available, fair values are measured using quoted market prices for similar benchmark securities. Management made no adjustments to the fair value quotes that were provided by the pricing source. The fair values of foreclosed real estate and the underlying collateral value of impaired loans are typically determined based on evaluations by third parties, less estimated costs to sell. When necessary, appraisals are updated to reflect changes in market conditions.

#### EXECUTIVE SUMMARY AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Earnings performance metrics for 2011 were generally less than those reported for 2010 as net income, return on assets and return on equity all decreased.

Net income for 2011 was \$2.3 million, a \$182,000 decrease from 2010 and return on assets and return on equity were 0.55% and 6.75%, respectively, down 0.09% and 1.32% from 2010. While net interest income increased in 2011, expenses relating to the new Cicero branch location, professional fees in support of the payoff of the Company's participation in the CPP and its entrance into the SBLF, and expenses relating to the ESOP and stock option programs contributed to the higher expenses. Offsets to these expense increases included gains from the sales of available-for-sale securities and a reduction in FDIC assessment expenses.

Total assets increased \$34.4 million to \$443.0 million as total deposits grew \$39.6 million primarily as a result of the opening of the new Cicero branch location. The increase in assets was generally apportioned between the investment securities portfolio and loans as the latter grew 6.8% year over year, centered largely in the residential mortgage segment. The Company will continue to emphasize its focus in the Cicero, Central Square, and Fulton markets where it feels further market penetration opportunities exist. Additionally, we will maintain focus on expanding commercial deposit relationships with our existing lending customers as well as expanding our commercial loan growth in the greater Syracuse market.

Asset quality metrics were mixed in 2011 when compared with 2010. Net charge-offs were \$608,000, a \$128,000 increase due largely to one large commercial relationship, but the ratio of nonperforming loans to period end loans and nonperforming assets to total assets both declined. The ratio of allowance to loan losses to period end loans increased slightly to 1.31, as management continues to re-evaluate the estimable and probable losses within the loan portfolio and provide additional allowance related to growth.

The Company improved its equity position in 2011 as it paid off the preferred stock related to its participation in the CPP and entered into an agreement with the Treasury to participate in the SBLF program. These concurrent actions resulted in a \$6.2 million increase in equity. Retained earnings increased \$455,000 through 2011 driven by net income and partially offset by preferred and common stock dividends, accretion of the preferred stock discount, and the sale of shares to the ESOP.

#### Net Interest Income

Net interest income is the Company's primary source of operating income for payment of operating expenses and providing for possible loan losses. It is the amount by which interest earned on interest-earning deposits, loans and investment securities exceeds the interest paid on deposits and borrowed money. Changes in net interest income and the net interest margin ratio result from the interaction between the volume and composition of earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities, and their respective yields and funding costs.

Net interest income, on a tax-equivalent basis, increased \$969,000, or 7.2%, to \$14.5 million for the year ended

December 31, 2011, as compared to \$13.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2010. The Company's net interest margin for 2011 increased to 3.76% from 3.73% in 2010. The increase in net interest income is attributable to, nearly equally, a decrease in the cost of interest-bearing liabilities and an increase in average balance of residential and commercial real estate loans.

The average balance of interest-earning assets increased \$22.9 million, or 6.3%, during 2011 and the average balance of interest-bearing liabilities increased by \$16.3 million, or 5.0%. The increase in the average balance of interest earning assets primarily resulted from a \$20.0 million increase in the average balance of the loan portfolio and a \$6.7 million increase in the average balance of the security investment portfolio. This was funded by a \$16.3 million increase in interest-bearing liabilities driven largely by an increase in money market deposit accounts. Interest income, on a tax-equivalent basis, increased \$501,000, or 2.7%, during 2011. The decrease in yield on interest earning assets to 4.88% in 2011 from 5.05% in 2010 was more than offset by the 6.3% increase in volume. Interest expense on interest-bearing liabilities decreased \$468,000, or 9.7%, as the rates paid dropped 21 basis points to 1.26% in 2011 from 1.47% in 2010.

#### **Average Balances and Rates**

The following table sets forth information concerning average interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities and the yields and rates thereon. Interest income and resultant yield information in the table is on a fully tax-equivalent basis using marginal federal income tax rates of 34%. Averages are computed on the daily average balance for each month in the period divided by the number of days in the period. Yields and amounts earned include loan fees. Non-accrual loans have been included in interest-earning assets for purposes of these calculations.

				F	or the Years	s Ended Dec	ember 31,			
		2011				2010			2009	
			Average				Average			Average
	Average		Yield /		Average		Yield /	Average		Yield /
(Dollars in thousands)	Balance	Interest	Cost		Balance	Interest	Cost	Balance	Interest	Cost
Interest-earning assets:										
Real estate loans residential	\$ 153,735	\$ 8,029	5.22%	\$	138,497	\$ 7,672	5.54%	\$ 133,442	\$ 7,463	5.59%
Real estate loans commercial	70,050	4,372	6.24%		65,120	4,044	6.21%	58,424	4,024	6.89%
Commercial loans	38,533	1,904	4.94%		37,700	1,894	5.02%	31,665	1,607	5.08%
Consumer loans	28,468	1,726	6.06%		29,506	1,774	6.01%	28,487	1,767	6.20%
Taxable investment securities	79,236	2,231	2.82%		75,660	2,549	3.37%	71,455	2,942	4.12%
Tax-exempt investment securities	11,716	571	4.87%		8,587	399	4.65%	1,464	65	4.44%
Interest-earning time deposit	176	2	1.14%		-	-	0.00%	-	-	0.00%
Interest-earning deposits	4,147	5	0.12%		8,140	7	0.09%	7,511	6	0.08%
Total interest-earning assets	386,061	18,840	4.88%		363,210	18,339	5.05%	332,448	17,874	5.38%
Noninterest-earning assets:										
Other assets	35,647				32,087			29,704		
Allowance for loan losses	(3,872)				(3,420)			(2,731)		
Net unrealized losses										
on available for sale securities	1,293				1,513			(620)		
Total assets	\$ 419,129			\$	393,390			\$ 358,801		
Interest-bearing liabilities:										
NOW accounts	\$ 30,274	87	0.29%	\$	29,816	79	0.26%	\$ 26,055	72	0.28%
Money management accounts	12,964	43	0.33%		12,101	39	0.32%	11,037	35	0.32%
MMDA accounts	64,352	438	0.68%		50,722	336	0.66%	35,571	246	0.69%
Savings and club accounts	60,713	78	0.13%		57,810	84	0.15%	53,726	87	0.16%
Time deposits	139,299	2,590	1.86%		137,975	2,871	2.08%	135,965	3,994	2.94%
Junior subordinated debentures	5,155	163	3.16%		5,155	164	3.18%	5,155	149	2.89%
Borrowings	31,255	942	3.01%		34,102	1,235	3.62%	37,340	1,446	3.87%
Total interest-bearing liabilities	344,012	4,341	1.26%		327,681	4,808	1.47%	304,849	6,029	1.98%
Noninterest-bearing liabilities:										
Demand deposits	35,971				29,479			26,114		
Other liabilities	4,722				5,173			4,888		
Total liabilities	384,705				362,333			335,851		
Shareholders' equity	34,424				31,057			22,950		
Total liabilities & shareholders' equity	\$ 419,129			\$	393,390			\$ 358,801		
Net interest income		\$ 14,500				\$ 13,531			\$ 11,845	
Net interest rate spread		, .	3.62%			,	3.58%		, -	3.40%
Net interest margin			3.76%				3.73%			3.56%
Ratio of average interest-earning assets										
to average interest-bearing liabilities			112.22%				110.84%			109.05%
to average interest-bearing natinities			112.2270				110.0470			107.0370

#### **Interest Income**

Changes in interest income result from changes in the average balances of loans, securities and interest-earning deposits and the related yields on those balances. Interest income on a tax-equivalent basis increased \$501,000, or 2.7%.

Average interest earning asset balances increased 6.3% in 2011, with yields decreasing 17 basis points to 4.88%. The Company's average residential mortgage loan portfolio increased \$15.2 million, or 11.0%, when comparing 2011 to 2010 with the average yield on this portfolio decreasing 32 basis points to 5.22% in 2011 as higher rate amortizing mortgages were replaced with new originations reflecting current market rates. The average balance of commercial real estate loans increased \$4.9 million, or 7.6%, and the yield increased 3 basis points to 6.24% in 2011. Average commercial loans modestly increased \$833,000, or 2.2% while the yield decreased 8 basis points to 4.94% in 2011. The average balance of consumer loans decreased \$1.0 million, or 3.5%, while the average yield increased 5 basis points to 6.06%.

Interest income on taxable investment securities decreased 12.5% from 2010 as the average yield decreased 55 basis points to 2.82% in 2011 from 3.37% in 2010, offset by an increase of \$3.6 million or 4.7% in the average balance of taxable investment securities.

#### Interest Expense

Changes in interest expense result from changes in the average balances of deposits and borrowings and the related interest costs on those balances. Interest expense decreased \$468,000, or 9.7%%, in 2011, when compared to 2010. The average rate paid on all interest-bearing deposits was 1.26% in 2011 as compared to 1.47% in 2010, a 21 basis point decrease. Average balances for total interest-bearing liabilities increased by \$16.3 million in 2011 when compared to 2010, principally due to a \$13.6 million increase in average money market deposit accounts ("MMDA") stemming from the opening of the new Cicero branch location. The average rates paid on all MMDA increased 2 basis points in 2011 to 0.68%.

The decrease in the cost of interest bearing liabilities resulted from a decrease of 61 basis points in the average cost of borrowings and a 22 basis point decrease in the average rates paid on time deposits. Both of these decreases are attributable to the maturities of borrowings and time deposit products with higher rates being replaced by lower rates on borrowings and time deposits reflecting current market conditions. Savings and club accounts recorded average balances of \$60.7 million in 2011 reflecting a 5.0% increase over 2010. Average rates paid on these accounts decreased 2 basis points to 0.13%.

#### **Rate/Volume Analysis**

Net interest income can also be analyzed in terms of the impact of changing interest rates on interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities and changes in the volume or amount of these assets and liabilities. The following table represents the extent to which changes in interest rates and changes in the volume of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities have affected the Company's interest income and interest expense during the periods indicated. Information is provided in each category with respect to: (i) changes attributable to changes in volume (change in volume multiplied by prior rate); (ii) changes attributable to changes in rate multiplied by prior volume); and (iii) total increase or decrease. Changes attributable to both rate and volume have been allocated ratably.

	Years Ended December 31,													
			201	1 vs. 201	0				2010 vs. 2009					
		Incre	ase/(	Decrease	) Du	e to	Increase/(Decrease) Due to							
						'otal crease						Total crease		
(In thousands)	V	olume		Rate (Decrease)			Volume			Rate	(Decrease)			
Interest Income:														
Real estate loans residential	\$	815	\$	(458)	\$	357	\$	277	\$	(68)	\$	209		
Real estate loans commercial		308		20		328		438		(418)		20		
Commercial loans		41		(31)		10		306		(19)		287		
Consumer loans		(63)		15		(48)		62		(55)		7		
Taxable investment securities		115		(433)		(318)		165		(558)		(393)		
Tax-exempt investment		1.50		• •				221						
securities		152		20		172		331		3		334		
Interest-earning time deposits		2		-		2		-		-		-		
Interest-earning deposits		(4)		2		(2)		1		2		3		
Total interest income		1,366		(865)		501		1,580		(1,113)		467		
Interest Expense:														
NOW accounts		1		7		8		12		(5)		7		
Money management accounts		3		1		4		4		-		4		
MMDA accounts		92		10		102		101		(11)		90		
Savings and club accounts		5		(11)		(6)		4		(7)		(3)		
Time deposits		27		(308)		(281)		58		(1,181)		(1,123)		
Junior subordinated debentures		-		(1)		(1)		-		15		15		
Borrowings		(97)		(197)		(294)		(121)		(90)		(211)		
Total interest expense		31		(499)		(468)		58		(1,279)		(1,221)		
Net change in net interest income	\$	1,335	\$	(366)	\$	969	\$	1,522	\$	166	\$	1,688		

#### **Provision for Loan Losses**

The provision for loan losses was \$940,000 for the year ended 2011, a decrease of \$110,000 or 10.5% from the prior year. This provision exceeded the net charge-offs of \$608,000 recorded in 2011 and resulted in the ratio of allowance to period end loans to increase to 1.31% at December 31, 2011 as compared to 1.28% at December 31, 2010. The Company continued to provide for a greater level of provision for loan losses than net charge-offs in the current year to allow for the estimable and probable loan losses within the growing loan portfolio. Management believes that the existing allowances provided on these loans are sufficient to cover anticipated losses.

#### Noninterest Income

The Company's noninterest income is primarily comprised of fees on deposit account balances and transactions, loan servicing, commissions and net gains or losses on securities, loans and foreclosed real estate.

The following table sets forth certain information on noninterest income for the years indicated.

	Twelve	Months End	ed Decemb	er 31,
(in thousands)	2011	2010	Cha	nge
Service charges on deposit accounts	\$ 1,131	\$ 1,375	\$ (244)	-17.7%
Earnings on bank owned life insurance	224	434	(210)	-48.4%
Loan servicing fees	196	206	(10)	-4.9%
Debit card interchange fees	369	316	53	16.8%
Other charges, commissions and fees	531	523	8	1.5%
Noninterest income before gains (losses)	2,451	2,854	(403)	-14.1%
Net gains on sales and redemptions of investment securities	791	211	580	274.9%
Net losses on sales of loans and foreclosed real estate	(50)	(45)	(5)	11.1%
Total noninterest income	\$ 3,192	\$ 3,020	\$ 172	5.7%

For the year ended December 31, 2011, noninterest income before gains (losses) decreased \$403,000, or 14.1%, when compared with the year ended December 31, 2010. The decrease was due primarily to a decrease in service charges on deposit accounts of \$244,000 due to the reduction in extended overdraft fees and a \$210,000 reduction on earnings on bank owned life insurance stemming from the recording of \$155,000 in noninterest income during the fourth quarter of 2010 from life insurance proceeds in connection with the death of a former director. Debit card interchange fees increased \$53,000 year over year due to usage. Net gains on sales and redemptions of the investment securities portfolio increased \$580,000 for 2011 over the prior year as the Company restructured a portion of its investment securities portfolio due to falling interest rates and a significant mismatch between the demand for, and available supply of, bank qualified fixed income products in the current marketplace.

#### Noninterest Expense

The following table sets forth certain information on noninterest expense for the years indicated.

	Twelve Months Ended December 31,									
(In thousands)	2011	2010	Cha	nge						
Salaries and employee benefits	\$ 7,076	\$ 6,126	\$ 950	15.5%						
Building occupancy	1,395	1,281	114	8.9%						
Data processing	1,398	1,372	26	1.9%						
Professional and other services	681	563	118	21.0%						
Advertising	437	268	169	63.1%						
FDIC assessments	390	515	(125)	-24.3%						
Audits and exams	162	257	(95)	-37.0%						
Other expenses	1,609	1,407	202	14.4%						
Total noninterest expenses	\$ 13,148	\$ 11,789	\$ 1,359	11.5%						

Noninterest expense for the twelve-month period ended December 31, 2011 increased \$1.4 million over the prior year principally due to the increase of \$950,000 in personnel expenses due to staffing of the new Cicero branch location, the increased compensation costs related to the ESOP and stock option programs implemented in 2011, increased pension costs and annual wage rate increases. Additionally, advertising expenses increased \$169,000

largely related to the opening of our Cicero branch location. Professional and other services increased \$118,000 due to \$56,000 in legal fees to support the implementation of the Company's participation in the United States Treasury Small Business Lending Fund and the remaining increase to support the implementation of the ESOP, and activities related to the review of the Company's retirement and compensation plans. Other expenses increased \$202,000 due to increases in community service donations, the debit card rewards program, and non-foreclosure collection expenses. These increases were partially offset by a decrease in FDIC assessment expenses of \$125,000, all between comparable twelve-month periods.

#### Income Tax Expense

In 2011, the Company reported income tax expense of \$1.044 million compared with \$1.007 million in 2010. The effective tax rate increased to 31.0% in 2011 compared to a tax rate of 28.7% in 2010 due to tax exempt income on the life insurance proceeds relating to the death benefit associated with coverage on a former director in 2010. See Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements for the reconciliation of the statutory tax rate to the effective tax rate.

#### Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share was \$0.53 in 2011 as compared to \$0.82 in 2010. Diluted earnings per share was \$0.52 in 2011 as compared to \$0.82 in 2010. These decreases in basic and diluted earnings per share were due principally to the accelerated accretion on preferred stock totaling \$470,000 or \$0.19 per basic and diluted share related to the Company's participation in and exit from the CPP and, separately, the dividends on the preferred stock related to the Company's participation in the SBLF. Additionally, the \$182,000 decrease in net income between 2010 and 2011 resulted in a decrease of \$0.07 per basic and diluted share between these two periods.

#### CHANGES IN FINANCIAL CONDITION

#### **Investment Securities**

The investment portfolio represents 24% of the Company's average earning assets and is designed to generate a favorable rate of return consistent with safety of principal while assisting the Company in meeting its liquidity needs and interest rate risk strategies. All of the Company's investments are classified as available for sale. The Company invests primarily in securities issued by United States Government agencies and sponsored enterprises, mortgage-backed securities, state and municipal obligations, mutual funds, equity securities, investment grade corporate debt instruments, and common stock issued by the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York (FHLBNY). By investing in these types of assets, the Company reduces the credit risk of its asset base, but must accept lower yields than would typically be available on loan products. Our mortgage backed securities portfolio is comprised predominantly of pass-through securities guaranteed by Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac or Ginnie Mae and does not, to our knowledge, include any securities backed by sub-prime or other high-risk mortgages.

At December 31, 2011, investment securities increased 17.7% to \$100.4 million from \$85.3 million at December 31, 2010. There were no securities that exceeded 10% of consolidated shareholders' equity. See Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements for further discussion on securities.

The following table sets forth the carrying value of the Company's investment portfolio at December 31:

(In Thousands)	2011	2010
Investment Securities:		
US treasury, agencies and GSEs	\$ 5,073	\$ 20,023
State and political subdivisions	20,304	18,979
Corporate	20,434	5,600
Residential mortgage-backed	51,575	37,246
Mutual funds	2,565	3,024
Equity securities	444	455
Total investments in securities	\$ 100,395	\$ 85,327

The following table sets forth the scheduled maturities, amortized cost, fair values and average yields for the Company's investment securities at December 31, 2011. Yield is calculated on the amortized cost to maturity and adjusted to a fully tax-equivalent basis.

		One Y	One Year or Less One to Five Year				Five to Ten Years			
			Annualized			Annualized			Annualized	
	Am	ortized	Weighted	Ar	nortized	Weighted	A	mortized	Weighted	
(Dollars in thousands)		Cost	Avg Yield		Cost	Avg Yield		Cost	Avg Yield	
Debt investment securities:										
US Treasury, agencies and GSEs	\$	1,002	0.44%	\$	4,003	1.59%	\$	20	3.38%	
State and political subdivisions		829	2.39%		2,102	2.54%		4,640	3.32%	
Corporate		2,534	3.75%		15,101	1.89%		1,200	1.97%	
Total	\$	4,365	2.73%	\$	21,206	1.90%	\$	5,860	3.04%	
Mortgage-backed securities:										
Residential mortgage-backed	\$	75	4.47%	\$	349	5.11%	\$	15,674	2.48%	
Total	\$	75	4.47%	\$	349	5.11%	\$	15,674	2.48%	
Other non-maturity investments:										
Mutual funds	\$	2,374	3.12%	\$	-	-	\$	-	0.00%	
Equity securities		443	1.84%		-	-		-	0.00%	
Total	\$	2,817	2.63%	\$	-	-	\$	-	0.00%	
Total investment securities	\$	7,257	2.82%	\$	21,555	1.95%	\$	21,534	2.63%	

							otal stment	
		More Tha	n Ten Years			Sec	urities	
			Annualized					Annualized
	An	nortized	Weighted	Ar	nortized		Fair	Weighted
(Dollars in thousands)		Cost	Avg Yield		Cost		Value	Avg Yield
Debt investment securities:								
US Treasury, agencies and GSEs	\$	-	0.00%	\$	5,025	\$	5,073	1.36%
State and political subdivisions		11,937	3.43%		19,508		20,304	3.26%
Corporate		2,251	1.07%		21,086		20,434	2.03%
Total	\$	14,188	3.05%	\$	45,619	\$	45,811	2.50%
Mortgage-backed securities:								
Residential mortgage-backed	\$	34,073	3.12%	\$	50,171	\$	51,575	2.94%
Total	\$	34,073	3.12%	\$	50,171	\$	51,575	2.94%
Other non-maturity investments:								
Mutual funds	\$	-	-	\$	2,374	\$	2,565	3.12%
Equity securities		-	-		443		444	1.84%
Total	\$	-	_	\$	2,817	\$	3,009	2.93%
Total investment securities	\$	48,261	3.10%	\$	98,607	\$	100,395	2.74%

The above noted yield information does not give effect to changes in fair value that are reflected in accumulated other comprehensive loss in consolidated shareholders' equity.

## Loans Receivable

Loans receivable represent 75% of the Company's average earning assets and account for the greatest portion of total interest income. The Company emphasizes residential real estate financing and anticipates a continued commitment to financing the purchase or improvement of residential real estate in its market area. The Company also extends credit to businesses within its marketplace secured by commercial real estate, equipment, inventories and accounts receivable. It is anticipated that small business lending in the form of mortgages, term loans, leases, and lines of credit will provide the most opportunity for balance sheet and revenue growth over the near term. Commercial and municipal loans comprise 13% of the total loan portfolio. At December 31, 2011, 77% of the Company's total loan portfolio consisted of loans secured by first mortgages on residential and commercial real estate.

			December 31	,	
(In thousands)	2011	2010	2009	2008	2007
Residential real estate (1)	\$ 162,395	\$ 147,722	\$ 135,102	\$ 136,218	\$ 126,666
Commercial real estate	73,628	69,060	62,250	55,061	45,490
Commercial and municipal loans	40,336	39,833	35,447	30,685	25,288
Home Equity and Junior liens	24,251	25,271	26,086	24,392	21,379
Consumer loans	4,140	3,410	3,580	3,516	3,926
Total loans receivable	\$ 304,750	\$ 285,296	\$ 262,465	\$ 249,872	\$ 222,749

(1) Includes loans held for sale. (None at December 31, 2011, 2010, 2008 and 2007.)

The following table shows the amount of loans outstanding as of December 31, 2011 which, based on remaining scheduled repayments of principal, are due in the periods indicated. Demand loans having no stated schedule of repayments and no stated maturity, and overdrafts are reported as one year or less. Adjustable and floating rate loans are included in the period on which interest rates are next scheduled to adjust rather than the period in which they contractually mature, and fixed rate loans are included in the period in which the period in the period per

	Due Under	Due 1-5	Due Over	
(In thousands)	One Year	Years	Five Years	Total
Real estate:				
Commercial real estate	\$ 5,547	\$ 4,117	\$ 63,964	\$ 73,628
Residential real estate	56	2,788	159,551	162,395
	5,603	6,905	223,515	236,023
Other Commercial	18,674	12,926	8,736	40,336
Home Equity and junior liens	79	863	23,309	24,251
Consumer	1,065	2,322	753	4,140
Total loans	\$ 25,421	\$ 23,016	\$ 256,313	\$ 304,750
Interest rates:				
Fixed	\$ 5,086	\$ 13,933	\$ 137,424	\$ 156,443
Variable	20,335	9,083	118,889	148,307
Total loans	\$ 25,421	\$ 23,016	\$ 256,313	\$ 304,750

Total loans receivable increased \$19.5 million or 6.8% when compared to the prior year driven principally by a \$14.7 million or 9.9% increase in residential real estate loans. The Company does not originate sub-prime, Alt-A, negative amortizing or other higher risk structured residential mortgages. Commercial real estate loans increased \$4.6 million or 6.6% in support of the Company's strategy to balance its diversification among its product

segments. At December 31, 2011, total loans receivable having a fixed interest rate represented 51.3% of the portfolio as compared to 48.4% at December 31, 2010. As was evidenced in 2010, this shift to fixed interest rate products continued in 2011, given the historically lower fixed rates and the market's appetite to lock in lower borrowing costs.

Commercial and municipal loans increased \$503,000 or 1.3% over the prior year to \$40.3 million at December 31, 2011 as new originations modestly outpaced amortization on the existing portfolio. The Company continues to seek to expand its loan outstandings within this portfolio but the prolonged challenging economic environment allowed a smaller number of lending opportunities to qualified borrowers.

Consumer loans, which include second mortgage loans, home equity lines of credit, direct installment and revolving credit loans, decreased 1.0% to \$28.4 million at December 31, 2011. The decrease resulted from a decrease in home equity lines of credit as a result of the current market and economic conditions.

## Non-performing Loans and Assets

The following table represents information concerning the aggregate amount of non-performing assets:

		Ι	Dece	ember 31	,		
(In thousands)	2011	2010		2009		2008	2007
Nonaccrual loans:							
Commercial real estate and commercial	\$ 2,594	\$ 4,224	\$	1,021	\$	1,455	\$ 521
Consumer	706	365		111		254	150
Residential real estate	1,428	1,335		1,181		614	920
Total nonaccrual loans	4,728	5,924		2,313		2,323	1,591
Total non-performing loans	4,728	5,924		2,313		2,323	1,591
Foreclosed real estate	536	375		181		335	865
Total non-performing assets	\$ 5,264	\$ 6,299	\$	2,494	\$	2,658	\$ 2,456
Non-performing loans to total loans	1.55%	2.08%		0.88%		0.93%	0.71%
Non-performing assets to total assets	1.19%	1.54%		0.67%		0.75%	0.77%
Interest income that would have been recorded							
under the original terms of the loans	\$ 280	\$ 260	\$	113	\$	131	\$ 71

Total non-performing loans decreased approximately \$1.2 million at December 31, 2011, when compared to December 31, 2010. The decrease in non-performing loans was primarily the result of three large commercial relationships, each of which either returned to accrual status, recorded a partial pay down, or completely paid off during 2011. As a result of these events, the ratio of non-performing loans to total loans declined from 2.08% in 2010 to 1.55% in 2011. Foreclosed real estate increased \$161,000 from December 31, 2010 to December 31, 2011 as the net addition of 7 properties to foreclosed real estate to a total of 11 properties at December 31, 2011 reflected the increasingly challenging economic environment over the last several years. Included in the foreclosed real estate balances at year end 2011 is a former Bank branch of the Company with a carrying value of \$113,000. Not included in non-performing assets is a repossessed boat recorded within other assets with a carrying value of \$258,000. Management continues to monitor and react to national and local economic trends as well as general portfolio conditions, which may impact the quality of the portfolio. Nonaccrual loans that meet the criteria of an impaired loan are specifically evaluated for impairment based on the underlying collateral support for the loan or the present value of future cash flows, and an allowance is provided, if necessary, which is included within the allowance for loan losses.

Appraisals are obtained at the time a real estate secured loan is originated. Collateral is reevaluated should the loan become 45 days delinquent to best determine the bank's level of exposure. When a loan enters nonaccrual status, the bank evaluates its collateral position and, if appropriate, a new appraisal is performed. When evaluating our ability to collect from secondary sources, appraised values are adjusted to reflect the age of appraisal, the condition

of the property, the current local real estate market, and cost to sell. Properties are re-appraised when our evaluation of the current property condition and the local real estate market suggests values may not be accurate.

The Company generally places a loan on non-accrual status and ceases accruing interest when loan payment performance is deemed unsatisfactory and the loan is past due 90 days or more or when it is probably that the Company will be unable to collect all contractual principal and interest payments. There are no loans that are past due 90 or more and are still accruing interest.

Management has identified potential problem loans totaling \$8.0 million as of December 31, 2011, compared to \$7.0 million in potential problem loans as of December 31, 2010. These loans have been internally classified as special mention or substandard, yet are not currently considered impaired or in non-accrual status. Management has identified potential credit problems which may result in the borrowers not being able to comply with the current loan repayment terms and which may result in it being included in future past due reporting. Management believes that the current allowance for loan losses is adequate to cover probable credit losses in the current loan portfolio. As a result of the provision for loan losses exceeding the net charge-offs for 2011 in addition to allowing for the loan growth through the year, the ratio of allowance to loan and lease losses to period-end loans at December 31, 2011 as compared to December 31, 2010 was 1.31% and 1.28%, respectively, representing an increase of 3 basis points.

In the normal course of business, Pathfinder Bank has sold residential mortgage loans and participation interests in commercial loans. As is typical in the industry, the Bank makes certain representations and warranties to the buyer. The Bank maintains a quality control program for closed loans and has never been asked to repurchase a sold loan. Therefore, management considers the risks and uncertainties associated with potential repurchase requirements to be minimal. There are no known or alleged defects in the securitization process or in the mortgage documentation. Any future risk of exposure would be immaterial.

## Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is established through charges to expense in the form of a provision for loan losses and reduced by loan charge-offs net of recoveries. The allowance for loan losses represents the amount available for probable credit losses in the Company's loan portfolio as estimated by management. The Company maintains an allowance for loan losses based upon a monthly evaluation of known and inherent risks in the loan portfolio, which includes a review of the balances and composition of the loan portfolio as well as analyzing the level of delinquencies in each segment of the loan portfolio.

The Company establishes a specific allocation for all loans identified as being impaired with a balance in excess of \$100,000 which are on nonaccrual or have been risk rated under the Company's risk rating system as substandard, doubtful, or loss. The measurement of impaired loans is generally based upon the present value of future cash flows discounted at the historical effective interest rate, except that all collateral-dependent loans are measured for impairment based on the fair value of the collateral, less costs to sell. The majority of the Company's impaired loans are collateral-dependent. The Company uses the fair value of collateral less costs to sell to measure impairment on commercial and commercial real estate loans. Large residential real estate loans may also be included in this individual loan review. At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company had \$4.3 million and \$7.0 million in loans, which were identified as impaired, having valuation allowances of \$619,000 and \$1.1 million, respectively. For all other loans and leases, the Company uses the general allocation methodology that establishes an allowance to estimate the probable incurred loss for each risk-rating category that reflects actual loss experience, delinquency trends, current economic conditions, and several other environmental factors.

The allowance for loan losses at December 31, 2011 and 2010 was \$4.0 million and \$3.6 million, or 1.31% and 1.28% of total period end loans, respectively. Net loan charge-offs were \$608,000 during 2011, as compared to \$480,000 in 2010. The majority of the increase in current year charge-off activity is the result of an increase in net charge-offs of 1-4 family residential with the remaining net charge-off activity higher than historical levels and reflective of the recent challenging economic environment.

The following table sets forth the allocation of allowance for loan losses by loan category for the periods indicated. The allocation of the allowance by category is not necessarily indicative of future losses and does not restrict the use of the allowance to absorb losses in any category.

-		20	)11		20	010		20	009		20	008		20	007
	Alle	ocation	Percent of	All	ocation	Percent of									
		of the	Loans to		of the	Loans to		of the	Loans to		of the	Loans to		of the	Loans to
(Dollars in thousands)	Allo	owance	Total Loans	All	owance	Total Loans	All	owance	Total Loans	All	owance	Total Loans	Alle	owance	Total Loans
Residential real estate	\$	664	53.2%	\$	750	51.7%	\$	763	51.5%	\$	679	54.5%	\$	464	56.8%
Commercial real estate		1,346	24.2%		1,204	24.2%		1,009	23.7%		907	22.0%		614	20.4%
Commercial and municipal		1,114	13.2%		1,083	14.0%		864	13.5%		505	12.3%		342	11.4%
Home equity and junior liens		501	8.0%		424	8.9%		390	9.9%		333	9.8%		239	9.6%
Consumer loans		162	1.4%		89	1.2%		76	1.4%		48	1.4%		44	1.8%
Unallocated		193			98			(24)			-			-	
Total	\$	3,980	100.0%	\$	3,648	100.0%	\$	3,078	100.0%	\$	2,472	100.0%	\$	1,703	100.0%

The following table sets forth the allowance for loan losses for the periods indicated and related ratios.

(In thousands)	2011	2010	2009	2008	2007
Balance at beginning of year	\$ 3,648	\$ 3,078	\$ 2,472	\$ 1,703	\$ 1,496
Provisions charged to operating expenses	940	1,050	876	820	365
Recoveries of loans previously charged-off:					
Commercial real estate and loans	1	55	-	17	-
Consumer	49	36	20	30	27
Residential real estate	49	19	3	-	23
Total recoveries	99	110	23	47	50
Loans charged off:					
Commercial real estate and loans	(304)	(385)	(74)	(46)	(85)
Consumer	(166)	(157)	(134)	(52)	(77)
Residential real estate	(237)	(48)	(85)	-	(46)
Total charged-off	(707)	(590)	(293)	(98)	(208)
Net charge-offs	(608)	(480)	(270)	(51)	(158)
Balance at end of year	\$ 3,980	\$ 3,648	\$ 3,078	\$ 2,472	\$ 1,703
Net charge-offs to average loans outstanding	0.21%	0.18%	0.11%	0.02%	0.08%
Allowance for loan losses to year-end loans	1.31%	1.28%	1.17%	0.99%	0.76%

# Deposits

The Company's deposit base is drawn from eight full-service offices in its market area, including an eighth office opened in Cicero, New York on February 1, 2011. The deposit base consists of demand deposits, money management and money market deposit accounts, savings and time deposits. During 2011, 59% of the Company's average deposit base of \$343.7 million consisted of core deposits. Core deposits, which exclude time deposits, are considered to be more stable and provide the Company with a lower cost source of funds than time deposits. The Company will continue to emphasize retail core deposits by maintaining its network of full service offices and providing depositors with a full range of deposit product offerings. In addition, Pathfinder Commercial Bank, our commercial bank subsidiary, seeks business growth by focusing on its local identification and service excellence.

Average deposits increased \$25.7 million, or 8.1%, when compared to 2010. The increase in average deposits primarily related to a \$7.1 million increase in the average balance of municipal deposits and a \$22.3 million increase in retail deposits, the latter due largely to the success of the Company's new Cicero branch location.

At December 31, 2011, time deposits in excess of \$100,000 totaled \$69.6 million, or 45%, of time deposits and 19% of total deposits. At December 31, 2010, these deposits totaled \$57.4 million, or 40% of time deposits and 18% of total deposits.

The following table indicates the amount of the Company's certificates of deposit of \$100,000 or more by time remaining until maturity as of December 31, 2011:

(In thousands)	
<b>Remaining Maturity:</b>	
Three months or less	\$ 30,503
Three through six months	5,203
Six through twelve months	8,987
Over twelve months	24,865
Total	\$ 69,558

#### Borrowings

Short-term borrowings are comprised primarily of advances and overnight borrowing at the FHLBNY. At December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010 there were \$0 and \$13.0 million, respectively, in short-term borrowings outstanding.

The following table represents information regarding short-term borrowings during 2011, 2010 and 2009:

(Dollars in thousands)	2011	2010	2009
Maximum outstanding at any month end	\$ 11,106	\$ 13,000	\$ 1,400
Average amount outstanding during the year	5,371	745	1,724
Average interest rate during the year	0.50%	0.47%	1.84%

Long-term borrowed funds consist of advances and repurchase agreements from the FHLBNY and Citi Group and junior subordinated debentures. Long-term borrowed funds and junior subordinated debentures totaled \$31.2 million at December 31, 2011 as compared to \$33.2 million at December 31, 2010.

## Capital

Shareholders' equity at December 31, 2011, was \$37.8 million as compared to \$30.6 million at December 31, 2010. The Company added \$2.3 million to retained earnings through net income, offset by a \$725,000 increase in accumulated other comprehensive loss to \$2.7 million from \$1.9 million at December 31, 2010, the latter driven largely by the year end adjustment to the actuarial loss in the pension plan, net of tax expense. In addition, the Company's election to exit from participation in the Treasury's CPP program and participate in the Treasury's SBLF program caused a net increase in capital of \$6.2 million. Common stock dividends declared reduced capital by \$299,000 and preferred stock dividends paid to the Treasury, under the terms of the CPP and SBLF agreements, reduced capital by \$457,000. The Company's sale of 125,000 shares of treasury stock to the ESOP in the third quarter of 2011 did not have a net impact on shareholders' equity.

Risk-based capital provides the basis for which all banks are evaluated in terms of capital adequacy. Capital adequacy is evaluated primarily by the use of ratios which measure capital against total assets, as well as against total assets that are weighted based on defined risk characteristics. The Company's goal is to maintain a strong capital position, consistent with the risk profile of its subsidiary banks that supports growth and expansion activities while at the same time exceeding regulatory standards. At December 31, 2011, the Bank exceeded all

regulatory required minimum capital ratios and met the regulatory definition of a "well-capitalized" institution, i.e. a leverage capital ratio exceeding 5%, a Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio exceeding 6% and a total risk-based capital ratio exceeding 10%. As a result of the Dodd-Frank Act, the Company's ability to raise new capital through the use of trust preferred securities may be limited because these securities will no longer be included in Tier 1 capital. In addition, our ability to generate or originate additional revenue producing assets may be constrained in the future in order to comply with anticipated heightened capital standards required by state and federal regulation. See note 19 to the consolidated financial statements for further discussion on regulatory capital requirements.

# LIQUIDITY

Liquidity management involves the Company's ability to generate cash or otherwise obtain funds at reasonable rates to support asset growth, meet deposit withdrawals, maintain reserve requirements, and otherwise operate the Company on an ongoing basis. The Company's primary sources of funds are deposits, borrowed funds, amortization and prepayment of loans and maturities of investment securities and other short-term investments, and earnings and funds provided from operations. While scheduled principal repayments on loans are a relatively predictable source of funds, deposit flows and loan prepayments are greatly influenced by general interest rates, economic conditions and competition. The Company manages the pricing of deposits to maintain a desired deposit balance. In addition, the Company invests excess funds in short-term interest-earning and other assets, which provide liquidity to meet lending requirements.

The Company's liquidity has been enhanced by its membership in the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York, whose competitive advance programs and lines of credit provide the Company with a safe, reliable and convenient source of funds. A significant decrease in deposits in the future could result in the Company having to seek other sources of funds for liquidity purposes. Such sources could include, but are not limited to, additional borrowings, brokered deposits, negotiated time deposits, the sale of "available-for-sale" investment securities, the sale of securitized loans, or the sale of whole loans. Such actions could result in higher interest expense costs and/or losses on the sale of securities or loans.

The Company has a number of existing credit facilities available to it. Total credit available under the existing lines is approximately \$96.8 million. At December 31, 2011, the Company had \$25.0 million outstanding under existing credit facilities with \$71.8 million available.

The Asset Liability Management Committee of the Company is responsible for implementing the policies and guidelines for the maintenance of prudent levels of liquidity. As of December 31, 2011, management reported to the Board of Directors that the Company is in compliance with its liquidity policy guidelines.

# **OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS**

The Company is also a party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet the financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit. At December 31, 2011, the Company had \$27.1 million in outstanding commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit. See Note 17 in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

# ITEM 7A: QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Not required of a smaller reporting company.

# ITEM 8: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

## Index to Consolidated Financial Statements Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc.

	Page
Management's Report On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting	37
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm	38
Consolidated Statements of Condition – December 31, 2011 and 2010	40
Consolidated Statements of Income – Years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010	41
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders' Equity – Years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010	42
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows - Years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010	43
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements	45

# MANAGEMENT'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with policies or procedures may deteriorate. The Company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed under the supervision of the Company's principal executive officer and principal financial officer to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of the Company's financial statements for external reporting purposes in accordance with United States generally accepted accounting principles.

Under the supervision and with the participation of management, including the Company's principal executive officer and principal financial officer, the Company conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of its internal control over financial reporting based on the framework in *Internal Control – Integrated Framework* issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on its evaluation under that framework, management concluded that the Company's internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2011. In addition, based on our assessment, management has determined that there were no material weaknesses in the Company's internal controls over financial reporting.

This annual report does not include an attestation report of the Company's independent registered public accounting firm regarding internal control over financial reporting pursuant to the rules of the Dodd-Frank Act that exempts the Company from such attestation and requires only management's report.

/s/ Thomas W. Schneider Thomas W. Schneider President & Chief Executive Officer /s/ James A. Dowd

James A. Dowd Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Oswego, New York March 28, 2012

## Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. Oswego, New York

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statement of condition of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiaries (the "Company") as of December 31, 2011 and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in shareholders' equity and cash flows for the year then ended. Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc.'s management is responsible for these consolidated financial statements. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audit included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2011 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

/s/ BONADIO & CO., LLP

Syracuse, New York March 28, 2012

# **Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm**

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. Oswego, New York

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statement of condition of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiaries (the "Company") as of December 31, 2010, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in shareholders' equity and cash flows for the year then ended. Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc.'s management is responsible for these consolidated financial statements. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audit included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2010, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

/s/ParenteBeard LLC

Harrisburg, Pennsylvania March 24, 2011

#### PATHFINDER BANCORP, INC. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CONDITION

	Dec	ember 31,	Dec	ember 31,
(In thousands, except share data)		2011		2010
ASSETS:				
Cash and due from banks	\$	7,093	\$	6,366
Interest earning deposits		3,125		7,397
Total cash and cash equivalents		10,218		13,763
Interest earning time deposits		2,000		-
Investment securities, at fair value		100,395		85,327
Federal Home Loan Bank stock, at cost		1,528		2,134
Loans		304,750		285,296
Less: Allowance for loan losses		3,980		3,648
Loans receivable, net		300,770		281,648
Premises and equipment, net		10,697		9,432
Accrued interest receivable		1,685		1,709
Foreclosed real estate		536		375
Goodwill		3,840		3,840
Bank owned life insurance		7,939		6,915
Other assets		3,372		3,402
Total assets	\$	442,980	\$	408,545
Deposits: Interest-bearing Noninterest-bearing Total deposits Short-term borrowings Long-term borrowings Junior subordinated debentures Accrued interest payable Other liabilities Total liabilities	\$	328,976 37,153 366,129 - 26,074 5,155 145 7,636 405,139	\$	295,786 30,716 326,502 13,000 28,000 5,155 148 5,148 377,953
Shareholders' equity:		,		
<ul> <li>Shareholders' equity:</li> <li>Preferred stock - CPP, par value \$0.01 per share; \$1,000 liquidation preference;</li> <li>1,000,000 shares authorized; 0 and 6,771 shares issued and outstanding, respectively</li> <li>Preferred stock - SBLF, par value \$0.01 per share; \$1,000 liquidation preference;</li> <li>13,000 shares authorized; 13,000 and 0 shares issued and outstanding, respectively</li> <li>Common stock, par value \$0.01; authorized 10,000,000 shares;</li> </ul>		- 13,000		6,225
<ul> <li>Shareholders' equity:</li> <li>Preferred stock - CPP, par value \$0.01 per share; \$1,000 liquidation preference;</li> <li>1,000,000 shares authorized; 0 and 6,771 shares issued and outstanding, respectively</li> <li>Preferred stock - SBLF, par value \$0.01 per share; \$1,000 liquidation preference;</li> <li>13,000 shares authorized; 13,000 and 0 shares issued and outstanding, respectively</li> </ul>		-		6,225
<ul> <li>Shareholders' equity:</li> <li>Preferred stock - CPP, par value \$0.01 per share; \$1,000 liquidation preference;</li> <li>1,000,000 shares authorized; 0 and 6,771 shares issued and outstanding, respectively</li> <li>Preferred stock - SBLF, par value \$0.01 per share; \$1,000 liquidation preference;</li> <li>13,000 shares authorized; 13,000 and 0 shares issued and outstanding, respectively</li> <li>Common stock, par value \$0.01; authorized 10,000,000 shares;</li> <li>2,979,969 and 2,972,119 shares issued and 2,617,682 and 2,484,832 shares</li> </ul>		13,000		-
<ul> <li>Shareholders' equity:</li> <li>Preferred stock - CPP, par value \$0.01 per share; \$1,000 liquidation preference;</li> <li>1,000,000 shares authorized; 0 and 6,771 shares issued and outstanding, respectively</li> <li>Preferred stock - SBLF, par value \$0.01 per share; \$1,000 liquidation preference;</li> <li>13,000 shares authorized; 13,000 and 0 shares issued and outstanding, respectively</li> <li>Common stock, par value \$0.01; authorized 10,000,000 shares;</li> <li>2,979,969 and 2,972,119 shares issued and 2,617,682 and 2,484,832 shares outstanding, respectively</li> </ul>		13,000		30 8,615
<ul> <li>Shareholders' equity:</li> <li>Preferred stock - CPP, par value \$0.01 per share; \$1,000 liquidation preference;</li> <li>1,000,000 shares authorized; 0 and 6,771 shares issued and outstanding, respectively</li> <li>Preferred stock - SBLF, par value \$0.01 per share; \$1,000 liquidation preference;</li> <li>13,000 shares authorized; 13,000 and 0 shares issued and outstanding, respectively</li> <li>Common stock, par value \$0.01; authorized 10,000,000 shares;</li> <li>2,979,969 and 2,972,119 shares issued and 2,617,682 and 2,484,832 shares outstanding, respectively</li> <li>Additional paid in capital</li> </ul>				30 8,615 24,163
<ul> <li>Shareholders' equity:</li> <li>Preferred stock - CPP, par value \$0.01 per share; \$1,000 liquidation preference;</li> <li>1,000,000 shares authorized; 0 and 6,771 shares issued and outstanding, respectively</li> <li>Preferred stock - SBLF, par value \$0.01 per share; \$1,000 liquidation preference;</li> <li>13,000 shares authorized; 13,000 and 0 shares issued and outstanding, respectively</li> <li>Common stock, par value \$0.01; authorized 10,000,000 shares;</li> <li>2,979,969 and 2,972,119 shares issued and 2,617,682 and 2,484,832 shares outstanding, respectively</li> <li>Additional paid in capital</li> <li>Retained earnings</li> </ul>		13,000 30 8,730 24,618		- 30
<ul> <li>Shareholders' equity:</li> <li>Preferred stock - CPP, par value \$0.01 per share; \$1,000 liquidation preference;</li> <li>1,000,000 shares authorized; 0 and 6,771 shares issued and outstanding, respectively</li> <li>Preferred stock - SBLF, par value \$0.01 per share; \$1,000 liquidation preference;</li> <li>13,000 shares authorized; 13,000 and 0 shares issued and outstanding, respectively</li> <li>Common stock, par value \$0.01; authorized 10,000,000 shares;</li> <li>2,979,969 and 2,972,119 shares issued and 2,617,682 and 2,484,832 shares outstanding, respectively</li> <li>Additional paid in capital</li> <li>Retained earnings</li> <li>Accumulated other comprehensive loss</li> </ul>		13,000 30 8,730 24,618 (2,664)		30 8,615 24,163
<ul> <li>Shareholders' equity:</li> <li>Preferred stock - CPP, par value \$0.01 per share; \$1,000 liquidation preference;</li> <li>1,000,000 shares authorized; 0 and 6,771 shares issued and outstanding, respectively</li> <li>Preferred stock - SBLF, par value \$0.01 per share; \$1,000 liquidation preference;</li> <li>13,000 shares authorized; 13,000 and 0 shares issued and outstanding, respectively</li> <li>Common stock, par value \$0.01; authorized 10,000,000 shares;</li> <li>2,979,969 and 2,972,119 shares issued and 2,617,682 and 2,484,832 shares outstanding, respectively</li> <li>Additional paid in capital</li> <li>Retained earnings</li> <li>Accumulated other comprehensive loss</li> <li>Unearned ESOP</li> </ul>		13,000 30 8,730 24,618 (2,664) (1,039)		30 8,615 24,163 (1,939)

#### PATHFINDER BANCORP, INC. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

		Years Ende	ed	
(In thousands, except per share data)	Decem	ber 31, 2011	Decem	ber 31, 2010
Interest and dividend income:				
Loans, including fees	\$	15,988	\$	15,319
Debt securities:				
Taxable		2,080		2,329
Tax-exempt		378		264
Dividends		152		220
Interest earning time deposits		2		-
Federal funds sold and interest earning deposits		4		7
Total interest income		18,604		18,139
Interest expense:				
Interest on deposits		3,236		3,409
Interest on short-term borrowings		27		4
Interest on long-term borrowings		1,078		1,395
Total interest expense		4,341		4,808
Net interest income		14,263		13,331
Provision for loan losses		940		1,050
Net interest income after provision for loan losses		13,323		12,281
Noninterest income:				,
Service charges on deposit accounts		1,131		1,375
Earnings on bank owned life insurance		224		434
Loan servicing fees		196		206
Net gains on sales and redemptions of investment securities		791		211
Net (losses) on sales of loans and foreclosed real estate		(50)		(45)
Debit card interchange fees		369		316
Other charges, commissions & fees		531		523
Total noninterest income		3,192		3,020
Noninterest expense:		,		,
Salaries and employee benefits		7,076		6,126
Building occupancy		1,395		1,281
Data processing		1,398		1,372
Professional and other services		681		563
Advertising		437		268
FDIC assessments		390		515
Audits and exams		162		257
Other expenses		1,609		1,407
Total noninterest expenses		13,148		11,789
Income before income taxes		3,367		3,512
Provision for income taxes		1,044		1,007
Net income		2,323		2,505
Preferred stock dividends and discount accretion		1,003		462
Net income available to common shareholders	\$	1,320	\$	2,043
	-		<u></u>	0.07
Earnings per common share - basic	\$	0.53	\$	0.82
Earnings per common share - diluted	\$	0.52	\$	0.82
Dividends per common share	\$	0.12	\$	0.12

#### PATHFINDER BANCORP, INC. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND DECEMBER 31, 2010

(In thousands, except share data)	]	Preferred	C	Common Stock	A	dditional Paid in Capital		Retained Earnings	Ot	cumulated ther Com- rehensive Loss	τ	Unearned ESOP		Treasury Stock		Total
Balance, January 1, 2011	\$	6,225	\$	30	\$	8,615	\$	24,163	\$		\$		\$	(6,502)	\$	30,592
Comprehensive income:	Ψ	0,225	Ψ	50	Ψ	0,015	ψ	24,105	ψ	(1,)))	ψ		Ψ	(0,502)	Ψ	50,572
Net income								2,323								2,323
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:								2,020								2,020
Unrealized holding gains on securities																
available for sale (net of \$607 tax expense)										908						908
Unrealized holding loss on financial																
derivative (net of \$36 tax benefit)										(54)						(54)
Retirement plan net losses										~ /						~ /
not recognized in plan expenses																
(net of \$1,053 tax benefit)										(1,579)						(1,579)
Total comprehensive income																1,598
Sale of preferred stock - SBLF		13,000														13,000
Redemption of CPP Preferred stock		(6,771)														(6,771)
Preferred stock discount accretion		546						(546)								-
Preferred stock dividends - CPP and SBLF								(457)								(457)
Sale of treasury stock to ESOP								(566)				(1,102)		1,668		-
ESOP shares earned (7,105 shares)						2		~ /				63		,		65
Stock based compensation						47										47
Stock options exercised						66										66
Common stock dividends declared (\$0.12 per share)								(299)								(299)
Balance, December 31, 2011	\$	13,000	\$	30	\$	8,730	\$	24,618	\$	(2,664)	\$	(1,039)	\$	(4,834)	\$	37,841
Balance, January 1, 2010	\$	6,101	\$	30	\$	8,615	\$	22,419	\$	(1,425)	\$	-	\$	(6,502)	\$	29,238
Comprehensive income:																
Net income								2,505								2,505
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax:																
Unrealized holding losses on securities																
available for sale (net of \$56 tax benefit)										(85)						(85)
Unrealized holding loss on financial																
derivative (net of \$44 tax benefit)										(66)						(66)
Retirement plan net losses not																
recognized in plan expenses																
(net of \$242 tax benefit)										(363)						(363)
Total comprehensive income																1,991
Preferred stock discount accretion		124						(124)								-
Preferred stock dividends - CPP								(339)								(339)
Common stock dividends declared (\$0.12 per share)								(298)								(298)
Balance, December 31, 2010	\$	6,225	\$	30	\$	8,615	\$	24,163	\$	(1,939)	\$	-	\$	(6,502)	\$	30,592

## PATHFINDER BANCORP, INC. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

	Ye	ars Ended D	nded December 31,			
(In thousands)		2011		2010		
OPERATING ACTIVITIES						
Net income	\$	2,323	\$	2,505		
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:						
Provision for loan losses		940		1,050		
Deferred income tax expense		1,193		263		
Proceeds from sales of loans		-		264		
Originations of loans held-for-sale		-		(256)		
Realized losses (gains) on sales and redemptions of:						
Real estate acquired through foreclosure		50		53		
Loans		-		(8)		
Premises and equipment		-		1		
Available-for-sale investment securities		(791)		(211)		
Depreciation		723		644		
Amortization of mortgage servicing rights		27		28		
Amortization of deferred loan costs		160		230		
Earnings on bank owned life insurance		(224)		(279)		
Realized gain on proceeds from bank owned life insurance		-		(155)		
Net amortization of premiums and discounts on investment securities		614		319		
Stock based compensation and ESOP expense		112		-		
Decrease (increase) in accrued interest receivable		24		(227)		
Net change in other assets and liabilities		(1, 141)		163		
Net cash provided by operating activities		4,010		4,384		
INVESTING ACTIVITIES						
Purchase of interest earning time deposits		(2,000)		-		
Purchase of investment securities available-for-sale		(60,641)		(60,459)		
Net proceeds from the redemption of (purchases of ) of Federal Home Loan Bank stock		606		(235)		
Proceeds from maturities and principal reductions of						
investment securities available-for-sale		32,172		37,431		
Proceeds from sales and redemptions of:						
Available-for-sale investment securities		15,091		10,206		
Real estate acquired through foreclosure		750		210		
Premises and equipment		5		24		
Purchase of bank owned life insurance		(800)		-		
Proceeds from bank owned life insurance		-		474		
Net increase in loans		(20,985)		(24,001)		
Purchase of premises and equipment		(1,993)		(2,928)		
Net cash used in investing activities		(37,795)		(39,278)		
FINANCING ACTIVITIES						
Net increase in demand deposits, NOW accounts, savings accounts,						
money management deposit accounts, MMDA accounts and escrow deposits		42,410		36,753		
Net decrease in time deposits		(2,783)		(7,090)		
Net repayments of short-term borrowings		(13,000)		13,000		
Payments on long-term borrowings		(6,000)		(12,000)		

Proceeds from long-term borrowings	4,074	4,000
Proceeds from sale of preferred stock – SBLF	13,000	-
Proceeds from exercise of stock options	66	-
Redemption of preferred stock – CPP	(6,771)	-
Cash dividends paid to preferred shareholder – CPP and SBLF	(457)	(339)
Cash dividends paid to common shareholders	(299)	(298)
Net cash provided by financing activities	30,240	34,026
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents	(3,545)	(868)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period	13,763	14,631
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period	\$ 10,218	\$ 13,763
CASH PAID DURING THE PERIOD FOR:		
Interest	\$ 4,344	\$ 4,845
Income taxes	1,507	403
NON-CASH INVESTING ACTIVITY		
Transfer of loans to foreclosed real estate	1,083	460
Transfer of loans to repossessed assets	258	-

## NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

## NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

#### Nature of Operations

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. (the "Company") and its wholly owned subsidiary, Pathfinder Bank (the "Bank"). The Bank has three wholly owned operating subsidiaries, Pathfinder Commercial Bank, Whispering Oaks Development Corp. and Pathfinder REIT, Inc. All inter-company accounts and activity have been eliminated in consolidation. The Company has seven offices located in Oswego County and a new branch, which opened for business on February 1, 2011 in northern Onondaga County. The Company is primarily engaged in the business of attracting deposits from the general public in the Company's market area, and investing such deposits, together with other sources of funds, in loans secured by one-to-four family residential real estate, commercial real estate, business assets and in investment securities.

Pathfinder Bancorp, M.H.C., (the "Holding Company") a mutual holding company whose activity is not included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements, owns approximately 60.5% of the outstanding common stock of the Company.

#### Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Management has identified the allowance for loan losses, deferred income taxes, pension obligations, the evaluation of goodwill for impairment and the evaluation of investment securities for other than temporary impairment to be the accounting areas that require the most subjective and complex judgments, and as such, could be the most subject to revision as new information becomes available.

The Company is subject to the regulations of various governmental agencies. The Company also undergoes periodic examinations by the regulatory agencies which may subject it to further changes with respect to asset valuations, amounts of required loss allowances, and operating restrictions resulting from the regulators' judgments based on information available to them at the time of their examinations.

## Significant Group Concentrations of Credit Risk

Most of the Company's activities are with customers located primarily in Oswego and parts of Onondaga counties of New York State. Note 4 discusses the types of securities that the Company invests in. Note 5 discusses the types of lending that the Company engages in. The Company does not have any significant concentrations to any one industry or customer.

## Advertising

The Company follows the policy of charging the costs of advertising to expense as incurred.

#### Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, amounts due from banks and interest-bearing deposits (with original maturity of three months or less).

## **Investment Securities**

The Company classifies investment securities as available-for-sale. Available-for-sale securities are reported at fair value, with net unrealized gains and losses reflected as a separate component of shareholders' equity, net of the applicable income tax effect. None of the Company's investment securities have been classified as trading or held-to-maturity.

Gains or losses on investment security transactions are based on the amortized cost of the specific securities sold. Premiums and discounts on securities are amortized and accreted into income using the interest method over the period to maturity.

Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements includes additional information about the Company's accounting policies with respect to the impairment of investment securities.

## Federal Home Loan Bank Stock

Federal law requires a member institution of the Federal Home Loan Bank ("FHLB") system to hold stock of its district FHLB according to a predetermined formula. The stock is carried at cost.

## Mortgage Loans Held-for-Sale

Mortgage loans held-for-sale are carried at the lower of cost or fair value. Fair value is determined in the aggregate. There were no loans held-for-sale or forward commitments outstanding as of December 31, 2011 and 2010.

## Transfers of Financial Assets

Transfers of financial assets, including sales of loans and loan participations, are accounted for as sales when control over the assets has been surrendered. Control over transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered when (1) the assets have been isolated from the Company, (2) the transferree obtains the right (free of conditions that constrain it from taking advantage of that right) to pledge or exchange the transferred assets, and (3) the Company does not maintain effective control over the transferred assets through an agreement to repurchase them before their maturity.

## Loans

The Company grants mortgage, commercial and consumer loans to customers. Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or pay-off are stated at their outstanding unpaid principal balances, less the allowance for loan losses and plus net deferred loan origination costs. The ability of the Company's debtors to honor their contracts is dependent upon the real estate and general economic conditions in the market area. Interest income is generally recognized when income is earned using the interest method. Nonrefundable loan fees received and related direct origination costs incurred are deferred and amortized over the life of the loan using the interest method, resulting in a constant effective yield over the loan term. Deferred fees are recognized into income and deferred costs are charged to income immediately upon prepayment of the related loan.

The loans receivable portfolio is segmented into residential mortgage, commercial and consumer loans. The residential mortgage segment consists of one-to-four family first-lien residential mortgages and construction loans. Commercial loans consist of the following classes: real estate, other commercial and industrial, lines of credit and municipal loans. Consumer loans include both home equity lines of credit and loans with junior liens and other consumer loans.

#### Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses represents management's estimate of losses inherent in the loan portfolio as of the date of the statement of condition and it is recorded as a reduction of loans. The allowance is increased by the provision for loan losses, and decreased by charge-offs, net of recoveries. Loans deemed to be uncollectible are charged against the allowance for loan losses, and subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance. All, or part, of the principal balance of loans receivable are charged off to the allowance as soon as it is determined that the repayment of all, or part, of the principal balance is highly unlikely. Non-residential consumer loans are generally charged off no later than 120 days past due on a contractual basis, unless productive collection efforts are providing results. Consumer loans may be charged off earlier in the event of bankruptcy, or if there is an amount that is deemed uncollectible. Because all identified losses are immediately charged off, no portion of the allowance for loan losses.

The allowance for loan losses is maintained at a level considered adequate to provide for losses that can be reasonably anticipated. Management performs a quarterly evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance. The allowance is based on the Company's past loan loss experience, known and inherent risks in the portfolio, adverse situations that may affect the borrower's ability to repay, the estimated value of any underlying collateral, composition of the loan portfolio, current economic conditions and other relevant factors. This evaluation is inherently subjective, as it requires material estimates that may be susceptible to significant revision as more information becomes available.

The allowance consists of specific, general and unallocated components. The specific component relates to loans that are classified as impaired. For loans that are classified impaired, an allowance is established when the discounted cash flows or collateral value of the impaired loan are lower than the carrying value of that loan.

The general component covers pools of loans, by loan class, including commercial loans not considered impaired, as well as smaller balance homogenous loans, such as residential real estate, home equity and other consumer loans. These pools of loans are evaluated for loss exposure based on historical loss rates for each of these categories of loans, which are adjusted for qualitative factors. The qualitative factors include:

- Lending policies and procedures, including underwriting standards and collection, charge-off and recovery practices
- National, regional and local economic and business conditions as well as the condition of various market segments, including the value of underlying collateral for collateral dependent loans
- Nature and volume of the portfolio and terms of the loans
- Experience, ability and depth of the lending management and staff
- Volume and severity of past due, classified and non-accrual loans, as well as other loan modifications
- Quality of the Company's loan review system and the degree of oversight by the Company's Board of Directors

Each factor is assigned a value to reflect improving, stable or declining conditions based on management's best judgment using relevant information available at the time of the evaluation. Adjustments to the factors are supported through documentation of changes in conditions in a narrative accompanying the allowance for loan loss analysis and calculation.

An unallocated component is maintained to cover uncertainties that could affect management's estimate of probable losses. The unallocated component of the allowance reflects the margin of imprecision inherent in the underlying assumptions used in the methodologies for estimating specific and general losses in the portfolio.

A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that the Company will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Factors considered by management in determining impairment include payment

status, collateral value and the probability of collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when due. Loans that experience insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls generally are not classified as impaired. Management determines the significance of payment delays and shortfalls on a case-by case basis, taking into consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the loan and the borrower, including the length and reason for the delay, the borrower's prior payment record and the amount of shortfall in relation to what is owed. Impairment is measured by either the present value of the expected future cash flows discounted at the loan's effective interest rate or the fair value of the underlying collateral if the loan is collateral dependent.

An allowance for loan loss is established for an impaired loan if its carrying value exceeds its estimated fair value. The estimated fair values of substantially all of the Company's impaired loans are measured based on the estimated fair value of the loan's collateral. For loans secured by real estate, estimated fair values are determined primarily through third-party appraisals. When a real estate secured loan becomes impaired, a decision is made regarding whether an updated certified appraisal of the real estate is necessary. This decision is based on various considerations, including the age of the most recent appraisal, the loan-to-value ratio based on the original appraisal, and the condition of the property. Appraised values are discounted to arrive at the estimated selling price of the collateral, which is considered to be the estimated fair value. The discounts also include estimated costs to sell the property.

For commercial and industrial loans secured by non-real estate collateral, such as accounts receivable, inventory and equipment, estimated fair values are determined based on the borrower's financial statements, inventory reports, account receivable agings or equipment appraisals or invoices. Indications of value from these sources are generally discounted based on the age of the financial information or the quality of the assets.

Large groups of homogeneous loans are collectively evaluated for impairment. Accordingly, the Company does not separately identify individual residential mortgage loans, home equity and other consumer loans for impairment disclosures, unless such loans are related to borrowers with impaired commercial loans or they are the subject to a troubled debt restructuring agreement.

Loans whose terms are modified are classified as troubled debt restructurings if the Company grants such borrowers concessions and it is deemed that those borrowers are experiencing financial difficulty. Concessions granted under a troubled debt restructuring generally involve a temporary reduction in the interest rate or an extension of a loan's stated maturity date. Loans classified as troubled debt restructurings are designated as impaired and evaluated as discussed above.

The allowance calculation methodology includes further segregation of loan classes into risk rating categories. The borrower's overall financial condition, repayment sources, guarantors and value of the collateral, if appropriate, are evaluated annually for commercial loans or when credit deficiencies arise on all loans. Credit quality risk ratings include regulatory classifications of special mention, substandard, doubtful and loss. See Note 5 for a description of these regulatory classifications.

In addition, Federal regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their examination process, periodically review the Company's allowance for loan losses and may require the Company to recognize additions to the allowance based on their judgments about information available to them at the time of their examination, which may not be currently available to management. Based on management's comprehensive analysis of the loan portfolio, management believes the current level of the allowance for loan losses is adequate.

## Income Recognition on Impaired and Non-accrual Loans

For all classes of loans receivable, the accrual of interest is discontinued when the contractual payment of principal or interest has become 90 days past due or management has serious doubts about further collectibility of principal or interest, even though the loan may be currently performing. A loan may remain on accrual status if it is in the process of collection and is either guaranteed or well secured. When a loan is placed on non-accrual status, unpaid interest is reversed and charged to interest income. Interest received on non-accrual loans,

including impaired loans, generally is either applied against principal or reported as interest income, according to management's judgment as to the collectibility of principal. Generally, loans are restored to accrual status when the obligation is brought current, has performed in accordance with the contractual terms for a reasonable period of time and the ultimate collectibility of the total contractual principal and interest is no longer in doubt. Non-accrual troubled debt restructurings are restored to accrual status if principal and interest payments, under the modified terms, are current for six consecutive months after modification.

For non-accrual loans, when future collectability of the recorded loan balance is expected, interest income may be recognized on a cash basis. In the case where a non-accrual loan had been partially charged off, recognition of interest on a cash basis is limited to that which would have been recognized on the recorded loan balance at the contractual interest rate. Cash interest receipts in excess of that amount are recorded as recoveries to the allowance for loan losses until prior charge-offs have been fully recovered.

## **Off-Balance Sheet Credit Related Financial Instruments**

In the ordinary course of business, the Company has entered into commitments to extend credit, including commitments under standby letters of credit. Such financial instruments are recorded when they are funded.

#### **Premises and Equipment**

Premises and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed on a straightline basis over the estimated useful lives of the related assets, ranging up to 40 years for premises and 10 years for equipment. Maintenance and repairs are charged to operating expenses as incurred. The asset cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts for assets sold or retired and any resulting gain or loss is included in the determination of income.

#### Foreclosed Real Estate

Properties acquired through foreclosure, or by deed in lieu of foreclosure, are recorded at their fair value less estimated costs to sell. Fair value is typically determined based on evaluations by third parties. Costs incurred in connection with preparing the foreclosed real estate for disposition are capitalized to the extent that they enhance the overall fair value of the property. Any write-downs on the asset's fair value less costs to sell at the date of acquisition are charged to the allowance for loan losses. Subsequent write downs and expenses of foreclosed real estate are included in noninterest expense.

## Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the net assets acquired. Goodwill is not amortized, but is evaluated annually for impairment.

#### Mortgage Servicing Rights

Originated mortgage servicing rights are recorded at their fair value at the time of transfer of the related loans and are amortized in proportion to and over the period of estimated net servicing income or loss. The carrying value of the originated mortgage servicing rights is periodically evaluated for impairment or between annual evaluations under certain circumstances.

#### **Stock-Based Compensation**

Compensation costs related to share-based payment transactions are recognized based on the grant-date fair value of the stock-based compensation issued. Compensation costs are recognized over the period that an employee provides service in exchange for the award.

## **Retirement Benefits**

The Company has established tax qualified retirement plans covering substantially all full-time employees and certain part-time employees. Pension expense under these plans is charged to current operations and consists of several components of net pension cost based on various actuarial assumptions regarding future experience under the plans.

Gains and losses, prior service costs and credits, and any remaining transition amounts that have not yet been recognized through net periodic benefit cost are recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax effects, until they are amortized as a component of net periodic cost. Plan assets and obligations are measured as of the Company's statement of condition date.

The Company has unfunded deferred compensation and supplemental executive retirement plans for selected current and former employees and officers that provide benefits that cannot be paid from a qualified retirement plan due to Internal Revenue Code restrictions. These plans are nonqualified under the Internal Revenue Code, and assets used to fund benefit payments are not segregated from other assets of the Company, therefore, in general, a participant's or beneficiary's claim to benefits under these plans is as a general creditor.

The Company sponsors an Employee Stock Ownership Plan ("ESOP") covering substantially all full time employees. The cost of shares issued to the ESOP but not committed to be released to the participants is presented in the consolidated statement of condition as a reduction of shareholders' equity. ESOP shares are released to the participants proportionately as the loan is repaid. The Company records ESOP compensation expense based on the shares committed to be released and allocated to the participant's accounts multiplied by the average share price of the Company's stock over the period. Dividends related to unallocated shares are recorded as compensation expense.

#### **Derivative Financial Instruments**

Derivatives are recorded on the statement of condition as assets and liabilities measured at their fair value. The accounting for increases and decreases in the value of derivatives depends upon the use of derivatives and whether the derivatives qualify for hedge accounting. The Company currently has one interest rate swap, which has been determined to be a cash flow hedge. The fair value of cash-flow hedging instruments ("Cash Flow Hedge") is recorded in either other assets or other liabilities. On an ongoing basis, the statement of condition is adjusted to reflect the then current fair value of the Cash Flow Hedge. The related gains or losses are reported in other comprehensive income (loss) and are subsequently reclassified into earnings, as a yield adjustment in the same period in which the related interest on the hedged item (primarily a variable-rate debt obligation) affect earnings. To the extent that the Cash Flow Hedge is not effective, the ineffective portion of the Cash Flow Hedge is immediately recognized as interest expense.

#### Income Taxes

Provisions for income taxes are based on taxes currently payable or refundable and deferred income taxes on temporary differences between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their reported amounts in the consolidated financial statements. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are reported in the consolidated financial statements at currently enacted income tax rates applicable to the period in which the deferred tax assets and liabilities are expected to be realized or settled.

### **Earnings Per Share**

Basic earnings per common share are computed by dividing net income, after preferred stock dividends and preferred stock discount accretion, by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding throughout each year. Diluted earnings per share gives effect to weighted average shares that would be outstanding assuming the exercise of issued stock options and warrants using the treasury stock method. Unallocated shares of the Company's ESOP plan are not included when computing earnings per share until they are committed to be released.

#### Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the 2010 consolidated financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation. These reclassifications had no effect on net income as previously reported.

## NOTE 2: NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In December 2011, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") 2011-12 - Deferral of the Effective Date for Amendments to the Presentation of Reclassifications of Items out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income in Accounting Standards Update No. 2011-05. Stakeholders raised concerns that the new presentation requirements (pending paragraphs 220-10-45-17 through 45-18, 220-10-55-7 through 55-8, 220-10-55-9, and 220-10-55-18 of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification) about reclassifications of items out of accumulated other comprehensive income would be difficult for preparers and may add unnecessary complexity to financial statements. In addition, it is difficult for some preparers to change systems in time to gather the information for the new presentation requirements by the effective date of ASU 2011-05. Given these issues, they asked the Board to reconsider whether it is necessary to require entities to present reclassification adjustments by component in both the statement where net income is presented and the statement where other comprehensive income is presented for both interim and annual financial statements. Because those pending paragraphs are effective on a retrospective basis for public entities for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2011, and interim periods within those years, those stakeholders asked the Board, at a minimum, to defer the effective date pertaining to reclassification adjustments out of accumulated other comprehensive income in Accounting Standards Update 2011-05, Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Presentation of Comprehensive Income, until the Board is able to reconsider those paragraphs.

In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-08 - Intangibles—Goodwill and Other (Topic 350), Testing Goodwill for Impairment. The objective of this Update is to simplify how entities, both public and nonpublic, test goodwill for impairment. The amendments in the Update permit an entity to first assess qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount as a basis for determining whether it is necessary to perform the two-step goodwill impairment test described in Topic 350. The more-likely-than-not threshold is defined as having a likelihood of more than 50 percent. Previous guidance under Topic 350 required an entity to test goodwill for impairment, on at least an annual basis, by comparing the fair value of a reporting unit with its carrying amount, including goodwill (step one). If the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount, then the second step of the test must be performed to measure the amount of the impairment loss, if any. Under the amendments in this Update, an entity is not required to calculate the fair value of a reporting unit unless the entity determines that it is more likely than not that its fair value is less than its carrying amount. The amendments in this Update are intended to reduce complexity and costs by allowing an entity the option to make a qualitative evaluation about the likelihood of goodwill impairment to determine whether it should calculate the fair value of a reporting unit. The amendments are effective for annual and interim goodwill impairment tests performed for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2011. Early adoption is permitted, including for annual and interim goodwill impairment tests performed as of a date before September 15, 2011, if an entity's financial statements for the most recent annual or interim period have not yet been issued or, for nonpublic entities, have not yet been made available for issuance. The Company early adopted this update for its 2011 goodwill impairment evaluation with no material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-05—Comprehensive Income (Topic 220), Presentation of Comprehensive Income. This update was issued to improve the comparability, consistency, and transparency of financial reporting and to increase the prominence of items reported in other comprehensive income. To increase the prominence of items reported in other comprehensive income and to facilitate convergence of U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), the FASB decided to eliminate the option to present components of other comprehensive income as part of the statement of changes in shareholders' equity, among other amendments in this Update. The amendments require that all nonowner changes in shareholders' equity be presented either in a single continuous statement of comprehensive income or in two separate but consecutive statements. The amendments in this Update should be applied retrospectively. For public entities, the amendments are effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2011. Early adoption is permitted, because compliance with the amendments is already permitted. The amendments do not require any transition disclosures. The adoption of this update will require the Company to provide a change in disclosures related to comprehensive income.

# NOTE 3: EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing net income available to common shareholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Net income available to common shareholders is net income less the total of preferred dividends declared and the amortization of the warrant value under the CPP program. Diluted earnings per share include the potential dilutive effect that could occur upon the assumed exercise of issued stock options and warrants issued to the U.S. Treasury using the treasury stock method. Unallocated common shares held by the ESOP are not included in the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding for purposes of calculating earnings per common share until they are committed to be released.

		rs ended mber 31,	
(In thousands, except per share data)	2011		2010
Basic Earnings Per Common Share			
Net income available to common shareholders	\$ 1,320	\$	2,043
Weighted average common shares outstanding	2,490		2,485
Basic earnings per common share	\$ 0.53	\$	0.82
Diluted Earnings Per Common Share Net income available to common shareholders Weighted average common shares outstanding Effect of assumed exercise of stock options Effect of assumed exercise of stock warrants	\$ 1,320 2,490 3 43	\$	2,043 2,485
Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding	2,536		2,489
Diluted earnings per common share	\$ 0.52	\$	0.82

The following table sets forth the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share:

# NOTE 4: INVESTMENT SECURITIES – AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of investment securities are summarized as follows:

				Decer	nber 3	1, 2	011		
				Gross		Gross			imated
	Am	nortized	Unre	ealized	U	Jnre	alized		Fair
(In thousands)		Cost		Gains		]	Losses		Value
Debt investment securities:									
US Treasury, agencies and GSEs	\$	5,025	\$	48		\$	-	\$	5,073
State and political subdivisions		19,508		797			(1)		20,304
Corporate		21,086		38			(690)		20,434
Residential mortgage-backed - US agency		49,665		1,395			(4)		51,056
Residential mortgage-backed - private label		505		14			-		519
Total		95,789		2,292			(695)		97,386
Equity investment securities:									
Mutual funds:									
Ultra short mortgage fund		1,286		12			-		1,298
Large cap equity fund		905		119			-		1,024
Other mutual funds		183		60			-		243
Common stock - financial services industry		443		2			(1)		444
Total		2,817		193			(1)		3,009
Total investment securities	\$	98,606	 \$	2,485		\$	(696)	\$	100,395

				Dece	mber 31	, 2010		
				Gross		Gross		mated
	Amortized		Unre	ealized	Uni	realized		Fair
(In thousands)		Cost		Gains		Losses	Value	
Debt investment securities:								
US Treasury, agencies and GSEs	\$	20,137	\$	139	\$	(253)	\$	20,023
State and political subdivisions		19,227		174		(422)		18,979
Corporate		5,865		228		(493)		5,600
Residential mortgage-backed - US agency		35,714		934		(239)		36,409
Residential mortgage-backed - private label		816		21		-		837
Total		81,759		1,496		(1,407)		81,848
Equity investment securities:								
Mutual funds:								
Ultra short mortgage fund		1,532		26		-		1,558
Large cap equity fund		1,129		93		-		1,222
Other mutual funds		183		61		-		244
Common stock - financial services industry		450		5		-		455
Total		3,294		185		-		3,479
Total investment securities	\$	85,053	\$	1,681	\$	(1,407)	\$	85,327

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of debt investments at December 31, 2011 by contractual maturity are shown below. Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without penalties.

	Amortized	Estimated
	Cost	Fair Value
(In thousands)		
Due in one year or less	\$ 4,365	\$ 4,384
Due after one year through five years	21,206	21,210
Due after five years through ten years	5,860	6,223
Due after ten years	14,188	13,994
Mortgage-backed securities	50,170	51,575
Totals	\$ 95,789	\$ 97,386

The Company's investment securities' gross unrealized losses and fair value, aggregated by investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position, is as follows:

					Decen	nber 31, 20	11				
	Less than Twelve Months			Twelv	Twelve Months or More				Total		
	Ur	realized		Fair	Un	realized	Ι	Fair	Unre	ealized	Fair
		Losses		Value		Losses	Va	lue		Losses	Value
(In thousands)											
State and political subdivisions	\$	(1)	\$	412	\$	-	\$	-	\$	(1)	\$ 412
Corporate		(131)		13,489		(559)	1,4	410		(690)	14,899
Residential mortgage-backed - US agency		(4)		1,896		-		-		(4)	1,896
Common stock-financial services industry		-		-		(1)		3		(1)	3
	\$	(136)	\$	15,797	\$	(560)	\$ 1,4	413	\$	(696)	\$ 17,210

		December 31, 2010										
	Les	Less than Twelve Months			Twelve Months or More				Total			
	Uı	Unrealized		Fair	Unrealized		Fair		Unrealized		Fair	
		Losses		Value		Losses	V	alue		Losses	Value	
(In thousands)												
US Treasury, agencies and GSEs	\$	(253)	\$	9,260	\$	-	\$	-	\$	(253)	\$ 9,260	
State and political subdivisions		(422)		10,173		-		-		(422)	10,173	
Corporate		-		-		(493)	1	,473		(493)	1,473	
Residential mortgage-backed - US agency		(239)		8,861		-		-		(239)	8,861	
	\$	(914)	\$	28,294	\$	(493)	\$ 1	,473	\$	(1,407)	\$ 29,767	

We conduct a formal review of investment securities on a quarterly basis for the presence of other-thantemporary impairment ("OTTI"). We assess whether OTTI is present when the fair value of a debt security is less than its amortized cost basis at the statement of condition date. Under these circumstances, OTTI is considered to have occurred (1) if we intend to sell the security; (2) if it is "more likely than not" we will be required to sell the security before recovery of its amortized cost basis; or (3) the present value of expected cash flows is not expected to be sufficient to recover the entire amortized cost basis. The guidance requires that credit-related OTTI is recognized in earnings while non-credit-related OTTI on securities not expected to be sold is recognized in other comprehensive income ("OCI"). Non-credit-related OTTI is based on other factors, including illiquidity. Presentation of OTTI is made in the consolidated statement of income on a gross basis, including both the portion recognized in earnings as well as the portion recorded in OCI. The gross OTTI would then be offset by the amount of non-credit-related OTTI, showing the net as the impact on earnings.

At December 31, 2011, one state and political subdivision security is in an unrealized loss position. The Portland Michigan Public Schools general obligation bond is AA- rated by S&P and carries credit support from Assured Guaranty. The security has been in an unrealized loss position for only 4 months. The unrealized losses relate principally to changes in interest rates subsequent to the acquisition of the specific securities. No other than temporary impairment is deemed present on this security.

At December 31, 2011, twenty one corporate securities were in unrealized loss positions. Nineteen of the twenty one securities are currently A rated or better by Moody's or S&P. All of the nineteen positions have an unrealized loss that is 2.23% of their associated book value or less. One holding has been in an unrealized loss position for seven months and the remaining eighteen have been in loss positions for only four months or less. The Company does not intend to sell and it is not more than likely than not the Company will be required to sell those securities until recovery or final maturity. The unrealized losses relate principally to changes in interest rates subsequent to the acquisition of the specific securities. No other than temporary impairment is deemed present on these securities.

The remaining two corporate securities represent trust-preferred issuances from large money center financial institutions. The JP Morgan Chase floating rate trust-preferred security has a carrying value of \$986,000 and a fair value of \$685,000. The Bank of America floating rate trust-preferred security has a carrying value of \$983,000 and a fair value of \$725,000. The securities are rated A2 and Ba1 by Moody's, respectively. The securities are both floating rate notes that adjust quarterly to LIBOR. These securities are reflecting a net unrealized loss due to current similar offerings being originated at higher spreads to LIBOR, as the market currently demands a greater pricing premium for the associated risk. Management has performed a detailed credit analysis on the underlying companies and has concluded that neither issue is credit impaired. Due to the fact that each security has approximately 15 years until final maturity, and management has determined that there is no related credit impairment, the associated pricing risk is managed similar to long-term, low yielding, 15 and 30-year fixed rate residential mortgages carried in the Company's loan portfolio. The risk is managed through the Company's extensive interest rate risk management procedures. The Company expects the present value of expected cash flows will be sufficient to recover the amortized cost basis. Thus, the securities are not deemed to be other-than-temporarily impaired.

Two US government agency and US government sponsored enterprise (GSE) residential mortgage-backed security holdings have an unrealized loss as of December 31, 2011. The securities were issued by the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation. The unrealized losses have been in place for three months or less. The unrealized losses relates principally to changes in interest rates subsequent to the acquisition of the specific security. No OTTI is deemed present on these securities.

In determining whether OTTI has occurred for equity securities, the Company considers the applicable factors described above and the length of time the equity security's fair value has been below the carrying amount. Management has determined that we have the intent and ability to retain the equity securities for a sufficient period of time to allow for recovery. The Company holds one equity security that had a fair value less than the carrying value at December 31, 2011. A small common stock investment in The Phoenix Companies has an unrealized loss of less than \$1,000. Due to the relatively small size of the unrealized loss and short duration of the loss period, no OTTI is deemed present in relation to this security.

The following table presents a roll-forward of the amount related to credit losses recognized in earnings for the years ended December 31:

(In thousands)	2011	2010
Beginning balance – January 1	\$ 875	\$ 875
Reductions for securities sold	(875)	
Ending balance - December 31	\$ -	\$ 875

The above credit losses were related to one security that was sold at a small gain during the period ended December 31, 2011.

Gross realized gains (losses) on sales and redemptions of securities for the years ended December 31 are detailed below:

(In thousands)	2011	2010
Realized gains	\$ 796	\$ 212
Realized losses	(5)	(1)
	\$ 791	\$ 211

As of December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, securities with a fair value of \$61.2 million and \$47.5 million, respectively, were pledged to collateralize certain deposit and borrowing arrangements.

Management has reviewed its mortgage-backed securities portfolio and determined that, to the best of its knowledge, little or no exposure exists to sub-prime or other high-risk residential mortgages. The Company is not in the practice of investing in these types of loans.

## **NOTE 5: LOANS**

Major classifications of loans are as follows:

	Dec	cember 31,	Dec	cember 31,
(In thousands)		2011		2010
Residential mortgage loans:				
1-4 family first-lien residential mortgages	\$	158,384	\$	143,661
Construction		3,935		3,569
		162,319		147,230
Commercial loans:				
Real estate		73,420		69,042
Lines of credit		13,791		14,122
Other commercial and industrial		22,701		20,779
Municipal		3,619		4,826
		113,531		108,769
Consumer loans:				
Home equity and junior liens		24,171		25,168
Other consumer		4,140		3,411
		28,311		28,579
Total loans		304,161		284,578
Net deferred loan costs		589		718
Less allowance for loan losses		(3,980)		(3,648)
Loans receivable, net	\$	300,770	\$	281,648

The Company grants residential mortgage, commercial and consumer loans to customers throughout Oswego and parts of Onondaga counties. Although the Company has a diversified loan portfolio, a substantial portion of its debtors' abilities to honor their contracts is dependent upon the counties' employment and economic conditions.

#### Loan Origination / Risk Management

The Company has lending policies and procedures in place that are designed to maximize loan income within an acceptable level of risk. Management reviews and approves these policies and procedures on a regular basis. A reporting system supplements the review process by frequently providing management with reports related to loan production, loan quality, loan delinquencies, non-performing and potential problem loans. Diversification in the loan portfolio is a means of managing risk associated with fluctuations in economic conditions.

#### **Risk Characteristics of Portfolio Segments**

Each portfolio segment generally carries its own unique risk characteristics.

The residential mortgage loan segment is impacted by general economic conditions, unemployment rates in the Bank's service area, real estate values and the forward expectation of improvement or deterioration in economic conditions.

The commercial segment is impacted by general economic conditions but, more specifically, the industry segment in which each borrower participates. Unique competitive changes within a borrower's specific industry, or geographic location could cause significant changes in the borrower's revenue stream, and therefore, impact its ability to repay its obligations. Commercial real estate is also subject to general economic conditions but changes within this segment typically lag changes seen within the consumer and commercial segment. Included within this portfolio are both owner occupied real estate, in which the borrower occupies the majority of the real

estate property and upon which the majority of the sources of repayment of the obligation is dependent upon, and non-owner occupied real estate, in which several tenants comprise the repayment source for this portfolio segment. The composition and competitive position of the tenant structure may cause adverse changes in the repayment of debt obligations for the non-owner occupied class within this segment.

The consumer segment is impacted by general economic conditions, unemployment rates in the Company's service area, and the forward expectation of improvement or deterioration in economic conditions.

Real estate loans, including residential mortgages, commercial real estate loans and home equity, comprise approximately 85% of the portfolio in both 2011 and 2010. Loans secured by real estate provide the best collateral protection and thus significantly reduce the inherent risk in the portfolio.

Management has reviewed its loan portfolio and determined that, to the best of its knowledge, little or no exposure exists to sub-prime or other high-risk residential mortgages. The Company is not in the practice of originating these types of loans.

## **Description of Credit Quality Indicators**

The Company utilizes an eight tier risk rating system to evaluate the quality of its loan portfolio. Loans that are risk rated "1" through "4" are considered "Pass" loans. In accordance with regulatory guidelines, loans rated "5" through "8" are termed "criticized" loans and loans rated "6" through "8" are termed "classified" loans. A description of the Company's credit quality indicators follows.

## For Commercial Loans:

- 1. <u>Prime</u>: A loan that is fully secured by properly margined Pathfinder Bank deposit account(s) or an obligation of the US Government. It may also be unsecured if it is supported by a very strong financial condition and, in the case of a commercial loan, excellent management. There exists an unquestioned ability to repay the loan in accordance with its terms.
- 2. <u>Strong</u>: Desirable relationship of somewhat less stature than Prime grade. Possesses a sound documented repayment source, and back up, which will allow repayment within the terms of the loan. Individual loans backed by solid assets, character and integrity. Ability of individual or company management is good and well established. Probability of serious financial deterioration is unlikely.
- 3. <u>Satisfactory</u>: Stable financial condition with cash flow sufficient for debt service coverage. Satisfactory loans of average strength having some deficiency or vulnerability to changing economic or industry conditions but performing as agreed with documented evidence of repayment capacity. May be unsecured loans to borrowers with satisfactory credit and financial strength. Satisfactory provisions for management succession and a secondary source of repayment exists.
- 4. <u>Satisfactory Watch:</u> A four is not a criticized or classified credit. These credits do not display the characteristics of a criticized asset as defined by the regulatory definitions. A credit is given a Satisfactory Watch designation if there are matters or trends observed deserving attention somewhat beyond normal monitoring. Borrowing obligations may be handled according to agreement but could be adversely impacted by developing factors such as industry conditions, operating problems, litigation pending of a significant nature or declining collateral quality and adequacy.

- 5. <u>Special Mention</u>: A warning risk grade that portrays one or more weaknesses that may be tolerated in the short term. Assets in this category are currently protected but are potentially weak. This loan would not normally be booked as a new credit, but may have redeeming characteristics persuading the Bank to continue working with the borrower. Loans accorded this classification have potential weaknesses which may, if not checked or corrected, weaken the company's assets, inadequately protect the Bank's position or effect the orderly, scheduled reduction of the debt at some future time.
- 6. <u>Substandard</u>: The relationship is inadequately protected by the current net worth and cash flow capacity of the borrower, guarantor/endorser, or of the collateral pledged. Assets have a well-defined weakness or weaknesses that jeopardize the orderly liquidation of the debt. The relationship shows deteriorating trends or other deficient areas. The loan may be non-performing and expected to remain so for the foreseeable future. Relationship balances may be adequately secured by asset value; however a deteriorated financial condition may necessitate collateral liquidation to effect repayment. A relationship with an unacceptable financial condition requiring excessive attention of the officer due to the nature of the credit risk or lack of borrower cooperation. All loans on non-accrual or in a bankruptcy are not graded higher than Substandard.
- 7. <u>Doubtful</u>: The relationship has all the weaknesses inherent in a credit graded 5 with the added characteristic that the weaknesses make collection on the basis of currently existing facts, conditions and value, highly questionable or improbable. The possibility of some loss is extremely high, however its classification as an anticipated loss is deferred until a more exact determination of the extent of loss is determined. Loans in this category must be on non-accrual.
- 8. <u>Loss</u>: Loans are considered uncollectible and of such little value that continuance as bankable assets is not warranted. It is not practicable or desirable to defer writing off this basically worthless asset even though partial recovery may be possible in the future.

# For Residential Mortgage and Consumer Loans:

Residential mortgage and consumer loans are assigned a "Pass" rating unless the loan has demonstrated signs of weakness as indicated by the ratings below.

- 5. <u>Special Mention</u>: All loans sixty days past due are classified Special Mention. The loan is not upgraded until it has been current for six consecutive months.
- 6. <u>Substandard</u>: All loans 90 days past due are classified Substandard. The loan is not upgraded until it has been current for six consecutive months.
- 7. <u>Doubtful</u>: The relationship has all the weaknesses inherent in a credit graded 5 with the added characteristic that the weaknesses make collection on the basis of currently existing facts, conditions and value, highly questionable or improbable. The possibility of some loss is extremely high,

The risk ratings are evaluated at least annually for commercial loans or when credit deficiencies arise, such as delinquent loan payments, for commercial, residential mortgage or consumer loans. See further discussion of risk ratings in Note 1.

The following table presents the segments and classes of the loan portfolio summarized by the aggregate pass rating and the criticized and classified ratings of special mention, substandard and doubtful within the Company's internal risk rating system as of December 31, 2011:

		Ι	Decembe	er 31, 2011			
		Special					
(In thousands)	Pass	Mention	Substandard		Doubtful		Total
Residential mortgage loans:							
1-4 family first-lien residential mortgages	\$ 153,049	\$ 1,050	\$	4,285	\$	-	\$ 158,384
Construction	3,935	-		-		-	3,935
	156,984	1,050		4,285		-	162,319
Commercial loans:							
Real estate	69,737	212		3,471		-	73,420
Lines of credit	12,579	49		1,163		-	13,791
Other commercial and industrial	21,978	89		591		43	22,701
Municipal	3,619	-		-		-	3,619
	107,913	350		5,225		43	113,531
Consumer loans:							
Home equity and junior liens	22,500	162		1,456		53	24,171
Other consumer	3,922	61		123		34	4,140
	26,422	223		1,579		87	28,311
Total loans	\$ 291,319	\$ 1,623	\$	11,089	\$	130	\$ 304,161

		Ι	December 31	, 2010				
		:	Special					
(In thousands)	Pass	Mention		Substandard		Doubtful		Total
Residential mortgage loans:								
1-4 family first-lien residential mortgages	\$ 138,435	\$	1,725	\$	3,501	\$	-	\$ 143,661
Construction	3,569		-		-		-	3,569
	142,004		1,725		3,501		-	147,230
Commercial loans:								
Real estate	63,834		524		4,684		-	69,042
Lines of credit	13,280		28		814		-	14,122
Other commercial and industrial	19,857		163		759		-	20,779
Municipal	4,826		-		-		-	4,826
	101,797		715		6,257		-	108,769
Consumer loans:								
Home equity and junior liens	23,559		316		1,293			25,168
Other consumer	3,271		30		110			3,411
	26,830		346		1,403		-	28,579
Total loans	\$ 270,631	\$	2,786	\$	11,161	\$	-	\$ 284,578

## Non-accrual and Past Due Loans

Loans are considered past due if the required principal and interest payments have not been received within thirty days of the payment due date.

An age analysis of past due loans, exclusive of deferred costs, segregated by class of loans were as follows:

		December 31, 2011								
	30-59	30-59 Days		Days	90 Days	Total		Total Loans		
(In thousands)	Pa	st Due	Past Due		and Over	Past Due	Current	Receivabl	ole	
Residential mortgage loans:										
1-4 family first-lien residential mortgages	\$	2,870	\$	934	\$ 1,428	\$ 5,232	\$ 153,152	\$ 158,3	384	
Construction		-		-	-	-	3,935	3,9	935	
		2,870		934	1,428	5,232	157,087	162,3	319	
Commercial loans:										
Real estate		2,015		4	1,623	3,642	69,778	73,4	420	
Lines of credit		337		75	467	879	12,912	13,7	791	
Other commercial and industrial		356		392	504	1,252	21,449	22,7	701	
Municipal		-		-	-	-	3,619	3,6	619	
		2,708		471	2,594	5,773	107,758	113,5	531	
Consumer loans:										
Home equity and junior liens		357		182	550	1,089	23,082	24,1	171	
Other consumer		55		2	156	213	3,927	4,1	140	
		412		184	706	1,302	27,009	28,3	311	
Total loans	\$	5,990	\$	1,589	\$ 4,728	\$ 12,307	\$ 291,854	\$ 304,1	161	

		December 31, 2010								
		30-59 Days		60-89 Days		Total		Total Loa	ans	
(In thousands)	Pa	ast Due	Past Due		and Over	Past Due	Current	Receival	ble	
Residential mortgage loans:										
1-4 family first-lien residential mortgages	\$	2,045	\$	1,078	\$ 1,335	\$ 4,458	\$ 139,203	\$ 143,6	561	
Construction		-		-	-		3,569	3,5	569	
		2,045		1,078	1,335	4,458	142,772	147,2	230	
Commercial loans:										
Real estate		238		908	3,680	4,826	64,216	69,0	)42	
Lines of credit		205		-	69	274	13,848	14,1	122	
Other commercial and industrial		734		301	475	1,510	19,269	20,7	779	
Municipal		-		-	-		4,826	4,8	826	
		1,177		1,209	4,224	6,610	102,159	108,7	769	
Consumer loans:										
Home equity and junior liens		586		371	303	1,260	23,908	25,1	168	
Other consumer		15		7	62	. 84	3,327	3,4	411	
		601		378	365	1,344	27,235	28,5	579	
Total loans	\$	3,823	\$	2,665	\$ 5,924	\$ 12,412	\$ 272,166	\$ 284,5	578	

	Dec	ember 31,	December 31		
(In thousands)		2011		2010	
Residential mortgage loans:					
1-4 family first-lien residential mortgages	\$	1,428	\$	1,335	
Construction		-		-	
		1,428		1,335	
Commercial loans:					
Real estate		1,623		3,680	
Lines of credit		467		69	
Other commercial and industrial		504		475	
Municipal loans		-		-	
		2,594		4,224	
Consumer loans:					
Home equity and junior liens		550		303	
Other consumer		156		62	
		706		365	
Total nonaccrual loans	\$	4,728	\$	5,924	

Year-end non-accrual loans, segregated by class of loan, were as follows:

There were no loans past due ninety days or more and still accruing interest at December 31, 2011 or 2010.

The Company is required to disclose certain activities related to Troubled Debt Restructurings ("TDR"s) in accordance with transition guidance under ASC 310-40-65-1. The Company has determined that, for interim periods beginning after June 30, 2011 which was the date of adoption of this accounting standard update, there was one commercial and industrial loan with a carrying amount of \$122,000 and one commercial real estate loan with a carrying amount of \$324,000 that were TDRs occurring over the prior twelve months and that reported a payment default for the six month period ended December 31, 2011. There were no TDR's during this period.

# Impaired Loans

The following table summarizes impaired loans information by portfolio class:

		Dec	er 31, 20		December 31, 2010							
			Ţ	Unpaid					I	Jnpaid		
	R	ecorded	Pr	incipal		Related	R	ecorded	Pr	incipal	]	Related
(In thousands)	Inv	estment	В	Balance	All	owance	Inv	estment	В	alance	Alle	owance
With no related allowance recorded:												
1-4 family first-lien residential mortgages	\$	442	\$	442	\$	-	\$	185	\$	185	\$	-
Residential construction mortgage		-		-		-		-		-		-
Commercial real estate		968		1,096		-		1,919		1,919		-
Commercial lines of credit		74		74		-		-		-		-
Other commercial and industrial		257		257		-		96		96		-
Municipal		-		-		-		-		-		-
Home equity and junior liens		312		312		-		411		411		-
Other consumer		-		-		-		-		-		-
With an allowance recorded:				-								
1-4 family first-lien residential mortgages		856		856		149		1,215		1,215		255
Residential construction mortgage		-		-		-		-		-		-
Commercial real estate		735		735		109		2,233		2,322		352
Commercial lines of credit		378		378		178		300		300		300
Other commercial and industrial		122		122		122		346		346		78
Municipal		-		-		-		-		-		-
Home equity and junior liens		136		136		61		252		252		110
Other consumer		-		-		-		-		-		-
Total:												
1-4 family first-lien residential mortgages		1,298		1,298		149		1,400		1,400		255
Residential construction mortgage		-		-		-		-		-		-
Commercial real estate		1,703		1,831		109		4,152		4,241		352
Commercial lines of credit		452		452		178		300		300		300
Other commercial and industrial		379		379		122		442		442		78
Municipal		-		-		-		-		-		-
Home equity and junior liens		448		448		61		663		663		110
Other consumer		_		_		-		-		-		_
	\$	4,280	\$	4,408	\$	619	\$	6,957	\$	7,046	\$	1,095

The following table presents the average recorded investment in impaired loans for the years ended December 31:

(In thousands)	2011	 2010
Residential mortgage	\$ 1,156	\$ 1,123
Commercial real estate	2,447	3,550
Commercial lines of credit	207	275
Other commercial and industrial	712	298
Home equity and junior liens	554	178
Consumer	-	-
	\$ 5,075	\$ 5,424

The following table presents the interest income recognized on impaired loans for the years ended December 31:

(In thousands)	2011	2	010
Residential mortgage	\$ 64	\$	75
Commercial real estate	86		109
Commercial lines of credit	31		10
Other commercial and industrial	12		17
Home equity and junior liens	9		24
Consumer	 		-
	\$ 202	\$	235

#### NOTE 6: ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

Changes in the allowance for loan losses for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 and information pertaining to the allocation of the allowance for loan losses and balances of the allowance for loan losses and loans receivable based on individual and collective impairment evaluation by loan portfolio class at December 31, 2011 and 2010 are summarized as follows:

					2011				
	1	-4 family							
		first-lien	Residential						Other
	r	esidential	Construction	Co	mmercial	Co	ommercial	С	ommercial
(In thousands)		mortgage	mortgage	r	eal estate	line	s of credit	and	l industrial
Allowance for loan losses:									
Beginning Balance	\$	750	\$ -	\$	1,204	\$	579	\$	501
Charge-offs		(237)	-		(205)		(65)		(34)
Recoveries		49	-		-		1		-
Provisions		102	-		347		(52)		182
Ending balance	\$	664	\$ -	\$	1,346	\$	463	\$	649
Ending balance: related to loans individually evaluated for									
impairment	\$	149	\$ -	\$	109	\$	178	\$	122
Ending balance: related to loans collectively evaluated for									
impairment	\$	515	\$ -	\$	1,237	\$	285	\$	527
Loans receivables:									
Ending balance	\$	158,384	\$ 3,935	\$	73,420	\$	13,791	\$	22,701
Ending balance: individually									
evaluated for impairment	\$	1,298	\$ -	\$	1,703	\$	452	\$	379
Ending balance: collectively									
evaluated for impairment	\$	157,086	\$ 3,935	\$	71,717	\$	13,339	\$	22,322

	Municipal		Home equity and junior liens		Other Consumer		Unallocated			Total
Allowance for loan losses:	111	unicipai	unu	junior nens	C	onsumer	0	nanocated		10101
Beginning Balance	\$	3	\$	424	\$	89	\$	98	\$	3,648
Charge-offs	Ψ	-	Ψ	(43)	Ψ	(123)	Ψ	-	Ψ	(707)
Recoveries		-		10		39		-		99
Provisions		(1)		110		157		95		940
Ending balance	\$	2	\$	501	\$	162	\$	193	\$	3,980
Ending balance: related to loans individually evaluated for										
impairment	\$	-	\$	61	\$	-	\$	-	\$	619
Ending balance: related to loans collectively evaluated for										
impairment	\$	2	\$	440	\$	162	\$	193	\$	3,361
Loans receivables: Ending balance	\$	3,619	\$	24,171	\$	4,140	\$	-	\$	304,161
Ending balance: individually evaluated for impairment	\$	_	\$	448	\$	_	\$		\$	4,280
Ending balance: collectively evaluated for impairment	\$	3,619	\$	23,723	\$	4,140	\$		\$	299,881

						2010				
	1	-4 family								
		first-lien		Residential						Other
	r	esidential		mortgage	Co	nmercial	Сс	ommercial	C	ommercial
		mortgage	С	construction	r	eal estate	line	s of credit	and	l industrial
Allowance for loan losses:										
Beginning Balance	\$	763	\$	-	\$	1,009	\$	376	\$	486
Charge-offs		(48)		-		(162)		(196)		(27)
Recoveries		19		-		55				-
Provisions		16		-		302		399		42
Ending balance	\$	750	\$	-	\$	1,204	\$	579	\$	501
Ending balance: related to loans individually evaluated for										
impairment	\$	255	\$	-	\$	352	\$	300	\$	78
Ending balance: related to loans collectively evaluated for impairment	\$	495	\$	-	\$	852	\$	279	\$	423
Impunnent	ψ	475	Ψ		Ψ	052	Ψ	21)	Ψ	425
Loans receivables:										
Ending balance	\$	143,661	\$	3,569	\$	69,042	\$	14,122	\$	20,779
Ending balance: individually										
evaluated for impairment	\$	1,400	\$	-	\$	4,152	\$	300	\$	442
Ending balance: collectively	<i>^</i>	1.40.061	<u>ф</u>	2.500		(1.000	<b></b>	12.022	¢	20.225
evaluated for impairment	\$	142,261	\$	3,569	\$	64,890	\$	13,822	\$	20,337

	М	unicipal	lome equity junior liens	C	Other onsumer	Ur	nallocated	Total
Allowance for loan losses:								
Beginning Balance	\$	2	\$ 390	\$	76	\$	(24)	\$ 3,078
Charge-offs		-	(76)		(81)		-	(590)
Recoveries		-	5		31		-	110
Provisions		1	105		63		122	1,050
Ending balance	\$	3	\$ 424	\$	89	\$	98	\$ 3,648
Ending balance: related to loans individually evaluated for								
impairment	\$	-	\$ 110	\$	-	\$	-	\$ 1,095
Ending balance: related to loans collectively evaluated for								
impairment	\$	3	\$ 314	\$	89	\$	98	\$ 2,553
Loans receivables: Ending balance	\$	4,826	\$ 25,168	\$	3,411			\$ 284,578
Ending balance: individually								
evaluated for impairment	\$	-	\$ 663	\$				\$ 6,957
Ending balance: collectively evaluated for impairment	\$	4,826	\$ 24,505	\$	3,411			\$ 277,621

### NOTE 7: SERVICING

Loans serviced for others are not included in the accompanying consolidated statements of condition. The unpaid principal balances of mortgage and other loans serviced for others were \$31,241,000 and \$37,746,000 at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The balance of capitalized servicing rights included in other assets at December 31, 2011 and 2010, was \$8,000 and \$35,000, respectively.

The following summarizes mortgage servicing rights capitalized and amortized:

(In thousands)	2011	2010
Mortgage servicing rights capitalized	\$ -	\$ 2
Mortgage servicing rights amortized	\$ 27	\$ 28

#### NOTE 8: PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

A summary of premises and equipment at December 31, is as follows:

(In thousands)	2011	2010
Land	\$ 1,544	\$ 1,226
Buildings	10,056	7,181
Furniture, fixtures and equipment	8,703	7,531
Construction in progress	353	2,761
	20,656	18,699
Less: Accumulated depreciation	9,959	9,267
	\$ 10,697	\$ 9,432

The increase in premises and equipment is the result of the construction of the new branch location in Cicero, New York.

#### NOTE 9: GOODWILL

Goodwill represents the excess cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the net assets acquired. Goodwill is not amortized, but is evaluated annually for impairment or between annual evaluations in certain circumstances. Management performs an annual assessment of the Company's goodwill to determine whether or not any impairment of the carrying value may exist. In accordance with FASB ASU 2011-08, the Company is permitted to assess qualitative factors to determine if it is more likely than not that the fair value of the reporting unit is less than the carrying value. For purposes of this assessment, management considers the Company and its subsidiaries as a whole to be the reporting unit. Based on the results of the assessment, management has determined that the carrying value of goodwill in the amount of \$3.8 million is not impaired as of December 31, 2011.

## NOTE 10: DEPOSITS

A summary of deposits at December 31, is as follows:

(In thousands)	2011	2010
Savings accounts	\$ 58,689	\$ 55,966
Time accounts	83,786	85,240
Time accounts over \$100,000	69,558	57,395
Money management accounts	14,249	12,593
MMDA accounts	70,588	54,799
Demand deposit interest-bearing	28,625	26,449
Demand deposit noninterest-bearing	37,153	30,716
Mortgage escrow funds	3,481	3,344
	\$ 366,129	\$ 326,502

At December 31, 2011, the scheduled maturities of time deposits are as follows:

(In thousands)	
Year of Maturity:	
2012	\$ 85,341
2013	28,543
2014	27,088
2015	5,870
2016	2,067
Thereafter	4,435
	\$ 153,344

#### **NOTE 11: BORROWED FUNDS**

(In thousands)	2011	2010
Short-term:		
FHLB Advances	\$ -	\$ 13,000
Long-term:		
FHLB advances	\$ 20,000	\$ 23,000
ESOP loan payable	1,074	-
Citigroup Repurchase agreements	5,000	5,000
Total long-term borrowings	\$ 26,074	\$ 28,000

The composition of borrowings (excluding junior subordinated debentures) at December 31 is as follows:

Terms of the ESOP loan payable, which is based on a variable rate, are detailed in Note 15.

The principal balances, interest rates and maturities of the remaining borrowings, all of which are at a fixed rate, at December 31, 2011 are as follows:

Term	Principal	Rates
(Dollars in thousands)		
Long-term:		
Repurchase agreements (due in 2013)	\$ 5,000	2.95%
Advances with FHLB		
due within 1 year	4,000	2.70%-4.91%
due within 2 years	4,000	4.46%-4.53%
due within 3 years	5,000	2.85%-3.07%
due within 4 years	2,000	2.79%
due within 5 years	3,000	2.12%
due within 6 years	2,000	2.56%
Total advances with FHLB	20,000	
Total	\$ 25,000	

At December 31, 2011, scheduled repayments of long-term debt are as follows (in thousands):

2012	\$ 4,110
2013	9,110
2014	5,110
2015	2,110
2016	3,110
Thereafter	2,524
	\$ 26,074

The repurchase agreement with Citigroup is collateralized by certain investment securities having a fair value of \$6,136,000 at December 31, 2011. The collateral is under the Company's control. The Company also has access to Federal Home Loan Bank advances, under which it can borrow at various terms and interest rates. Residential mortgage loans with a carrying value of \$65,781,000 and FHLB stock with a carrying value of \$1,528,000 have been pledged by the Company under a blanket collateral agreement to secure the Company's borrowings at December 31, 2011. The total outstanding indebtedness under borrowing facilities with the FHLB cannot exceed the total value of the assets pledged under the blanket collateral agreement. The Company has a \$15.0 million line of credit available at December 31, 2011 with the Federal Reserve Bank of New York through its Discount Window and has pledged various corporate and municipal securities against the line. The Company has an \$11.0 million line of credit available with three other correspondent banks. \$4.0 million of that line of credit is available on an unsecured basis and the remaining \$7.0 million must be collateralized with marketable investment securities. Interest on the lines is determined at the time of borrowing.

The Company has a non-consolidated subsidiary trust, Pathfinder Statutory Trust II, of which the Company owns 100% of the common equity. The Trust issued \$5,000,000 of 30 year floating rate Company-obligated pooled capital securities of Pathfinder Statutory Trust II. The Company borrowed the proceeds of the capital securities from its subsidiary by issuing floating rate junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures having substantially similar terms. The capital securities mature in 2037 and are treated as Tier 1 capital by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and the Federal Reserve Board ("FRB"). The capital securities of the trust are a pooled trust preferred fund of Preferred Term Securities VI, Ltd. and are tied to the 3-month LIBOR plus 1.65% (2.24%) at December 31, 2011) with a five-year call provision. The Company guarantees all of these securities.

The Company's equity interest in the trust subsidiary of \$155,000 is reported in "Other assets". For regulatory reporting purposes, the Federal Reserve Board has indicated that the preferred securities will continue to qualify as Tier 1 Capital subject to previously specified limitations, until further notice. If regulators make a determination that Trust Preferred Securities can no longer be considered in regulatory capital, the securities become callable and the Company may redeem them.

# NOTE 12: EMPLOYEE BENEFITS AND DEFERRED COMPENSATION AND SUPPLEMENTAL RETIREMENT PLANS

The Company has a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan covering substantially all employees. The plan provides defined benefits based on years of service and final average salary. In addition, the Company provides certain health and life insurance benefits for a limited number of eligible retired employees. The healthcare plan is contributory with participants' contributions adjusted annually; the life insurance plan is noncontributory. Employees with less than 14 years of service as of January 1, 1995, are not eligible for the health and life insurance retirement benefits.

	 Pension	Benef	its	Postretirem	ent Bei	nefits
(In thousands)	2011		2010	2011		2010
Change in benefit obligations:						
Benefit obligations at beginning of year	\$ 7,539	\$	6,095	\$ 364	\$	332
Service cost	328		261	-		-
Interest cost	414		376	19		20
Actuarial loss	2,085		954	47		37
Benefits paid	(199)		(147)	(29)		(25)
Benefit obligations at end of year	10,167		7,539	401		364
Change in plan assets:						
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year	7,890		6,252	-		-
Actual return on plan assets	(142)		722	-		-
Benefits paid	(199)		(147)	(29)		(25)
Employer contributions	-		1,063	29		25
Fair value of plan assets at end of year	7,549		7,890	_		-
Funded Status - (liability) asset	\$ (2,618)	\$	351	\$ (401)	\$	(364)

The following tables set forth the changes in the plans' benefit obligations, fair value of plan assets and the plans' funded status as of December 31:

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss as of December 31 are as follows:

		Pension Benefits			Postretirement Benefits			
(In thousands)		2011		2010		2011		2010
Unrecognized transition obligation	\$	-	\$	-	\$	2	\$	20
Net loss		5,940		3,335		86		40
		5,940		3,335		89		61
Tax Effect		2,376		1,334		36		25
	\$	3,564	\$	2,001	\$	53	\$	36

Gains and losses in excess of 10% of the greater of the benefit obligation or the fair value of assets are amortized over the average remaining service period of active participants.

The accumulated benefit obligation for the defined benefit pension plan was \$8,245,000 and \$6,185,000 at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The postretirement plan had an accumulated benefit obligation of \$401,000 and \$364,000 at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

The significant assumptions used in determining the benefit obligations as of December 31, are as follows:

	Pension	Benefits	Postretirement	t Benefits	
	2011	2010	2011	2010	
Weighted average discount rate	4.40%	5.54%	4.40%	5.54%	
Rate of increase in future compensation levels	3.50%	3.50%	-	-	

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for the postretirement health care plan. The annual rates of increase in the per capita cost of covered medical and prescription drug benefits for year-end calculations were assumed to be 8.00% for each year. The rates were assumed to decrease

gradually to 5.00% in 2015 and remain at that level thereafter.

	 Pension Benefits			Postretirement Benefits			nefits
	2011		2010		2011		2010
(In thousands)							
Service cost	\$ 328	\$	261	\$	-	\$	-
Interest cost	414		376		19		20
Expected return on plan assets	(625)		(554)		-		-
Amortization of transition obligation	-		-		18		18
Amortization of net losses	247		200		1		-
Net periodic benefit plan cost	\$ 364	\$	283	\$	38	\$	38

The composition of the net periodic benefit plan cost for the years ended December 31 is as follows:

The significant assumptions used in determining the net periodic benefit plan cost for years ended December 31 were as follows:

	Pension Ber	Pension Benefits		Benefits
	2011	2010	2011	2010
Weighted average discount rate	5.54%	6.25%	5.54%	6.25%
Expected long term rate of return on plan assets	8.00%	8.00%	-	-
Rate of increase in future compensation levels	3.50%	3.50%	-	-

The long term rate of return on assets assumption was set based on historical returns earned by equities and fixed income securities, adjusted to reflect expectations of future returns as applied to the plan's target allocation of asset classes. Equities and fixed income securities were assumed to earn real rates of return in the ranges of 5.0%-9.0% and 2.0%-6.0%, respectively. The long-term inflation rate was estimated to be 3.0%. When these overall return expectations are applied to the plan's target allocation, the expected rate of return was determined to be in the range of 7.0% to 11.0%. Management has chosen to use an 8% expected long-term rate of return to reflect current economic conditions and expected returns.

The estimated net actuarial loss that will be amortized from accumulated other comprehensive loss into net periodic benefit plan cost during 2012 is \$522,000. The estimated amortization of the unrecognized transition obligation and actuarial loss for the post retirement health plan in 2012 is \$15,000. The expected net periodic benefit plan cost for 2012 is estimated at \$649,000 for both retirement plans.

Plan assets are invested in diversified investment funds of the RSI Retirement Trust (the "Trust"), a private placement investment fund. The investment funds include a series of equity and bond mutual funds or commingled trust funds, each with its own investment objectives, investment strategies and risks, as detailed in the Statement of Investment Objectives and Guidelines. The Trust has been given discretion by the Plan Sponsor to determine the appropriate strategic asset allocation versus plan liabilities, as governed by the Trust's Statement of Investment Objectives and Guidelines.

The long-term investment objectives are to maintain plan assets at a level that will sufficiently cover long-term obligations and to generate a return on plan assets that will meet or exceed the rate at which long-term obligations will grow. A broadly diversified combination of equity and fixed income portfolios and various risk management techniques are used to help achieve these objectives.

In addition, significant consideration is paid to the plan's funding levels when determining the overall asset allocation. If the plan is considered to be well-funded, approximately 65% of the plan's assets are allocated to

equities and approximately 35% allocated to fixed-income. If the plan is does not satisfy the criteria for a well-funded plan, approximately 50% of the plan's assets are allocated to equities and approximately 50% allocated to fixed-income. Asset rebalancing normally occurs when the equity and fixed-income allocations vary by more than 10% from their respective targets (i.e., a 20% policy range guideline).

The investment goal is to achieve investment results that will contribute to the proper funding of the pension plan by exceeding the rate of inflation over the long-term. In addition, investment managers for the Trust are expected to provide above average performance when compared to their peer managers. Performance volatility is also monitored. Risk/volatility is further managed by the distinct investment objectives of each of the Trust funds and the diversification within each fund.

			A	At Decemb	er 31, 2	2011		
								Total Fair
(In thousands)		Level 1		Level 2		Le	evel 3	Value
Asset Category:								
Mutual funds - equity								
Large-cap value (a)	\$	675	\$	-	\$		-	\$ 675
Small-cap core (b)		895		-			-	895
Common/collective trusts - equity								
Large-cap core (c)		-		798			-	798
Large-cap value (d)		-		393			-	393
Large-cap growth (e)		-		1,087			-	1,087
International core (f)		-		830			-	830
Common/collective trusts - fixed income								
Market duration fixed (g)		-		2,871			-	2,871
Total	\$	1,570	\$	5,979	\$		-	\$ 7,549
		,		At Dec		31.7		,
				At Dec	cinoci	51,2	.010	Total Fair
(In thousands)		I	Level 1	Le	vel 2	]	Level 3	Value
Asset Category:								
Mutual funds - equity								
Large-cap value (a)		\$	711	\$	-	\$	-	\$ 711
Small-cap core (b)			949		-		-	949
Common/collective trusts - equity								
Large-cap core (c)			-		810		-	810
Large-cap value (d)			-		411		-	411
Large-cap growth (e)			-	1	,164		-	1,164
International core (f)			-		,081		-	1,081
Common/collective trusts - fixed income	Э				/ -			,
Market duration fixed (g)	-		_	0	2,764		-	2,764

Pension plan assets measured at fair value are summarized below:

Total

1,660

\$

6,230

\$

- \$

7,890

\$

- (a) This category consists of investments whose sector and industry exposures are maintained within a narrow band around Russell 1000 index. The portfolio holds approximately 150 stocks.
- (b) This category contains stocks whose sector weightings are maintained within a narrow band around those of the Russell 2000 index. The portfolio will typically hold more than 150 stocks.
- (c) This fund tracks the performance of the S&P 500 Index by purchasing the securities represented in the Index in approximately the same weightings as the Index.
- (d) This category contains large-cap stocks with above-average yields. The portfolio typically holds between 60 and 70 stocks.
- (e) This category consists of a portfolio of between 45 and 65 stocks that will typically overweight technology and health care.
- (f) This category consists of a broadly diversified portfolio of non-U.S. domiciled stocks. The portfolio will typically hold more than 200 stocks, with 0% - 35% invested in emerging markets securities.
- (g) This category consists of an index fund that tracks the Barclays Capital U.S. Aggregate Bond Index. The fund invests in Treasury, agency, corporate, mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities.

Funds that are mutual funds and actively traded qualify as "Level 1" assets because market values are readily available and accessible ("using quoted prices in active markets"). Funds referred to as "common/collective trusts" are proprietary funds that are not available to the general public. These funds hold assets that are easy to value and, individually, are readily available and accessible, so that the fund manager can easily produce a value, satisfying the condition that a value is determined from "significant other observable inputs".

For the fiscal year ending December 31, 2012, the Bank expects to contribute approximately \$28,000 to the postretirement plan. In January 2012, the Bank made a contribution of \$2.6 million to the pension plan in response to the unfunded pension liability of \$2.6 million recorded at December 31, 2011. Additional contributions may be made in 2012.

The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are expected to be paid from both retirement plans:

	Pension Benefits		Postretirement Benefits		otal
Years ending December 31:					
(In thousands)					
2012	\$ 212	\$	28	\$	240
2013	220		30		250
2014	230		33		263
2015	241		33		274
2016	254		33		287
Years 2017 - 2021	1,715		156		1,871

The Company also offers a 401(k) plan to its employees. Contributions to this plan by the Company were \$176,000 and \$160,000 for 2011 and 2010, respectively.

The Company maintains optional deferred compensation plans for its directors and certain executive officers, whereby fees and income normally received are deferred and paid by the Company based upon a payment schedule commencing at age 65 and continuing monthly for 10 years. Directors must serve on the board for a minimum of 5 years to be eligible for the Plan. At December 31, 2011 and 2010, other liabilities include approximately \$1,929,000 and \$1,872,000, respectively, relating to deferred compensation. Deferred compensation expense for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 amounted to approximately \$224,000 and \$225,000, respectively.

The Company has a supplemental executive retirement plan for the benefit of the Chief Executive Officer and a

retired Chief Executive Officer. At December 31, 2011 and 2010, other liabilities included approximately \$218,000 and \$259,000 accrued under this plan. Compensation expense includes approximately \$19,000 relating to the supplemental executive retirement plan for the year ended December 31, 2011 and \$22,000 for the year ended December 31, 2010.

To assist in the funding of the Company's benefits under the supplemental executive retirement plan, the Company is the owner of single premium life insurance policies on selected participants. At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the cash surrender values of these policies were \$7,939,000 and \$6,915,000, respectively. The increase in the surrender values was primarily the result of purchases of life insurance policies in the second quarter of 2011.

### NOTE 13: OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that recognized revenue, expenses, gains and losses be included in net income. Although certain changes in assets and liabilities, such as unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities, the effective portion of cash-flow hedges, and unrecognized gains and losses and transition assets or obligations for defined benefit pension and post retirement plans are reported as a separate component of the shareholders' equity section of the consolidated statements of condition, such items, along with net income, are components of comprehensive income.

The components of other comprehensive loss and the related tax effect for the years ended December 31, are as follows:

(In thousands)	2011	2010
Unrealized holding (losses) gains on securities available for sale:		
Unrealized holding gains arising during the period	\$ 2,306	\$ 70
Reclassification adjustment for net gains included in net income	 (791)	(211)
Net unrealized gains (losses) on securities available for sale	1,515	(141)
Unrealized holding loss on financial derivative:		
Unrealized holding loss arising during the period	(151)	(170)
Reclassification adjustment for interest expense included in net income	 61	60
Net unrealized loss on financial derivative	(90)	(110)
Defined benefit pension and post retirement plans:		
Additional plan losses	(2,899)	(823)
Reclassification adjustment for amortization of benefit plans' net loss		
and transition obligation recognized in net periodic expense	267	218
Net change in retirement plans	 (2,632)	(605)
Other comprehensive loss before tax	 (1,207)	(856)
Tax effect	 482	342
Other comprehensive loss	\$ (725)	\$ (514)

The components of accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of related tax effects, at December 31, are as follows:

(In thousands)	2011	 2010
Unrealized gains on securities available for sale		
(net of tax expense 2011 - \$716; 2010 - \$110)	\$ 1,073	\$ 164
Unrealized losses on financial derivative		
(net of tax benefit 2011 - \$80; 2010 - \$44)	(120)	(66)
Net pension losses		
(net of tax benefit 2011 - \$2,376; 2010 - \$1,334)	(3,564)	(2,001)
Net post-retirement losses and transition obligation		
(net of tax benefit 2011 - \$36; 2010 - \$25)	(53)	 (36)
	\$ (2,664)	\$ (1,939)

#### NOTE 14: STOCK BASED COMPENSATION PLANS

#### The February 1997 Stock Option Plan

In February 1997, the Board of Directors approved an option plan and granted options thereunder with an exercise price equal to the market value of the Company's shares at the date of grant. Under the Stock Option Plan, up to 132,249 options had been authorized for grant of incentive stock options and nonqualified stock

options. None of the original options granted prior to July 2001 remain outstanding at December 31, 2011.

In July 2001, the Board approved the issuance of 38,499 stock options remaining in the 1997 Stock Option Plan. The exercise price was equal to the market value of the Company's shares at the date of grant (\$8.34). The options granted under the issuance had a 10-year term and expired on July 31, 2011.

### The April 2010 Stock Option Plan

In June 2011, the Board of Directors of the Company approved the grant of stock option awards to its Directors and Executive Officers under the 2010 Stock Option Plan that was approved at the Annual Meeting of Shareholders on April 28, 2010 when 150,000 shares were authorized for award. A total of 45,000 stock option awards were granted to the nine directors of the Company and 75,000 stock option awards, in total, were granted to the Chief Executive Officer and the Company's four Senior Vice Presidents. The awards will vest ratably over five years (20% per year for each year of the participant's service with the Company) and will expire ten years from the date of the grant, or June 2021.

The fair value of each option grant was established at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The Black-Scholes model used the following weighted average assumptions: risk-free interest rate of 2.2%; volatility factors of the expected market price of the Company's common stock of .45; weighted average expected lives of the options of 7.0 years: cash dividend yield of 1.49%. Based upon these assumptions, the weighted average fair value of options granted was \$3.77.

The compensation expense of the awards is based on the fair value of the instruments on the date of grant. The Company recorded compensation expense in the amount of \$47,000 in 2011, and is expected to record \$90,000 in each of the years 2012 through 2015, and \$43,000 in 2016.

At December 31, 2011, there were 120,000 options outstanding, none of which were vested, all had an exercise price of \$9.00 and an average remaining contractual life of 9.5 years.

		V	Weighted	
	Options		Average	Shares
(Shares in thousands)	Outstanding	Exerc	cise Price	Exercisable
Outstanding at January 1, 2010	19	\$	8.34	19
Exercised	-		-	-
Expired	-		-	-
Outstanding at December 31, 2010	19	\$	8.34	19
Granted	120	\$	9.00	-
Exercised	(8)		8.34	(8)
Expired	(11)		8.34	(11)
Outstanding at December 31, 2011	120	\$	9.00	-

Activity in the stock option plans is as follows:

The aggregate intrinsic value of a stock option represents the total pre-tax intrinsic value (the amount by which the current market value of the underlying stock exceeds the exercise price of the option) that would have been received by the option holders had all option holders exercised their options prior to the expiration date. The intrinsic value changes based on fluctuations in the market value of the Company's stock. The intrinsic value of the 8,000 options exercised during 2011 was \$11,000. At December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010 the market value of the Company's stock was less than the stock option price, and therefore, the outstanding and exercisable stock options had no aggregate intrinsic value.

### NOTE 15: EMPLOYEE STOCK OWNERSHIP PLAN

The Company established the Pathfinder Bank Employee Stock Ownership Plan ("Plan") to purchase stock of the Company for the benefit of its employees. In July 2011, the Plan received a \$1.1 million loan from Community Bank, N.A. to fund the Plan's purchase of 125,000 shares of the Company's treasury stock. The loan is to be repaid in equal quarterly installments of principal plus interest over ten years beginning October 1, 2011. Interest will accrue at the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate plus 1.00%, and is secured by the unallocated shares of the ESOP stock. In accordance with the payment of principal and interest on the loan, a proportionate number of shares will be allocated to the employees over the ten year time horizon of the loan. Participants' vesting interest in the shares of Company stock will be at the rate of 20% per year. The Company recorded \$72,000 in compensation expense in 2011, including \$7,000 for dividends on unallocated shares. At December 31, 2011, there were 117,895 unearned ESOP shares with a fair value of \$1.1 million.

### NOTE 16: INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes for the years ended December 31, is as follows:

(In thousands)	2011	2010
Current	\$ (149)	\$ 744
Deferred	1,193	263
	\$ 1,044	\$ 1,007

The provision for income taxes includes the following:

(In thousands)	2011	2010
Federal Income Tax	\$ 968	\$ 911
New York State Franchise Tax	76	96
	\$ 1,044	\$ 1,007

(In thousands)	2011	2010
Assets:		
Deferred compensation	\$ 832	\$ 825
Allowance for loan losses	1,540	1,411
Postretirement benefits	156	141
Mortgage recording tax credit carryforward	277	242
Impairment losses on investment securities	342	686
Capital loss carryforward	307	-
AMT credit carryforward	59	-
Pension liability	85	-
Other	106	165
	3,704	3,470
Liabilities:		
Pension asset	-	(136)
Depreciation	(749)	(359)
Accretion	(45)	(48)
Loan origination fees	(221)	(278)
Intangible assets	(1,409)	(1,220)
Investment securities and financial derivative	(636)	(52)
Prepaid expenses	(114)	(168)
	(3,174)	(2,261)
	 530	 1,209
Less: deferred tax asset valuation allowance	 (458)	 (458)
Net deferred tax asset	\$ 72	\$ 751

The components of the net deferred tax asset, included in other assets as of December 31, are as follows:

Realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income or the existence of sufficient taxable income within the carry back period. A valuation allowance is provided when it is more likely than not that some portion, or all of the deferred tax assets, will not be realized. In assessing the need for a valuation allowance, management considers the scheduled reversal of the deferred tax liabilities, the level of historical taxable income and the projected future level of taxable income over the periods in which the temporary differences comprising the deferred tax assets will be deductible. The judgment about the level of future taxable income is inherently subjective and is reviewed on a continual basis as regulatory and business factors change. The valuation allowance of \$458,000 represents the portion of the deferred tax asset that management believes may not be realizable, as the Company may not generate sufficient capital gains to offset its capital losses.

A reconciliation of the federal statutory income tax rate to the effective income tax rate for the years ended December 31, is as follows:

	2011	2010
Federal statutory income tax rate	34.0 %	× 34.0 %
State tax, net of federal benefit	1.5	1.8
Tax-exempt interest income	(4.4)	(3.4)
Increase in value of bank owned life insurance less premiums paid	(1.9)	(2.3)
Gain on proceeds from bank owned life insurance	-	(1.5)
Other	1.8	0.1
Effective income tax rate	31.0 %	<b>28.7</b> %

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company did not have any uncertain tax positions. The Company's policy is to recognize interest and penalties, if any, in income tax expense in the Consolidated Statements of Income. The tax years subject to examination by the Federal and New York State taxing authorities are the years ended December 31, 2008 through 2011.

#### NOTE 17: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company is a party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet the financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit. Such commitments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit risk in excess of the amount recognized in the consolidated statement of condition. The contractual amount of those commitments to extend credit reflects the extent of involvement the Company has in this particular class of financial instrument. The Company's exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the financial instrument for commitments to extend credit is represented by the contractual amount of the instrument. The Company uses the same credit policies in making commitments as it does for on-balance sheet instruments.

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the following financial instruments were outstanding whose contract amounts represent credit risk:

	Contract A	Amount
(In thousands)	2011	2010
Commitments to grant loans	\$ 9,010	\$ 9,591
Unfunded commitments under lines of credit	17,174	18,950
Standby letters of credit	1,595	1,524

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. Since some of the commitment amounts are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The Company evaluates each customer's creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by the Company upon extension of credit, is based on management's credit evaluation of the counter party. Collateral held varies but may include residential real estate and income-producing commercial properties. Loan commitments, including unused lines of credit and standby letters of credit, outstanding at December 31, 2011 with variable interest rates amounted to approximately \$4.5 million. Loan commitments, including unused lines of credit and standby letters of credit, outstanding at December 31, 2011 with variable interest rates amounted to approximately \$23.3 million. These outstanding loan commitments carry current market rates.

Unfunded commitments under standby letters of credit, revolving credit lines and overdraft protection

agreements are commitments for possible future extensions of credit to existing customers. These lines of credit usually do not contain a specified maturity date and may not be drawn upon to the total extent to which the Company is committed.

Letters of credit written are conditional commitments issued by the Company to guarantee the performance of a customer to a third party. Generally, all letters of credit, when issued have expiration dates within one year. The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as those that are involved in extending loan facilities to customers. The Company generally holds collateral and/or personal guarantees supporting these commitments. Management believes that the proceeds obtained through a liquidation of collateral and the enforcement of guarantees would be sufficient to cover the potential amount of future payments required under the corresponding guarantees. The amount of the liability as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 for guarantees under standby letters of credit issued is not material.

The Company leases land and leasehold improvements under agreements that expire in various years with renewal options over the next 30 years. Rental expense, included in building occupancy expense, amounted to \$73,000 for 2011 and \$67,000 for 2010.

Approximate minimum rental commitments for non-cancelable operating leases are as follows:

Years Ending December 31:	
(In thousands)	
2012	\$ 65
2013	30
Total minimum lease payments	\$ 95

The total amount of minimum rents to be received in the future under non-cancelable subleases is \$16,000.

#### NOTE 18: DIVIDENDS AND RESTRICTIONS

The Board of Directors of Pathfinder Bancorp, M.H.C., determines whether the Holding Company will waive or receive dividends declared by the Company, subject to regulatory approval, each time the Company declares a dividend, which is expected to be on a quarterly basis. The Holding Company may elect to receive dividends and utilize such funds to pay expenses or for other allowable purposes. The FRB has indicated that (i) the Holding Company shall provide the FRB annually with written notice of its intent to waive its dividends prior to the proposed date of the dividend and the FRB shall have the authority to approve or deny any dividend waiver request; (ii) if a waiver is granted, dividends waived by the Holding Company will be excluded from the Company's capital accounts for purposes of calculating dividend payments to minority shareholders. During 2011 and 2010, the Company paid or accrued dividends totaling \$190,000 to the Holding Company in each of these two years. The Holding Company did not waive the right to receive its portion of the cash dividends declared during 2011 or 2010.

The Company's ability to pay dividends to its shareholders is largely dependent on the Bank's ability to pay dividends to the Company. In addition to state law requirements and the capital requirements discussed in Note 19, federal statutes, regulations and policies limit the circumstances under which the Bank may pay dividends. The amount of retained earnings legally available under these regulations approximated \$5,619,000 as of December 31, 2011. Dividends paid by the Bank to the Company would be prohibited if the effect thereof would cause the Bank's capital to be reduced below applicable minimum capital requirements. The Company is prohibited from accepting or directing the Bank to declare or pay a dividend or other capital distributions without prior written approval of the Federal Reserve Board.

Since the Company has chosen to participate in the Treasury's SBLF program, it is permitted to pay dividends on its common stock provided certain Tier 1 capital minimums are exceeded and SBLF dividends have been declared and paid to Treasury as of the most recent dividend period.

#### NOTE 19: REGULATORY MATTERS

The Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Company's consolidated financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of its assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The capital amounts and classifications are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings, and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Bank to maintain amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below) of total and Tier 1 capital (as defined in the regulations) to risk-weighted assets (as defined), and of Tier 1 capital (as defined) to average assets (as defined).

As of December 31, 2011, the Bank's most recent notification from the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation categorized the Bank as "well-capitalized", under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be categorized as "well-capitalized", the Bank must maintain total risk based, Tier 1 risk-based and Tier 1 leverage ratios as set forth in the tables below. There are no conditions or events since that notification that management believes have changed the Bank's category.

					Minim	ım
					To Be "V	Vell-
			Minimu	ım	Capitaliz	zed"
			For Cap	ital	Under Pr	ompt
	 Actua	1	Adequacy Pu	urposes	Corrective Pr	ovisions
(Dollars in thousands)	Amount	Ratio	Amount	Ratio	Amount	Ratio
As of December 31, 2011:						
Total Core Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets)	\$ 43,670	14.9%	\$ 23,386	8.0%	\$ 29,233	10.0%
Tier 1 Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets)	\$ 39,917	13.7%	\$ 11,693	4.0%	\$ 17,540	6.0%
Tier 1 Capital (to Average Assets)	\$ 39,917	9.4%	\$ 17,041	4.0%	\$ 21,301	5.0%
As of December 31, 2010						
Total Core Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets)	\$ 35,837	13.5%	\$ 21,197	8.0%	\$ 26,496	10.0%
Tier 1 Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets)	\$ 32,440	12.2%	\$ 10,598	4.0%	\$ 15,898	6.0%
Tier 1 Capital (to Average Assets)	\$ 32,440	8.1%	\$ 16,001	4.0%	\$ 20,002	5.0%

The Bank's actual capital amounts and ratios as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 are presented in the following table.

On September 11, 2009, the Company entered into the Purchase Agreement with the United States Department of the Treasury pursuant to which the Company has issued and sold to Treasury: (i) 6,771 shares of the Company's Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock, Series A, par value \$0.01 per share, having a liquidation amount per share equal to \$1,000, for a total price of \$6,771,000; and (ii) a Warrant to purchase 154,354 shares of the Company's common stock, par value \$0.01 per share, at an exercise price per share of \$6.58. The Company contributed to the Bank, its subsidiary, \$5,500,000 or 81.23% of the proceeds of the sale of the Series A Preferred Stock.

The \$6,771,000 of proceeds was allocated to the Series A Preferred Stock and the Warrant based on their relative fair values at issuance (\$6,065,000 was allocated to the Series A Preferred Stock and \$706,000 to the Warrant).

On September 1, 2011, the Company redeemed all 6,771 shares of its Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock Series A. The Company paid \$6,786,000 to the Treasury Department to redeem the Series A Preferred Stock, which included the original investment of \$6,771,000, plus accrued dividends.

In connection with this redemption, on September 1, 2011, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement with the Secretary of the Treasury ("Treasury") pursuant to which the Company sold to the Treasury, 13,000 shares of its Senior Non-Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock, Series B ("Series B Preferred Stock"), having a liquidation preference of \$1,000 per share for aggregate proceeds of \$13,000,000. This transaction was entered into as part of the Treasury's Small Business Lending Fund Program ("SBLF").

Accordingly, the Company is no longer subject to restrictions of the CPP program. The SBLF program does have its own requirements, which are summarized below:

The Series B Preferred Stock is entitled to receive non-cumulative dividends payable quarterly, on each January 1, April 1, July 1 and October 1, beginning October 1, 2011. The dividend rate, which is calculated on the aggregate Liquidation Amount, was initially set at 4.2% per annum based upon the current level of "Qualified Small Business Lending", or "QSBL" (as defined in the Securities Purchase Agreement) by the Company's wholly owned subsidiary, the Bank. The dividend rate for future dividend periods will be set based upon the "Percentage Change in Qualified Lending" (as defined in the Securities Purchase Agreement) between each dividend period and the "Baseline" QSBL level. Such dividend rate may vary from 1% per annum to 5% per annum for the second through tenth dividend periods, from 1% per annum to 7% per annum for the eleventh through the first half of the nineteenth dividend periods. If the Series B Preferred Stock remains outstanding for more than four-and-one-half years, the dividend rate will be fixed at 9%. Prior to that time, in general, the dividend rate decreases as the level of the Bank's QSBL increases. The Company's dividend rate as of the date of this report is 3.56%. Such dividends are not cumulative, but the Company may only declare and pay dividends on its common stock (or any other equity securities junior to the Series B Preferred Stock) if it has declared and paid dividends for the current dividend period on the Series B Preferred Stock, and will be subject to other restrictions on its ability to repurchase or redeem other securities.

The Company may redeem the shares of Series B Preferred Stock, in whole or in part, at any time at a redemption price equal to the sum of the Liquidation Amount per share and the per-share amount of any unpaid dividends for the then-current period, subject to any required prior approval by the Company's primary federal banking regulator.

The Company's ability to pay common stock dividends is conditional on payment of the Series B Preferred Stock Dividends described above. In addition, the SBLF program requires the Company to file quarterly reports on QSBL lending reported on by its Auditor annually. The Company must also outreach and advertise the availability of QSBL to organizations and individuals who represent minorities, woman and veterans. The Company must annually certify that no business loans are made to principals of businesses who have been convicted of a sex crime against a minor. Finally, the SBLF program requires the Company to file quarterly, annual and other reports provided to shareholders concurrently with the Treasury.

The Company's goal is to maintain a strong capital position, consistent with the risk profile of its subsidiary banks that supports growth and expansion activities while at the same time exceeding regulatory standards. At December 31, 2011, the Bank exceeded all regulatory required minimum capital ratios and met the regulatory definition of a "well-capitalized" institution, i.e. a leverage capital ratio exceeding 5%, a Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio exceeding 10%.

The Bank is required to maintain average balances on hand or with the Federal Reserve Bank. At December 31, 2011 and 2010, these reserve balances amounted to \$2,582,000 and \$2,804,000, respectively.

#### NOTE 20: INTEREST RATE DERIVATIVE

Derivative instruments are entered into primarily as a risk management tool of the Company. Financial derivatives are recorded at fair value as other assets and other liabilities. The accounting for changes in the fair value of a derivative depends on whether it has been designated and qualifies as part of a hedging relationship. For a fair value hedge, changes in the fair value of the derivative instrument and changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability are recognized currently in earnings. For a cash flow hedge, changes in the fair value of the derivative instrument, to the extent that it is effective, are recorded in other comprehensive income and subsequently reclassified to earnings as the hedged transaction impacts net income. Any ineffective portion of a cash flow hedge is recognized currently in earnings. See Note 21 for further discussion of the fair value of the interest rate derivative.

The Company has \$5 million of floating rate trust preferred debt indexed to 3-month LIBOR. As a result, it is exposed to variability in cash flows related to changes in projected interest payments caused by changes in the benchmark interest rate. During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009, the Company entered into an interest rate swap agreement, with a \$2.0 million notional amount, to convert a portion of the variable-rate junior subordinated debentures to a fixed rate for a term of approximately 7 years at a rate of 4.96%. The derivative is designated as a cash flow hedge. The hedging strategy ensures that changes in cash flows from the derivative will be highly effective at offsetting changes in interest expense from the hedged exposure.

The following table summarizes the fair value of outstanding derivatives and their presentation on the statements of condition as of December 31:

(In thousands)		2011	2010
Cash flow hedge:			
	Other liabilities	\$ 200	\$ 110

The change in accumulated other comprehensive loss, on a pretax basis, and the impact on earnings from the interest rate swap that qualifies as a cash flow hedge for the year ended December 31 were as follows:

(In thousands)	2011	2010
Balance as of January 1:	\$ (110) \$	-
Amount of losses recognized in other comprehensive income	(151)	(170)
Amount of loss reclassified from other comprehensive income		
and recognized as interest expense	61	60
Balance as of December 31:	\$ (200) \$	(110)

No amount of ineffectiveness has been included in earnings and the changes in fair value have been recorded in other comprehensive income. Some or the entire amount included in accumulated other comprehensive loss would be reclassified into current earnings should a portion of, or the entire hedge no longer be considered effective, but at this time, management expects the hedge to remain fully effective during the remaining term of the swap.

The Company posted cash, of \$200,000, under collateral arrangements to satisfy collateral requirements associated with the interest rate swap contract.

## NOTE 21: FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS AND DISCLOSURES

Accounting guidance related to fair value measurements and disclosures specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on whether the inputs to those valuation techniques are observable or unobservable. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from independent sources, while unobservable inputs reflect our market assumptions. These two types of inputs have created the following fair value hierarchy:

Level 1 -Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the entity has the ability to access as of the measurement date.

Level 2 - Quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active; and model-derived valuations in which all significant inputs and significant value drivers are observable in active markets.

Level 3 - Model-derived valuations in which one or more significant inputs or significant value drivers are unobservable.

An asset's or liability's level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

The Company used the following methods and significant assumptions to estimate fair value:

Investment securities: The fair values of securities available for sale are obtained from an independent third party and are based on quoted prices on nationally recognized exchange (Level 1), where available. If quoted prices are not available, fair values are measured by utilizing matrix pricing, which is a mathematical technique used widely in the industry to value debt securities without relying exclusively on quoted prices for specific securities but rather by relying on the securities' relationship to other benchmark quoted securities (Level 2). Management made no adjustment to the fair value quotes that were received from the independent third party pricing service.

Interest rate swap derivative: The fair value of the interest rate swap derivative is calculated based on a discounted cash flow model. All future floating cash flows are projected and both floating and fixed cash flows are discounted to the valuation date. The curve utilized for discounting and projecting is built by obtaining publicly available third party market quotes for various swap maturity terms.

Impaired loans: Impaired loans are those loans in which the Company has measured impairment generally based on the fair value of the loan's collateral. Fair value is generally determined based upon independent third party appraisals of the properties and/or estimates by management of working capital collateral or discounted cash flows based upon expected proceeds. These assets are included as Level 3 fair values, based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurements. The fair value consists of loan balances less their valuation allowances.

Foreclosed real estate: The fair values for foreclosed real estate are determined based upon evaluations by third parties less costs to sell.

			2011	[			
						Тс	otal Fair
(In thousands)	Level 1		Level 2		Level 3		Value
Debt investment securities:							
US Treasury, agencies and GSEs	\$ -	\$	5,073	\$	-	\$	5,073
State and political subdivisions	-		20,304		-		20,304
Corporate	-		20,434		-		20,434
Residential mortgage-backed – US agency	-		51,056		-		51,056
Residential mortgage-backed - private label	-		519		-		519
Equity investment securities:							
Mutual funds:							
Ultra short mortgage fund	1,298		-		-		1,298
Large cap equity fund	1,024		-		-		1,024
Other mutual funds	-		243		-		243
Common stock - financial services industry	25		419		-		444
Total investment securities	\$ 2,347	\$	98,048	\$	-	\$	100,395
Interest rate swap derivative	\$ -	\$	(200)	\$	-	\$	(200)
	2010						
						Тс	otal Fair
(In thousands)	Level 1		Level 2		Level 3		Value
Debt investment securities:							
US Treasury, agencies and GSEs	\$ -	\$	20,023	\$	-	\$	20,023
State and political subdivisions	-		18,979		-		18,979
Corporate	-		5,600		-		5,600
Residential mortgage-backed – US agency	-		36,409		-		36,409
Residential mortgage-backed - private label	-		837		-		837
Equity investment securities:							
Mutual funds:							
Ultra short mortgage fund	1,558		-		-		1,558
Large cap equity fund	1,222		-		-		1,222
Other mutual funds	-		244		-		244
Common stock - financial services industry	 36		419				455
Total investment securities	\$ 2,816	\$	82,511	\$	-	\$	85,327

The following tables summarize assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of December 31, segregated by the level of valuation inputs within the hierarchy utilized to measure fair value:

Certain assets and liabilities are measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis; that is, the instruments are not measured at fair value on an ongoing basis but are subject to fair value adjustments in certain circumstances (for example, when there is evidence of impairment).

The following tables summarize assets measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis as of December 31, segregated by the level of valuation inputs within the hierarchy utilized to measure fair value:

		2011		
				Total Fair
(In thousands)	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Value
Impaired loans	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 1,608	\$ 1,608
Foreclosed real estate	-	-	\$ 165	\$ 165
		2010	1	
				Total Fair
(In thousands)	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Value
Impaired loans	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 3,251	\$ 3,251

There have been no transfers of assets in or out of any fair value measurement level.

Required disclosures include fair value information of financial instruments, whether or not recognized in the consolidated statement of condition, for which it is practicable to estimate that value. In cases where quoted market prices are not available, fair values are based on estimates using present value or other valuation techniques. Those techniques are significantly affected by the assumptions used, including the discount rate and estimates of future cash flows. In that regard, the derived fair value estimates cannot be substantiated by comparison to independent markets and, in many cases, could not be realized in immediate settlement of the instrument.

Management uses its best judgment in estimating the fair value of the Company's financial instruments; however, there are inherent weaknesses in any estimation technique. Therefore, for substantially all financial instruments, the fair value estimates herein are not necessarily indicative of the amounts the Company could have realized in a sales transaction on the dates indicated. The estimated fair value amounts have been measured as of their respective period-ends, and have not been re-evaluated or updated for purposes of these financial statements subsequent to those respective dates. As such, the estimated fair values of these financial instruments subsequent to the respective reporting dates may be different than the amounts reported at each period-end.

The following information should not be interpreted as an estimate of the fair value of the entire Company since a fair value calculation is only provided for a limited portion of the Company's assets and liabilities. Due to a wide range of valuation techniques and the degree of subjectivity used in making the estimates, comparisons between the Company's disclosures and those of other companies may not be meaningful. The Company, in estimating its fair value disclosures for financial instruments, used the following methods and assumptions:

Cash and cash equivalents – The carrying amounts of these assets approximate their fair value.

Interest earning time deposits – The carrying amounts of these assets approximate their fair value.

Investment securities – The fair values of securities available for sale are obtained from an independent third party and are based on quoted prices on nationally recognized exchange (Level 1), where available. If quoted prices are not available, fair values are measured by utilizing matrix pricing, which is a mathematical technique used widely in the industry to value debt securities without relying exclusively on quoted prices for specific securities, but rather by relying on the securities' relationship to other benchmark quoted securities (Level 2). Management made no adjustment to the fair value quotes that were received from the independent third party pricing service.

Federal Home Loan Bank stock – The carrying amount of these assets approximates their fair value.

Loans – The fair values of portfolio loans, excluding impaired loans (see previous discussion of methods and assumptions), are estimated using an option adjusted discounted cash flow model that discounts future cash flows using recent market interest rates, market volatility and credit spread assumptions.

Accrued interest receivable and payable – The carrying amount of these assets approximates their fair value.

Mortgage servicing rights - The carrying amount of these assets approximates their fair value.

Interest rate swap derivative - The fair value of the interest rate swap derivative is calculated based on a discounted cash flow model. All future floating cash flows are projected and both floating and fixed cash flows are discounted to the valuation date. The curve utilized for discounting and projecting is built by obtaining publicly available third party market quotes for various swap maturity terms.

Deposits – The fair values disclosed for demand deposits (e.g., interest-bearing and noninterest-bearing checking, passbook savings and certain types of money management accounts) are, by definition, equal to the amount payable on demand at the reporting date (i.e., their carrying amounts). Fair values for fixed-rate certificates of deposit are estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation that applies interest rates currently being offered in the market on certificates of deposits to a schedule of aggregated expected monthly maturities on time deposits.

Borrowings – Fixed/variable term "bullet" structures are valued using a replacement cost of funds approach. These borrowings are discounted to the FHLBNY advance curve. Option structured borrowings' fair values are determined by the FHLB for borrowings that include a call or conversion option. If market pricing is not available from this source, current market indications from the FHLBNY are obtained and the borrowings are discounted to the FHLBNY advance curve less an appropriate spread to adjust for the option.

Junior subordinated debentures – Current economic conditions have rendered the market for this liability inactive. As such, we are unable to determine a good estimate of fair value. Since the rate paid on the debentures held is lower than what would be required to secure an interest in the same debt at year end, and we are unable to obtain a current fair value, we have disclosed that the carrying value approximates the fair value.

Off-balance sheet instruments – Fair values for the Company's off-balance sheet instruments are based on fees currently charged to enter into similar agreements, taking into account the remaining terms of the agreements and the counterparties' credit standing. Such fees were not material at December 31, 2011 and 2010.

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Company's financial instruments as of December 31 are presented in the following table:

		2011			2010			
	Car	rying	E	Estimated	C	Carrying	F	Estimated
(In thousands)	Amo	ounts	Fa	ir Values	A	mounts	Fa	ir Values
Financial assets:								
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 10	,218	\$	10,218	\$	13,763	\$	13,763
Interest earning time deposits	2	,000		2,000		-		-
Investment securities	100	,395		100,395		85,327		85,327
Federal Home Loan Bank stock	1	,528		1,528		2,134		2,134
Net loans	300	,770		310,218	-	281,648		290,049
Accrued interest receivable	1	,685		1,685		1,709		1,709
Mortgage servicing rights		8		8		35		35
Financial liabilities:								
Deposits	\$ 366	,129	\$	369,154	\$ 3	326,502	\$	328,963
Borrowings	26	,074		27,322		41,000		41,984
Junior subordinated debentures	5	,155		5,155		5,155		5,155
Accrued interest payable		145		145		148		148
Interest rate swap derivative		200		200		110		110
Off-balance sheet instruments:								
Standby letters of credit	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
Commitments to extend credit	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-

#### NOTE 22: PARENT COMPANY – FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following represents the condensed financial information of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. as of and for the years ended December 31:

Statements of Condition	2011	2010
(In thousands)		
Assets		
Cash	\$ 1,729	\$ 1,199
Investments	23	24
Investment in bank subsidiary	41,213	34,408
Investment in non-bank subsidiary	155	155
Other assets	328	166
Total assets	\$ 43,448	\$ 35,952
Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity		
Accrued liabilities	\$ 452	\$ 205
Junior subordinated debentures	5,155	5,155
Shareholders' equity	 37,841	30,592
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity	\$ 43,448	\$ 35,952

Statements of Income	2011		2010
(In thousands)			
Income			
Dividends from bank subsidiary	\$ -	\$	700
Dividends from non-bank subsidiary	4		4
Total income	4		704
Expenses			
Interest	163		164
Operating	200		171
Total expenses	363		335
(Loss)/income before taxes and equity in undistributed net income of			
subsidiaries	(359)		369
Tax benefit	108		98
(Loss)/income before equity in undistributed net income of subsidiaries	(251)		467
Equity in undistributed net income of subsidiaries	2,574		2,038
Net income	\$ 2,323	\$	2,505
Statements of Cash Flows         (In thousands)	2011		2010
Operating Activities			
Net Income	\$ 2,323	\$	2,505
Equity in undistributed net income of subsidiaries	(2,574)		(2,038)
Stock based compensation and ESOP expense	112	-	
Net change in other assets and liabilities	29		127
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities	(110)		594
Investing Activities			
Capital contributed to wholly-owned bank subsidiary	(4,900)		-
Net cash used in investing activities	(4,900)		-
Financing activities	/ //		
Proceeds from sale of preferred stock -SBLF	13,000		-
Proceeds from exercise of stock options	66		-
Redemption of preferred stock - CPP	(6,771)		-
Cash dividends paid to preferred shareholders	(457)		(339)
Cash dividends paid to common shareholders	(298)		(298)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities	5,540		(637)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents	530		(43)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year	1,199		1,242
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year	\$ 1,729	\$	1,199
<u> </u>	,		,

## NOTE 23: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In the ordinary course of business, the Company has granted loans to certain directors, executive officers and their affiliates (collectively referred to as "related parties"). These loans were made on substantially the same terms, including interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with other unaffiliated parties and do not involve more than normal risk of collectibility.

The following represents the activity associated with loans to related parties during the year ended December 31, 2011:

(In thousands)	
Balance at the beginning of the year	\$ 5,810
Originations	1,453
Principal payments	(1,274)
Decrease due to Director attrition	(2,236)
Balance at the end of the year	\$ 3,753

At December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, the Bank had a loan receivable from the Holding Company of \$1.1 million and \$1.2 million, respectively. Interest paid by the Holding Company for the years ended 2011 and 2010 was \$59,000 and \$64,000, respectively.

Deposits of related parties at December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010 were \$2.4 million and \$3.2 million, respectively.

In October 2002, the Company entered into a land lease with one of its directors on an arms-length basis. In January 2006, the Company entered into a lease with the Holding Company for the use of a training facility. This lease was executed on an arms-length basis. During 2010, the Company entered into an arm's length lease with the Holding Company for space that is then sub-leased by the Company to a charitable organization at below-market rents. Rent expense paid to the related parties during 2011 and 2010 was \$23,000 and \$46,000, respectively, with the decrease due to the departure of the above referenced director during 2011.

#### NOTE 24: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On February 1, 2012 the Company repurchased from the Treasury a warrant (the "Warrant") to purchase 154,354 shares of the Company's common stock at an exercise price per share of \$6.58. The repurchase price for the Warrant was an agreed upon price of \$537,633. The Warrant was issued to Treasury on September 11, 2009 in connection with the Company's participation in the Treasury's Capital Purchase Program ("CPP") as part of the Troubled Asset Relief Program. The Company previously redeemed all 6,771 shares of its Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock, Series A ("Series A Preferred Stock") it sold to Treasury on September 11, 2009, in connection with the CPP. The Company paid \$6,786,000 to the Treasury to redeem the Series A Preferred Stock, which included the original investment of \$6,771,000, plus accrued dividends.

## ITEM 9: CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

#### **ITEM 9A: CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES**

#### REPORT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY

The Company's management, including the Company's principal executive officer and principal financial officer, have evaluated the effectiveness of the Company's "disclosure controls and procedures," as such term is defined in Rule 13a-15(e) promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, (the "Exchange Act"). Based upon their evaluation, the principal executive officer and principal financial officer concluded that, as of the end of the period covered by this report, the Company's disclosure controls and procedures were effective for the purpose of ensuring that the information required to be disclosed in the reports that the Company files or submits under the Exchange Act with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") (1) is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC's rules and forms, and (2) is accumulated and communicated to the Company's management, including its principal executive and principal financial officers, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

### MANAGEMENT'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management's report on internal control over financial reporting is contained in "Item 8 – Financial Statements and Supplementary Data" in this annual report in Form 10-K.

This annual report does not include an attestation report of the Company's independent registered public accounting firm regarding internal control over financial reporting pursuant to the rules of the Dodd-Frank Act that exempts the Company from such attestation and requires only management's report.

## CHANGES IN INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

There were no changes in the Company's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the Company's last fiscal quarter that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company's internal control over financial reporting.

#### **ITEM 9B: OTHER INFORMATION**

None

## PART III

# ITEM 10: DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, PROMOTERS, CONTROL PERSONS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE, COMPLIANCE WITH SECTIONS 16 (A) OF EXCHANGE ACT

- (a) Information concerning the directors of the Company is incorporated by reference hereunder in the Company's Proxy Materials for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders.
- (b) Set forth below is information concerning the Executive Officers of the Company at December 31, 2011.

Name	Age	Positions Held With the Company
Thomas W. Schneider	50	President and Chief Executive Officer
James A. Dowd, CPA	44	Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
Edward A. Mervine	55	Senior Vice President, General Counsel
Melissa A. Miller	54	Senior Vice President, Chief Operating Officer
Ronald Tascarella	53	Senior Vice President, Chief Credit Officer

#### **ITEM 11: EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION**

Information with respect to management compensation and transactions required under this item is incorporated by reference hereunder in the Company's Proxy Materials for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders under the caption "Compensation Committee".

## ITEM 12: SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference hereunder in the Company's Proxy Materials for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders under the caption "Voting Securities and Principal Holders Thereof"

## ITEM 13: CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference hereunder in the Company's Proxy Materials for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders under the caption "Transactions with Certain Related Persons".

#### ITEM 14: PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference hereunder in the Company's Proxy Materials for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders under the caption "Audit and Related Fees".

## PART IV

#### ITEM 15: EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

- (a)(1) Financial Statements The Company's consolidated financial statements, for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, together with the Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm are filed as part of this Form 10-K report. See "Item 8: Financial Statements and Supplementary Data."
- (a)(2) Financial Statement Schedules All financial statement schedules have been omitted as the required information is inapplicable or has been included in "Item 7: Management Discussion and Analysis."
- (b) Exhibits
- 3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. (Incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June 25, 2001)
- 3.2 Bylaws of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. (Incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on August 15, 2005 and November 28, 2007)
- 4 Form of Stock Certificate of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. (Incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated June 25, 2001)
- 10.1 Form of Pathfinder Bank 1997 Stock Option Plan (Incorporated herein by reference to the Company's S-8 file no. 333-53027)
- 10.2 Form of Pathfinder Bank 1997 Recognition and Retention Plan (Incorporated by reference to the Company's S-8 file no. 333-53027)
- 10.3 2003 Executive Deferred Compensation Plan (Incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008 file no. 000-23601)
- 10.4 2003 Trustee Deferred Fee Plan (Incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008 file no. 000-23601)
- 10.5 Employment Agreement between the Bank and Thomas W. Schneider, President and Chief Executive Officer (Incorporated by reference to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008 file no. 000-23601)
- 10.6 Employment Agreement between the Bank and Edward A. Mervine, Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary (Incorporated by reference to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008 file no. 000-23601)
- 10.7 Change of Control Agreement between the Bank and Ronald Tascarella (Incorporated by reference to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008 file no. 000-23601)
- 10.8 Change of Control Agreement between the Bank and James A. Dowd (Incorporated by reference to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008 file no. 000-23601)

- 10.9 Change of Control Agreement between the Bank and Melissa A. Miller (Incorporated by reference to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008 file no. 000-23601)
- 10.10 Executive Supplemental Retirement Agreement between the Bank and Chris C. Gagas (Incorporated by reference to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008 file no. 000-23601)
- 10.11 Executive Supplemental Retirement Agreement between the Bank and Thomas W. Schneider (Incorporated by reference to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008 file no. 000-23601
- 14 Code of Ethics (Incorporated by reference to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003)
- 21 Subsidiaries of Company
- 23 Consent of Bonadio & Co., LLP
- 23.1 Consent of ParenteBeard LLC
- 31.1 Rule 13a-14(a) / 15d-14(a) Certification of the Chief Executive Officer
- 31.2 Rule 13a-14(a) / 15d-14(a) Certification of the Chief Financial Officer
- 32.1 Section 1350 Certification of the Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer
- 99.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 111(b)(4) of the Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008
- 99.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 111(b)(4) of the Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008

Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Company has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc.

Date: March 28, 2012

By: /s/ Thomas W. Schneider Thomas W. Schneider President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

By:	/s/ Thomas W. Schneider Thomas W. Schneider, President and Chief Executive Officer	By:	/s/ James A. Dowd James A. Dowd, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Date:	(Principal Executive Officer) March 28, 2012	Date:	(Principal Financial Officer) March 28, 2012
By:	/s/ Janette Resnick Janette Resnick, Director Chairman of the Board	By:	/s/ Richard M. Jablonka Richard M. Jablonka, Vice President and Controller (Principal Accounting Officer)
Date:	March 28, 2012	Date:	March 28, 2012
By:	/s/ Bruce E. Manwaring	By:	/s/ William A. Barclay
Date:	Bruce E. Manwaring, Director March 28, 2012	Date:	William A. Barclay, Director March 28, 2012
By:	/s/ L. William Nelson	By:	/s/ Chris R. Burritt
Date:	L. William Nelson, Director March 28, 2012	Date:	Chris R. Burritt, Director March 28, 2012
By:	/s/ Corte J. Spencer	By:	/s/ George P. Joyce
Date:	Corte J. Spencer, Director March 28, 2012	Date:	George P. Joyce, Director March 28, 2012
By:	/s/ Lloyd Stemple	By:	/s/ David A. Ayoub
Date:	Lloyd Stemple, Director March 28, 2012	Date:	David Ayoub, Director March 28, 2012
By:	/s/John P. Funiciello		
Date:	John Funiciello, Director March 28, 2012		

#### **EXHIBIT 21: SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY**

		Jurisdiction or State of
Company	Percent Owned	Incorporation
Pathfinder Bank	100%	New York
Pathfinder Statutory Trust II	100%	Delaware
Pathfinder Commercial Bank (1)	100%	New York
Pathfinder REIT, Inc. (1)	100%	New York
Whispering Oaks Development Corp. (1)	100%	New York

(1) Wholly owned subsidiary of Pathfinder Bank.

#### EXHIBIT 23: CONSENT OF BONADIO & CO., LLP

#### CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. Oswego, New York

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-8 (No. 333-178590) and Form S-8 (No. 333-53027) of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. of our report, dated March 28, 2012, relating to the consolidated financial statements, which appear in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

#### /s/ BONADIO & CO., LLP

Bonadio & Co., LLP Syracuse, New York March 28, 2012

#### **EXHIBIT 23.1: CONSENT OF PARENTEBEARD LLC**

Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. Oswego, New York

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Forms S-8 (No. 333-178590 and No. 333-53027) of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiaries of our report dated March 24, 2011, relating to the consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2010 and for the year then ended, which appears in this form Form 10-K.

/s/PARENTEBEARD LLC

Harrisburg, Pennsylvania March 28, 2012

### EXHIBIT 31.1: Rule 13a-14(a) / 15d-14(a) Certification of the Chief Executive Officer

Certification of Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Thomas W. Schneider, President and Chief Executive Officer, certify that:

- 1. I have reviewed this Annual report on Form 10-K of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc.;
- 2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
- 3. Based on my knowledge, the consolidated financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the consolidated financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
- 4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
  - (a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
  - (b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting, to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
  - (c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
  - (d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and
- 5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors:
  - (a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
  - (b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

March 28, 2012

<u>/s/ Thomas W. Schneider</u> Thomas W. Schneider President and Chief Executive Officer

### EXHIBIT 31.2: Rule 13a-14(a) / 15d-14(a) Certification of the Chief Financial Officer

Certification of Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

- I, James A. Dowd, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, certify that:
- 1. I have reviewed this Annual report on Form 10-K of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc.;
- 2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
- 3. Based on my knowledge, the consolidated financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the consolidated financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
- 4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
  - (a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
  - (b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting, to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
  - (c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
  - (d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and
- 5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors:
  - (a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
  - (b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

March 28, 2012

<u>/s/ James A. Dowd</u> James A. Dowd Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

### EXHIBIT 32.1 Section 1350 Certification of the Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officers

Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Thomas W. Schneider, President and Chief Executive Officer, and James A. Dowd, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. (the "Company"), each certify in his capacity as an officer of the Company that he has reviewed the Annual Report of the Company on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011 and that to the best of his knowledge:

- 1. the report fully complies with the requirements of Sections 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
- 2. the information contained in the report fairly presents, in all material respects, the consolidated financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

The purpose of this statement is solely to comply with Title 18, Chapter 63, Section 1350 of the United States Code, as amended by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

March 28, 2012

<u>/s/ Thomas W. Schneider</u> Thomas W. Schneider President and Chief Executive Officer

March 28, 2012

<u>/s/ James A. Dowd</u> James A. Dowd Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

## EXHIBIT 99.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 111(b)(4) of the Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008

#### IFR Section 30.15 – Certification for Partial Fiscal Year 2011

#### Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. UST #1304

I, Thomas W. Schneider, certify, based on my knowledge, that:

(i) The compensation committee of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. has discussed, reviewed, and evaluated with senior risk officers at least every six months between January 1, 2011 and September 1, 2011, the date Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. repurchased preferred stock from the United States Treasury ("the TARP period"), senior executive officer (SEO) compensation plans and employee compensation plans and the risks these plans pose to Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc.;

(ii) The compensation committee of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. has identified and limited during any part of 2011 fiscal year that was a TARP period any features of the SEO compensation plans that could lead SEOs to take unnecessary and excessive risks that could threaten the value of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc and has identified any features of the employee compensation plans that pose risks to Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. and has limited those features to ensure that Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. is not unnecessarily exposed to risks;

(iii) The compensation committee has reviewed, at least every six months during any part of the 2011 fiscal year that was a TARP period, the terms of each employee compensation plan and identified any features of the plan that could encourage the manipulation of reported earnings of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. to enhance the compensation of an employee, and has limited any such features;

(iv) The compensation committee of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. will certify to the reviews of the SEO compensation plans and employee compensation plans required under (i) and (iii) above;

(v) The compensation committee of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. will provide a narrative description of how it limited during any part of the 2011 fiscal year that was a TARP period the features in:

- (A) SEO compensation plans that could lead SEOs to take unnecessary and excessive risks that could threaten the value of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc.;
- (B) Employee compensation plans that unnecessarily expose Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. to risks; and
- (C) Employee compensation plans that could encourage the manipulation of reported earnings of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. to enhance the compensation of an employee;

(vi) Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. has required that bonus payments to SEOs or any of the next twenty most highly compensated employees, as defined in the regulations and guidance established under section 111 of EESA (bonus) payments, be subject to a recovery or "clawback" provision during the 2011 fiscal year that was a TARP period if the bonus payments were based on materially inaccurate financial statements or any other materially inaccurate performance metric criteria;

(vii) Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. has prohibited any golden parachute payment, as defined in the regulations and guidance established under section 111 of EESA, to a SEO or any of the next five most highly compensated employees during any part of the 2011 fiscal year that was a TARP period;

(viii) Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. has limited bonus payments to its applicable employees in accordance with section 111 of EESA and the regulations and guidance established thereunder during any part of the 2011 fiscal year that was a TARP period;

(ix) Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. and its employees have complied with the excessive or luxury expenditures policy, as defined in the regulations and guidance established under section 111 of EESA, during any part of the 2011 fiscal year that was a TARP period; and any expenses that, pursuant to this policy, required approval of the board of directors, a committee of the board of directors, an SEO, or an executive officer with a similar level of responsibility, were properly approved;

(x) Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. included in April 2011 a non-binding shareholder resolution in compliance with any applicable federal securities rules and regulations on the disclosures provided under the federal securities laws related to SEO compensation paid or accrued during any part of the 2011 fiscal year that was a TARP period. The Shareholders voted in favor of the SEO compensation.

(xi) Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. will disclose the amount, nature, and justification for the offering during any part of the 2011 fiscal year that was a TARP period, of any perquisites, as defined in the regulations and guidance established under section 111 of EESA, whose total value exceeds \$25,000 for any employee who is subject to the bonus payment limitations identified in paragraph (vii);

(xii) Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. will disclose whether Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc., the board of directors of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc., or the compensation committee of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. has engaged during any part of the 2011 fiscal year that was a TARP period a compensation consultant; and the services the compensation consultant or any affiliate of the compensation consultant provided during this period;

(xiii) Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. has prohibited the payment of any gross-ups, as defined in the regulations and guidance established under section 111 of EESA, to the SEOs and the next twenty most highly compensated employees during any part of the 2011 fiscal year that was a TARP period;

(xiv) Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. has substantially complied with all other requirements related to employee compensation that are provided in the agreement between Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. and Treasury, including any amendments;

(xv) Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. has submitted to Treasury a complete and accurate list of SEOs and the twenty next most highly compensated employees for the current fiscal year, with the non-SEO's ranked in descending order of level of annual compensation, and with the name, title, and employer of each SEO and most highly compensated employee identified; and

(xvi) I understand that a knowing and willful false or fraudulent statement made in connection with this certification may be punished by fine, imprisonment, or both. (*See*, for example, 18 U.S.C. 1001.)

Date: October 31, 2011

<u>/s/ Thomas W. Schneider</u> Thomas W. Schneider, President and Chief Executive Officer

## EXHIBIT 99.2 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 111(b)(4) of the Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008

#### IFR Section 30.15 – Certification for Partial Fiscal Year 2011

#### Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. UST #1304

I, James A. Dowd, certify, based on my knowledge, that:

(i) The compensation committee of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. has discussed, reviewed, and evaluated with senior risk officers at least every six months between January 1, 2011 and September 1, 2011, the date Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. repurchased preferred stock from the United States Treasury ("the TARP period"), senior executive officer (SEO) compensation plans and employee compensation plans and the risks these plans pose to Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc.;

(ii) The compensation committee of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. has identified and limited during any part of 2011 fiscal year that was a TARP period any features of the SEO compensation plans that could lead SEOs to take unnecessary and excessive risks that could threaten the value of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc and has identified any features of the employee compensation plans that pose risks to Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. and has limited those features to ensure that Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. is not unnecessarily exposed to risks;

(iii) The compensation committee has reviewed, at least every six months during any part of the 2011 fiscal year that was a TARP period, the terms of each employee compensation plan and identified any features of the plan that could encourage the manipulation of reported earnings of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. to enhance the compensation of an employee, and has limited any such features;

(iv) The compensation committee of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. will certify to the reviews of the SEO compensation plans and employee compensation plans required under (i) and (iii) above;

(v) The compensation committee of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. will provide a narrative description of how it limited during any part of the 2011 fiscal year that was a TARP period the features in:

- (A) SEO compensation plans that could lead SEOs to take unnecessary and excessive risks that could threaten the value of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc.;
- (B) Employee compensation plans that unnecessarily expose Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. to risks; and
- (C) Employee compensation plans that could encourage the manipulation of reported earnings of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. to enhance the compensation of an employee;

(vi) Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. has required that bonus payments to SEOs or any of the next twenty most highly compensated employees, as defined in the regulations and guidance established under section 111 of EESA (bonus) payments, be subject to a recovery or "clawback" provision during the 2011 fiscal year that was a TARP period if the bonus payments were based on materially inaccurate financial statements or any other materially inaccurate performance metric criteria;

(vii) Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. has prohibited any golden parachute payment, as defined in the regulations and guidance established under section 111 of EESA, to a SEO or any of the next five most highly compensated employees during any part of the 2011 fiscal year that was a TARP period;

(viii) Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. has limited bonus payments to its applicable employees in accordance with section 111 of EESA and the regulations and guidance established thereunder during any part of the 2011 fiscal year that was a TARP period;

(ix) Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. and its employees have complied with the excessive or luxury expenditures policy, as defined in the regulations and guidance established under section 111 of EESA, during any part of the 2011 fiscal year that was a TARP period; and any expenses that, pursuant to this policy, required approval of the board of directors, a committee of the board of directors, an SEO, or an executive officer with a similar level of responsibility, were properly approved;

(x) Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. included in April 2011 a non-binding shareholder resolution in compliance with any applicable federal securities rules and regulations on the disclosures provided under the federal securities laws related to SEO compensation paid or accrued during any part of the 2011 fiscal year that was a TARP period. The Shareholders voted in favor of the SEO compensation.

(xi) Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. will disclose the amount, nature, and justification for the offering during any part of the 2011 fiscal year that was a TARP period, of any perquisites, as defined in the regulations and guidance established under section 111 of EESA, whose total value exceeds \$25,000 for any employee who is subject to the bonus payment limitations identified in paragraph (vii);

(xii) Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. will disclose whether Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc., the board of directors of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc., or the compensation committee of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. has engaged during any part of the 2011 fiscal year that was a TARP period a compensation consultant; and the services the compensation consultant or any affiliate of the compensation consultant provided during this period;

(xiii) Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. has prohibited the payment of any gross-ups, as defined in the regulations and guidance established under section 111 of EESA, to the SEOs and the next twenty most highly compensated employees during any part of the 2011 fiscal year that was a TARP period;

(xiv) Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. has substantially complied with all other requirements related to employee compensation that are provided in the agreement between Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. and Treasury, including any amendments;

(xv) Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. has submitted to Treasury a complete and accurate list of SEOs and the twenty next most highly compensated employees for the current fiscal year, with the non-SEO's ranked in descending order of level of annual compensation, and with the name, title, and employer of each SEO and most highly compensated employee identified; and

(xvi) I understand that a knowing and willful false or fraudulent statement made in connection with this certification may be punished by fine, imprisonment, or both. (*See,* for example, 18 U.S.C. 1001.)

Date: November 1, 2011

<u>/s/ James A. Dowd</u> James A. Dowd, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

#### **CORPORATE INFORMATION**

#### PATHFINDER BANCORP, INC. BOARD OF DIRECTORS (1)

Janette Resnick, Chairman David A. Ayoub William A. Barclay Chris R. Burritt John P. Funiciello George P. Joyce Bruce E. Manwaring (2) L. William Nelson Thomas W. Schneider Corte J. Spencer Lloyd "Buddy" Stemple

#### PATHFINDER EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Thomas W. Schneider President, Chief Executive Officer

James A. Dowd, CPA Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer

Edward A. Mervine, Esq. Senior Vice President, General Counsel, Corporate Secretary

Melissa A. Miller Senior Vice President, Chief Operating Officer

Ronald Tascarella Senior Vice President, Chief Credit Officer

#### PATHFINDER OFFICERS

Beth K. Alfieri Assistant Vice President, Account Manager

Robert Butkowski Assistant Vice President, Branch Manager

Susan Cahill Assistant Vice President, Branch Manager

Joy E. Campbell Assistant Vice President, Account Manager

Cynthia L. Claflin Assistant Vice President, Branch Manager

Barbara Cowles Assistant Vice President, Branch Manager

Calvin Corriders Vice President, Sales Manager

Roberta J. Davis Assistant Vice President, Financial Analyst

Amy Favata Assistant Vice President, Financial Reporting Specialist

Lorna Hall Bank Secrecy and Security Officer

Rhonda Hutchins Vice President, Compliance

Richard Jablonka Vice President, Controller

Lisa Kimball Vice President, Internal Audit Manager Laurie L. Lockwood Assistant Vice President, Assistant Controller

Denise Lyga Assistant Vice President, Branch Manager

Deanna Michaels Assistant Vice President, Branch Manager

Craig Nessel Assistant Vice President, Branch Manager

Will O'Brien Vice President, Business Relationship Manager

Daniel R. Phillips Vice President, Chief Information Officer

Michael Quenville Vice President, Business Development Officer

Reyne Pierce Assistant Vice President, Retail Lending Manager

Crystal Rafte Assistant Vice President, Operations Manager

Michele C. Torbitt Assistant Vice President, Electronic Commerce Manager

Jennifer Wright, Assistant Vice President Municipal and Business Deposit Sales Officer

#### **CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS**

214 West First Street Oswego, NY 13126 (315) 343-0057

#### ANNUAL MEETING

Wednesday, April 25, 2012, 10:00 AM Oswego County Club 610 West First Street Oswego, NY 13126

#### STOCK LISTING

The NASDAQ Capital Market Symbol: PBHC Listing: PathBcp

#### SPECIAL COUNSEL

Luse, Gorman, Pomerenk & Schick 5335 Wisconsin Avenue N.W. Suite 400 Washington, D.C. 20015

#### **INDEPENDENT AUDITORS**

Bonadio & Co., LLP 115 Solar Street Syracuse, NY 13204

#### TRANSFER AGENT

Registrar and Transfer Company 10 Commerce Drive Cranford, NJ 07016

#### **INVESTOR RELATIONS**

Thomas W. Schneider President, Chief Executive Officer

James A. Dowd, CPA Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer

214 West First Street Oswego, NY 13126 (315) 343-0057

#### **GENERAL INQUIRIES AND REPORTS**

A copy of the Bank's 2011 Annual Report to the Securities and Exchange Commission, Form 10-K, may be obtained without charge by written request of shareholders to:

Edward A. Mervine, Esq. Senior Vice President, General Counsel Corporate Secretary Pathfinder Bank 214 West First Street Oswego, NY 13126

A copy of this Annual Report on Form 10K and our 2012 Annual Proxy Statement is also available free of charge on our website at: www.pathfinderbank.com/annualmeeting

The public may read and copy any materials the Company files with the SEC at the SEC's Public Reference Room at 450 Fifth Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20549. The public may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The Company's filings are also available electronically free of charge at the SEC website: http://www.sec.gov and at the Company's website:http://www.pathfinderbank.com

#### FDIC DISCLAIMER

This Annual Report has not been reviewed or confirmed for accuracy or relevance by the FDIC.

(1) Information concerning the principal occupation of the Directors is available in the Company's Proxy Statement

(2) Mr. Manwaring has tendered his resignation from the board effective April 1, 2012. Mr. Manwaring will remain on the Board of Directors of Pathfinder Bank through December 31, 2012.



MAIN OFFICE: 214 West First Street, Oswego 343-0057

PLAZA OFFICE: State Route 104 East, Oswego 343-4483

DOWNTOWN DRIVE-THRU: 34 East Bridge Street, Oswego 343-2577 MEXICO OFFICE: Norman & Main Streets, Mexico 963-7248

FULTON OFFICE: 5 West First Street South, Fulton 592-9545

LACONA OFFICE: 1897 Harwood Drive, Lacona 387-3437 CENTRAL SQUARE OFFICE: 3025 East Avenue, Central Square 676-2265

CICERO OFFICE: 6194 State Route 31, Cicero 752-0033

## WWW.PATHFINDERBANK.COM